
 

Agenda No. 2024-13 June 24, 2024 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA NO. 2024-13 

REGULAR MEETING – JUNE 24, 2024 
MEETING WILL BE HELD VIA ZOOM WEBINAR AND AT 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 

REGULAR MEETING 

6:30 p.m.  

 

 

1. ROLL CALL 

 

 

2. INVOCATION 

 

 

3. FLAG SALUTATION 

 

 

4. CEREMONIAL MATTERS (Proclamations, Introductions, Recognitions, Awards) 

 

 

5. CITIZENS’ COMMENTS, oral communications to the City Council on any item 

pertaining to City business that is not up for public hearing. The total comment period is 

30 minutes, and testimony is limited to three minutes. Any person wishing to speak needs 

to sign up on the list located in the hallway. Respectful standards of decorum and courtesy 

should be observed by all speakers. Remarks should be directed to the City Council as a 

body rather than to any particular Council Member or member of the staff. In consideration 

of others, please silence all cell phones and electronic devices.  

 

 

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Consent agenda items are indicated by asterisks (*). Consent agenda items are considered 

together unless a council member requests that the item be returned to the general agenda. 

Ordinances on the approved consent agenda are automatically advanced to the next regular 

meeting for second reading and public hearing. All other items on the approved consent 

agenda are passed as final. 

 

 

7. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89535060265?pwd=V3drYnBzdWRHa0ZoNjhiNzVjbVJpZz09


 

Agenda No. 2024-13 June 24, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

8. SPECIAL ORDERS 

 

  a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 

following alcohol license applications for renewal.  Public testimony will be taken 

and limited to three minutes.   

 

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

3118 VFW Post #3629 Club VFW Post #3629 324 2nd Street 

3151 Fred Meyer #485 Package Store Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. 3755 Airport Way 

4846 
Wal-Mart 

Supercenter #2722 
Package Store Walmart, Inc. 537 Johansen Expressway 

3170 
The Odom 

Corporation 

General 

Wholesale 
The Odom Corporation 3101 Peger Road, Bay 1 

3969 Tony’s Sports Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
JNJ, Inc. 537 Gaffney Road, Suite 1 

4232 The Spur 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
JNJ, Inc. 537 Gaffney Road 

 

  b) The Fairbanks City Council will determine the costs and method of recovery of 

costs for the abatement at 719 Front Street (Lot 18, Tract E, Graehl Townsite), 

Fairbanks, Alaska. 

 

 Note: The purpose of this hearing is to: 

1. Hear and consider any written objections or protests to the proposed 

report; 

2. Make such revision, correction, or modification to the report or to the 

charges as the City Council may deem just; 

3. Confirm or reject the report; and  

4. Determine whether to assign a personal obligation of the property owner 

and/or to create a lien against the property.   

 

 

9. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 

 

   a) Special Reports  

 

 

10. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

11. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

  a) Resolution No. 5116 – A Resolution Authorizing an Agreement Between the 

Fairbanks North Star Borough, the City of North Pole, and the City of Fairbanks to 

Jointly Provide for Economic Development.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.  

POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of May 20, 2024.    



 

Agenda No. 2024-13 June 24, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

12. NEW BUSINESS 

 

*a) Resolution No. 5126 – A Resolution Awarding a Contract to Long Building 

Technologies, Inc. for Security Upgrades at the Fire Training Center in the Amount 

of $304,044.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs.   

 

*b) Resolution No. 5127 – A Resolution Approving Updates to the City of Fairbanks 

Emergency Operations Plan (EOP).  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs. 

 

*c) Ordinance No. 6283 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code by 

Enacting Section 10-207 to Require That Vacant Buildings Be Secured and 

Registered and Establishing Fines for Violations of These Requirements.  

Introduced by Mayor Pruhs and Council Members Sprinkle and Ringstad.  

 

*d) Ordinance No. 6284 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code by 

Enacting Section 10-208 to Prevent and Address Blight.  Introduced by Mayor 

Pruhs and Council Members Sprinkle and Ringstad. 

 

*e) Ordinance No. 6285 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code Section 

74-36 Economic Development Property Tax Exemption or Deferral and Enacting 

Section 74-37 Tax Incentive for Property Development, Redevelopment, or 

Renovation.  Introduced by Mayor Pruhs and Council Members Sprinkle and 

Ringstad. 

 

 

13. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

 *a) Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes of May 1, 2024 

 

 *b) Memorandum Authorizing Fire Department Position Change 

 

 *c) Memorandum Authorizing Building Department Position Change 

 

 

14. COMMITTEE REPORTS AND COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 

 

 

15. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

 

 

16. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

 

 

17. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

   a) IAFF/FFU Labor Negotiations – Guidance from Council 

 

 

18. ADJOURNMENT  



         

CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
____________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 

800 Cushman Street Telephone (907) 459-6702 

Fairbanks, AK  99701      Fax (907) 459-6710 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Mayor Pruhs and City Council Members 

 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk  

 

SUBJECT: Alcohol License Renewal Applications 

 

DATE:  June 19, 2024 

 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 

following alcohol license renewal applications:   

Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Address 

3118 VFW Post #3629 Club VFW Post #3629 324 2nd Street 

3151 Fred Meyer #485 Package Store Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. 3755 Airport Way 

4846 
Wal-Mart Supercenter 

#2722 
Package Store Walmart, Inc. 

537 Johansen 

Expressway 

3170 
The Odom 

Corporation 

General 

Wholesale 
The Odom Corporation 

3101 Peger Road, 

Bay 1 

3969 Tony’s Sports Bar 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
JNJ, Inc. 

537 Gaffney Road, 

Suite 1 

4232 The Spur 
Beverage 

Dispensary 
JNJ, Inc. 537 Gaffney Road 

 

Pursuant to FGC Sec. 14-178 the Council must determine whether to protest alcohol license 

renewal applications after holding a public hearing.  The 60-day response deadline to AMCO is 

July 12, 2024. 

 

The Police Department has included a call report for the locations listed above, but there are no 

department-recommended protests for these alcohol license renewal applications.   

 



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

02/02/2024 06:29 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O30 NRP 02/02/2024 06:43:46

01/20/2024 09:28 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O7 FAB 01/20/2024 09:38:28

01/17/2024 02:03 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O20 FAB 01/17/2024 02:12:34

01/04/2024 06:34 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O17 FAB 01/04/2024 06:47:33

10/19/2023 23:30 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O17 FAB 10/19/2023 23:38:39

07/21/2023 01:04 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

324 SECOND ST O5 NRP 07/21/2023 01:11:44

23002742 07/18/2023 16:29 DRUGS - FOUND - 
BRAVO

324 SECOND ST O50 RPT 07/18/2023 17:14:27

Total Number of Events Listed: 7

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY
FPD Calls for Service 324 Second St

06/11/2023 - 06/09/2024

Report Generated: 06/10/2024 10:04:15 | User ID: 1225

Page 1 of 1\\fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_EventListWithReportNumbers



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

06/08/2024 18:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 NRP 06/08/2024 18:32:12

06/08/2024 13:19 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O23 NRP 06/08/2024 13:29:07

06/07/2024 10:41 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY L4 NRP 06/07/2024 13:21:37

06/07/2024 08:04 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O23 NRP 06/07/2024 08:28:37

24001793 06/06/2024 18:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 RPT 06/06/2024 19:01:37

06/05/2024 19:43 TRAF HAZ/VEH/COND 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 06/05/2024 19:56:48

06/05/2024 19:14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 06/05/2024 20:02:32

05/31/2024 22:57 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 05/31/2024 23:30:21

24001730 05/31/2024 18:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 05/31/2024 19:45:22

05/31/2024 17:40 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 05/31/2024 18:03:51

24001725 05/31/2024 12:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 RPT 05/31/2024 14:08:32

05/28/2024 13:19 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 05/28/2024 13:47:42

24001674 05/25/2024 19:52 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE  - DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 05/26/2024 13:37:02

05/24/2024 21:58 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 05/24/2024 22:28:58

05/22/2024 18:25 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 05/22/2024 21:34:46

05/20/2024 13:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 SUBL 05/20/2024 13:43:02

05/18/2024 18:57 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 05/18/2024 19:13:10

05/15/2024 16:51 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 05/15/2024 17:18:07

24001548 05/15/2024 16:10 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 05/15/2024 21:09:48

05/14/2024 20:39 PAST DISTURBANCE - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 05/14/2024 20:54:55

05/14/2024 18:14 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 05/14/2024 19:13:31

05/12/2024 13:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 05/12/2024 13:57:39

05/10/2024 17:32 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY L4 NRP 05/10/2024 17:51:21

05/09/2024 20:02 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 05/09/2024 20:34:45

24001334 05/02/2024 19:39 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 05/02/2024 20:52:14

05/02/2024 15:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 05/02/2024 16:04:32

24001323 05/01/2024 14:14 ASSAULT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 RPT 05/01/2024 15:55:33

04/29/2024 18:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 04/29/2024 18:36:42

24001269 04/27/2024 13:12 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 RPT 04/27/2024 14:19:37

04/26/2024 19:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 04/26/2024 19:43:41

04/26/2024 17:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 04/26/2024 18:00:02

04/26/2024 15:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 04/26/2024 15:55:50

04/20/2024 07:06 ROAD RAGE - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 NRP 04/20/2024 07:23:40

04/19/2024 03:34 SI - SECURITY CHECK 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 04/19/2024 03:34:49

24001144 04/18/2024 00:41 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 RPT 04/18/2024 22:18:18

24001144 04/17/2024 22:11 HOT PD CALL 3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 RPT 04/17/2024 23:03:01

24001145 04/17/2024 20:59 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 RPT 04/17/2024 23:10:32

24001120 04/15/2024 14:56 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 04/15/2024 15:48:47

04/11/2024 20:02 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 04/11/2024 20:28:59

04/11/2024 19:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 04/11/2024 20:10:24

04/08/2024 22:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 04/08/2024 23:10:23

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY
FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way

06/11/2023 - 6/09/2024

Report Generated: 06/10/2024 10:07:07 | User ID: 1225

Page 1 of 9\\fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_EventListWithReportNumbers



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

04/07/2024 12:49 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 04/07/2024 16:01:44

03/31/2024 22:34 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O16 NRP 03/31/2024 22:42:38

24000976 03/31/2024 19:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 NRP 03/31/2024 21:35:13

03/31/2024 18:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 03/31/2024 19:25:46

24000961 03/30/2024 18:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 03/30/2024 22:31:07

03/29/2024 13:51 SUSPICIOUS 
CIRCUMSTANCE-BRA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 03/29/2024 15:05:18

03/29/2024 13:17 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 03/29/2024 15:15:28

03/28/2024 17:59 SI - FIELD CONTACT 3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 03/28/2024 18:06:57

03/28/2024 17:02 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 03/28/2024 18:05:32

03/26/2024 19:08 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 03/26/2024 19:26:53

03/26/2024 15:01 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 03/26/2024 15:17:29

03/25/2024 18:11 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 03/25/2024 19:31:14

03/25/2024 16:54 OFFICER ADVICE 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 03/25/2024 17:09:02

03/23/2024 14:31 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 03/23/2024 15:19:45

03/22/2024 21:03 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 NRP 03/23/2024 00:31:39

03/22/2024 11:23 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 03/22/2024 17:32:09

03/21/2024 15:33 SEND PROTOCOL 
POLICE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 03/21/2024 16:13:53

03/21/2024 12:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 03/21/2024 13:11:12

03/20/2024 23:04 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY C3 NRP 03/20/2024 23:29:12

24000844 03/20/2024 20:21 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 03/20/2024 21:29:42

24000832 03/19/2024 18:09 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 03/19/2024 21:50:53

03/18/2024 14:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 03/18/2024 14:42:33

24000808 03/17/2024 15:10 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 03/17/2024 19:10:22

24000805 03/17/2024 13:20 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O11 RPT 03/17/2024 14:01:30

03/15/2024 15:55 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 03/15/2024 16:49:14

24000778 03/14/2024 17:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 03/14/2024 18:41:17

03/12/2024 18:36 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 03/12/2024 19:08:33

03/08/2024 18:40 WANTED VEHICLE - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 03/08/2024 18:57:32

03/04/2024 22:02 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 NRP 03/04/2024 22:32:24

03/04/2024 15:25 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 03/04/2024 19:24:20

03/02/2024 20:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 03/02/2024 20:23:33

03/01/2024 22:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 03/01/2024 22:44:47

02/29/2024 21:38 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 02/29/2024 23:16:14

02/29/2024 12:58 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 02/29/2024 16:24:17

02/29/2024 00:44 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 02/29/2024 01:12:56

02/28/2024 21:15 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 02/28/2024 22:48:48

02/28/2024 18:07 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/28/2024 18:50:26

02/24/2024 22:54 10-36 3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 02/24/2024 23:04:56

02/23/2024 16:15 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 02/23/2024 17:33:42

24000530 02/21/2024 11:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 02/21/2024 14:17:01

02/19/2024 19:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/19/2024 20:39:49

24000513 02/19/2024 14:52 HOT PD CALL 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 02/19/2024 16:21:15

02/19/2024 00:23 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 02/19/2024 00:59:49

02/18/2024 23:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O16 NRP 02/18/2024 23:35:25

02/17/2024 19:22 DISTURBANCE 
INTOXICATED-CHARLI

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 02/17/2024 20:18:46

Page 2 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

02/17/2024 15:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 02/17/2024 15:35:48

02/16/2024 13:41 DISTURBANCE 
INTOXICATED-CHARLI

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 02/16/2024 14:02:01

02/15/2024 09:00 PAST TRAFFIC 
VIOL/COMP - ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY S15 NRP 02/15/2024 09:11:26

24000464 02/15/2024 07:22 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 RPT 02/15/2024 08:55:09

02/14/2024 14:57 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 02/14/2024 15:50:12

02/13/2024 17:35 WANTED VEHICLE - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/13/2024 17:59:04

02/13/2024 14:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 02/13/2024 14:56:38

02/12/2024 18:56 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 02/12/2024 19:10:46

24000431 02/12/2024 13:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 02/12/2024 15:20:20

02/12/2024 12:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/12/2024 12:24:44

02/12/2024 10:17 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY C2 NRP 02/12/2024 10:48:00

02/10/2024 15:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 02/10/2024 16:00:43

02/10/2024 12:21 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 02/10/2024 12:46:05

02/09/2024 20:15 OFFICER ADVICE 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 02/09/2024 20:23:18

02/09/2024 09:37 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 02/09/2024 09:45:49

02/08/2024 15:30 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/08/2024 19:30:22

02/07/2024 23:38 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 02/08/2024 01:31:34

02/07/2024 14:51 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 02/07/2024 15:33:40

24000372 02/06/2024 18:08 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE- JUST OCCU

3755 AIRPORT WAY S5 RPT 02/06/2024 22:51:13

02/06/2024 15:33 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 02/06/2024 16:08:39

02/05/2024 18:02 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 02/05/2024 18:19:56

02/05/2024 00:23 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 02/05/2024 01:00:02

02/04/2024 23:06 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 02/04/2024 23:38:35

02/03/2024 17:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 02/03/2024 17:56:12

02/02/2024 12:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 02/02/2024 12:28:58

02/01/2024 14:18 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 02/02/2024 12:05:35

01/31/2024 17:37 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 01/31/2024 19:08:19

01/31/2024 17:11 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 01/31/2024 17:38:58

24000315 01/31/2024 16:22 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 01/31/2024 18:00:00

01/30/2024 09:07 DRUGS - FOUND - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 01/30/2024 10:02:57

01/28/2024 12:47 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 NRP 01/28/2024 13:21:58

24000268 01/25/2024 15:12 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 01/25/2024 16:20:49

01/23/2024 18:33 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 01/23/2024 18:57:47

24000246 01/22/2024 16:29 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 01/22/2024 18:02:13

01/21/2024 22:47 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O16 NRP 01/21/2024 22:57:28

24000240 01/21/2024 16:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 01/21/2024 18:53:31

24000222 01/19/2024 18:20 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 01/19/2024 19:20:49

01/18/2024 01:08 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 01/18/2024 01:49:02

01/17/2024 18:14 THREAT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 01/17/2024 18:30:14

24000191 01/16/2024 08:51 FRAUD/FORGERY - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 01/16/2024 16:42:15

01/13/2024 22:46 10-36 3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 NRP 01/13/2024 22:58:36

01/13/2024 21:11 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 01/13/2024 22:44:45

01/13/2024 15:39 DISTURBANCE 
INTOXICATED-CHARLI

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 01/13/2024 16:10:47

24000116 01/13/2024 08:15 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 RPT 01/13/2024 08:37:48

01/12/2024 13:39 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 01/12/2024 13:51:03

Page 3 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

24000116 01/11/2024 11:21 FRAUD/FORGERY - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 RPT 01/11/2024 13:16:39

01/10/2024 06:24 PARKING COMPLAINT 
- LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY C2 NRP 01/10/2024 09:02:13

01/09/2024 18:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 01/09/2024 20:08:39

01/09/2024 16:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 01/09/2024 17:07:47

01/07/2024 20:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 01/07/2024 20:17:31

01/07/2024 16:46 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 01/07/2024 17:00:11

01/03/2024 17:49 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY L4 NRP 01/03/2024 18:10:43

24000022 01/03/2024 11:42 THEFT  - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 RPT 01/03/2024 13:00:26

01/01/2024 15:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 01/01/2024 18:15:41

01/01/2024 12:15 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 01/01/2024 12:42:34

12/31/2023 18:21 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 12/31/2023 18:35:00

12/31/2023 17:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 12/31/2023 18:21:32

23004779 12/30/2023 14:21 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 12/30/2023 14:48:29

12/30/2023 10:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/30/2023 10:47:28

23004750 12/30/2023 07:54 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 RPT 12/30/2023 08:18:46

12/29/2023 21:55 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/29/2023 22:21:21

23004750 12/28/2023 12:33 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 12/28/2023 13:55:46

23004750 12/28/2023 06:39 WEAPONS INCIDENT - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 RPT 12/28/2023 07:16:34

12/27/2023 20:46 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 NRP 12/27/2023 21:25:49

12/27/2023 19:58 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 12/27/2023 20:25:54

12/27/2023 16:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 12/27/2023 16:55:54

12/27/2023 14:25 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/27/2023 15:00:21

12/27/2023 12:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 NRP 12/27/2023 13:01:03

12/26/2023 21:23 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/26/2023 21:41:05

12/25/2023 14:17 PHYSICAL FAMILY DV 
-  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 12/25/2023 14:52:25

12/24/2023 20:29 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 12/24/2023 21:36:10

12/23/2023 15:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/23/2023 16:25:51

12/23/2023 13:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 12/23/2023 13:52:11

12/22/2023 19:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 12/22/2023 20:09:40

23004652 12/19/2023 16:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S39 RPT 12/19/2023 17:04:23

23004619 12/16/2023 12:15 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 12/16/2023 12:57:44

12/15/2023 20:21 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 12/15/2023 20:32:27

12/15/2023 12:03 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/15/2023 13:56:55

12/15/2023 10:00 TRESPASS - PAST - 
LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 12/15/2023 10:52:37

12/14/2023 18:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 12/14/2023 20:13:16

12/13/2023 14:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/13/2023 15:37:53

12/12/2023 14:20 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/12/2023 15:02:04

23004549 12/10/2023 14:39 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 RPT 12/10/2023 19:21:20

23004541 12/10/2023 12:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 12/10/2023 15:34:45

12/09/2023 20:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/09/2023 22:11:16

23004529 12/09/2023 15:24 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 RPT 12/09/2023 22:02:31

12/08/2023 22:46 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY L4 NRP 12/09/2023 19:33:15

12/08/2023 22:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 12/08/2023 22:26:36

12/08/2023 02:45 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 12/08/2023 03:58:03

12/07/2023 18:26 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S5 NRP 12/07/2023 18:54:12

Page 4 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

23004493 12/06/2023 16:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 12/06/2023 19:11:40

12/06/2023 15:20 LOCATE 3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 12/06/2023 16:41:38

12/05/2023 16:50 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O37 SUBL 12/05/2023 17:53:13

12/04/2023 14:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 12/04/2023 14:34:00

12/03/2023 13:01 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/03/2023 13:35:25

12/02/2023 19:59 PAST DISTURBANCE - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 12/02/2023 20:56:45

12/02/2023 18:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 12/02/2023 19:41:28

12/02/2023 08:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 12/02/2023 08:59:08

12/01/2023 03:16 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 12/01/2023 03:31:41

11/30/2023 21:38 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/30/2023 21:53:26

23004424 11/30/2023 19:50 VERBAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - JUST OC

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 11/30/2023 20:37:45

11/30/2023 15:33 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/30/2023 16:02:08

11/29/2023 15:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/29/2023 15:30:39

11/27/2023 20:25 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/27/2023 20:33:42

11/27/2023 17:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/27/2023 18:03:57

11/25/2023 11:22 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 11/25/2023 11:47:01

11/19/2023 03:26 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 FAN 11/19/2023 03:39:33

23004294 11/18/2023 17:14 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 RPT 11/19/2023 12:05:17

11/16/2023 19:42 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/16/2023 20:14:31

11/16/2023 19:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/16/2023 19:41:16

23004279 11/16/2023 13:04 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 11/16/2023 14:45:23

23004264 11/15/2023 08:00 ASSAULT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY I45 RPT 11/15/2023 08:00:33

11/11/2023 14:29 SI - FIELD CONTACT 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 11/11/2023 14:49:55

11/11/2023 13:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 11/11/2023 14:50:19

11/07/2023 19:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 11/07/2023 19:51:17

11/07/2023 14:48 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 NRP 11/07/2023 15:41:41

11/06/2023 12:39 SI - FLAG DOWN 3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 11/06/2023 12:41:39

11/06/2023 11:50 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S5 NRP 11/06/2023 12:46:29

11/05/2023 13:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 11/05/2023 13:42:47

23004137 11/02/2023 19:43 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 RPT 11/02/2023 21:05:26

11/01/2023 15:26 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 SUBL 11/01/2023 18:32:06

10/30/2023 17:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 10/30/2023 18:21:38

10/30/2023 15:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 10/30/2023 15:24:45

10/29/2023 20:10 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 10/29/2023 20:15:10

23004085 10/29/2023 15:20 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 10/29/2023 18:36:55

23004082 10/29/2023 08:25 HIT & RUN 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 RPT 10/29/2023 14:23:48

10/24/2023 19:40 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 10/24/2023 20:11:32

23004038 10/24/2023 17:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 10/24/2023 19:41:48

10/23/2023 20:43 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/23/2023 21:00:08

10/21/2023 14:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 10/21/2023 15:12:36

23003995 10/20/2023 17:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 10/20/2023 18:48:30

10/17/2023 20:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 10/17/2023 20:28:04

10/17/2023 16:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/17/2023 17:04:58

23003956 10/17/2023 11:35 MISSING  - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 10/17/2023 15:47:39

10/15/2023 06:33 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 10/15/2023 06:48:35

Page 5 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

10/14/2023 12:52 911 HANG-UP - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 10/14/2023 13:44:59

10/11/2023 18:57 DRUGS - FOUND - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/11/2023 20:10:02

10/10/2023 15:44 SI - AOA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 10/10/2023 16:51:53

10/07/2023 11:46 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY L2 NRP 10/07/2023 12:21:35

10/06/2023 17:50 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 10/06/2023 18:12:10

10/05/2023 19:30 SI - FLAG DOWN 3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/05/2023 19:38:14

10/05/2023 19:09 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/05/2023 19:29:24

10/05/2023 17:36 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 10/05/2023 18:25:48

10/03/2023 20:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 10/03/2023 20:49:22

10/03/2023 11:00 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY C1 NRP 10/03/2023 11:30:21

23003775 10/02/2023 15:53 THREAT - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 RPT 10/02/2023 22:40:14

23003751 10/01/2023 01:31 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 RPT 10/01/2023 02:06:13

23003751 09/30/2023 18:12 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 09/30/2023 19:05:51

09/29/2023 05:49 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 09/29/2023 05:56:13

09/29/2023 03:23 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 09/29/2023 03:43:32

09/28/2023 19:35 DISTURBANCE 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 09/28/2023 19:54:05

09/27/2023 20:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/27/2023 20:20:25

09/27/2023 15:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/27/2023 15:24:43

23003687 09/26/2023 19:46 FOUND PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 RPT 09/26/2023 20:21:27

09/26/2023 16:15 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/26/2023 16:51:02

09/26/2023 13:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 09/26/2023 14:35:17

23003679 09/25/2023 19:01 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 RPT 09/25/2023 20:01:50

23003678 09/25/2023 15:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 09/25/2023 17:23:42

09/25/2023 00:24 SI - SECURITY CHECK 3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 09/25/2023 00:24:43

09/24/2023 15:05 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 SUBL 09/24/2023 15:14:44

09/23/2023 18:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/23/2023 18:31:00

09/22/2023 18:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/22/2023 18:59:34

09/22/2023 14:43 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/22/2023 15:08:00

09/22/2023 10:44 RECKLESS ACTIVITY - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/22/2023 12:09:15

09/17/2023 17:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/17/2023 17:36:26

09/17/2023 14:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 NRP 09/17/2023 15:06:32

09/15/2023 17:43 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY S4 NRP 09/15/2023 18:09:31

09/15/2023 17:11 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O8 NRP 09/15/2023 17:19:46

09/15/2023 15:49 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/15/2023 16:29:15

09/14/2023 21:08 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 NRP 09/14/2023 23:29:48

09/14/2023 18:24 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 09/14/2023 18:41:10

09/14/2023 17:15 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 09/14/2023 17:21:30

09/12/2023 17:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/12/2023 17:56:50

09/12/2023 16:07 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 SUBL 09/12/2023 17:28:06

23003500 09/11/2023 11:43 DEATH-BREATHING 
UNCERTAIN-ECHO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 09/11/2023 13:22:15

09/10/2023 18:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/10/2023 18:24:50

09/08/2023 17:30 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 09/08/2023 17:58:53

09/05/2023 00:41 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 09/05/2023 01:05:15

09/04/2023 18:27 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 09/04/2023 18:36:51

09/02/2023 19:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 09/02/2023 19:23:25

Page 6 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

09/01/2023 15:39 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/01/2023 15:43:41

09/01/2023 11:10 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 09/01/2023 13:24:07

08/31/2023 20:34 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY O16 NRP 08/31/2023 20:54:13

23003344 08/30/2023 11:20 THEFT  - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O27 RPT 08/30/2023 14:16:50

23003338 08/29/2023 22:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 RPT 08/29/2023 23:01:42

23003323 08/29/2023 10:05 PD PROQA 
PROCESSED

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 08/29/2023 11:55:35

23003301 08/27/2023 16:16 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 RPT 08/27/2023 17:01:39

08/27/2023 14:49 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 08/27/2023 16:02:08

08/25/2023 11:32 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S4 NRP 08/25/2023 12:04:04

08/24/2023 11:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 08/24/2023 12:04:46

23003220 08/21/2023 17:30 THEFT  - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK
1

RPT 08/21/2023 18:40:52

23003207 08/20/2023 20:49 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 RPT 08/20/2023 22:33:04

08/20/2023 16:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 08/20/2023 17:24:22

08/19/2023 21:10 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 08/19/2023 21:32:45

08/19/2023 18:08 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 08/19/2023 18:31:11

08/18/2023 15:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 08/18/2023 15:42:59

08/17/2023 19:19 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 08/17/2023 20:06:57

08/13/2023 20:53 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 08/13/2023 21:31:13

08/12/2023 15:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 08/12/2023 16:23:07

23003098 08/12/2023 11:48 AOA - NON URGENT - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 08/12/2023 15:14:36

08/12/2023 11:00 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 08/12/2023 11:32:13

08/11/2023 19:32 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 08/11/2023 20:19:53

23003080 08/11/2023 14:23 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 RPT 08/11/2023 16:18:26

23003079 08/11/2023 14:03 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 RPT 08/11/2023 14:48:46

08/11/2023 10:07 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 08/11/2023 11:37:05

08/10/2023 14:47 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 08/10/2023 16:25:33

08/08/2023 05:13 NUISANCE - BRAVO 3755 AIRPORT WAY O16 NRP 08/08/2023 05:29:17

08/05/2023 11:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 08/05/2023 12:02:26

08/04/2023 16:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 08/04/2023 16:43:29

23002959 08/02/2023 13:20 HOT PD CALL 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 08/02/2023 15:41:50

07/31/2023 17:52 CRIM MISCHIEF - 
INFO/REFERRA

3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 07/31/2023 18:06:24

23002919 07/30/2023 17:39 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 RPT 07/30/2023 17:39:21

23002918 07/30/2023 17:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O30 RPT 07/30/2023 19:59:17

07/29/2023 22:26 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 SUBL 07/29/2023 22:38:09

07/29/2023 20:53 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 NRP 07/29/2023 21:06:46

07/29/2023 18:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY C2 NRP 07/29/2023 18:34:47

07/27/2023 14:05 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 07/27/2023 14:23:26

07/26/2023 11:12 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY S4 NRP 07/26/2023 12:18:44

07/26/2023 10:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 07/26/2023 10:28:46

07/25/2023 03:35 DISTURBANCE 
INTOXICATED-CHARLI

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 07/25/2023 04:02:22

07/24/2023 16:12 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 SUBL 07/24/2023 16:44:57

23002786 07/21/2023 15:50 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 RPT 07/21/2023 16:59:33

07/21/2023 15:15 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 07/21/2023 16:07:08

07/20/2023 16:00 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 07/20/2023 16:21:07

07/20/2023 06:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 07/20/2023 07:53:26

Page 7 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

23002754 07/19/2023 13:34 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 RPT 07/19/2023 14:48:13

23002743 07/18/2023 18:15 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 07/18/2023 20:53:16

07/17/2023 19:34 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 SUBL 07/17/2023 20:07:49

07/17/2023 12:43 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S21 NRP 07/17/2023 13:05:19

07/14/2023 19:09 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 07/14/2023 19:40:21

23002677 07/14/2023 13:39 SUPPLEMENTAL-
ALPHA

3755 AIRPORT WAY S4 RPT 07/14/2023 17:29:06

07/14/2023 09:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 07/14/2023 10:15:07

07/13/2023 19:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 07/13/2023 20:00:53

07/13/2023 16:40 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 07/13/2023 17:05:20

07/12/2023 22:11 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 07/12/2023 22:35:51

23002647 07/12/2023 20:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O2 RPT 07/12/2023 22:18:51

23002649 07/12/2023 19:51 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 RPT 07/13/2023 00:07:13

07/12/2023 19:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 07/12/2023 19:43:48

07/12/2023 17:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 07/12/2023 17:26:24

07/11/2023 20:54 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 07/11/2023 21:14:26

07/11/2023 20:41 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 07/11/2023 20:53:21

07/09/2023 22:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 07/09/2023 22:52:56

23002592 07/09/2023 20:03 HARASSMENT - 
BRAVO

3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 RPT 07/09/2023 21:19:38

07/09/2023 18:52 TRESPASS - 
INFO/REFERRAL

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 07/09/2023 19:21:23

23002575 07/08/2023 15:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 07/08/2023 17:48:38

07/06/2023 19:24 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 07/06/2023 19:55:15

07/06/2023 14:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 07/06/2023 15:13:57

07/05/2023 20:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 NRP 07/05/2023 20:53:59

07/05/2023 17:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 07/05/2023 18:36:28

07/03/2023 22:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 07/03/2023 22:24:16

07/03/2023 18:52 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 SUBL 07/03/2023 19:11:59

07/03/2023 18:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 SUBL 07/03/2023 19:12:51

07/03/2023 17:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 07/03/2023 18:29:01

07/02/2023 20:36 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 07/02/2023 21:07:45

07/01/2023 17:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 07/01/2023 17:37:27

07/01/2023 16:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 07/01/2023 17:29:52

06/30/2023 20:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O17 SUBL 06/30/2023 20:38:24

06/30/2023 15:30 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY S4 NRP 06/30/2023 16:20:07

06/28/2023 21:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O28 NRP 06/28/2023 22:31:05

06/27/2023 16:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 SUBL 06/27/2023 16:54:03

06/27/2023 04:56 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 06/27/2023 05:18:06

06/26/2023 15:52 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 06/26/2023 16:15:36

23002394 06/26/2023 12:38 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O42 RPT 06/26/2023 13:14:42

06/25/2023 18:27 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 NRP 06/25/2023 18:55:12

06/24/2023 12:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 06/24/2023 13:02:49

06/23/2023 19:38 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - DELTA

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 NRP 06/23/2023 21:37:16

06/21/2023 13:01 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 06/21/2023 13:16:44

23002320 06/20/2023 21:35 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O19 RPT 06/20/2023 22:31:59

23002317 06/20/2023 17:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O31 RPT 06/20/2023 21:06:13

06/18/2023 20:31 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O20 NRP 06/18/2023 20:50:32

Page 8 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

06/17/2023 15:42 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 06/17/2023 16:04:55

06/16/2023 17:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 06/16/2023 17:57:33

06/16/2023 16:02 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 3755 AIRPORT WAY O50 NRP 06/16/2023 16:27:14

06/14/2023 19:51 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 NRP 06/14/2023 20:12:01

23002182 06/14/2023 19:43 SI - FOLLOW-UP 3755 AIRPORT WAY O10 RPT 06/14/2023 20:03:06

06/13/2023 21:46 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O5 NRP 06/13/2023 22:10:43

06/13/2023 21:07 REDDI 3755 AIRPORT WAY DESK NRP 06/13/2023 21:55:49

06/13/2023 17:55 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 06/13/2023 18:05:16

06/13/2023 15:40 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O6 NRP 06/13/2023 16:10:55

06/12/2023 10:17 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 
- CHARLIE

3755 AIRPORT WAY O7 NRP 06/12/2023 11:12:08

Total Number of Events Listed: 366

Page 9 of 9FPD Calls for Service 3755 Airport Way



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

24001834 06/09/2024 13:48 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 13:56:09

24001833 06/09/2024 13:29 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 13:35:57

24001832 06/09/2024 12:53 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 13:07:08

24001831 06/09/2024 12:43 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 12:53:21

24001830 06/09/2024 12:24 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 13:26:32

24001829 06/09/2024 12:15 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 13:15:41

24001828 06/09/2024 12:06 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 12:14:25

24001827 06/09/2024 11:16 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 11:30:25

24001826 06/09/2024 11:03 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/09/2024 11:15:16

24001825 06/09/2024 10:51 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 06/09/2024 11:01:58

06/07/2024 14:18 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 06/07/2024 14:27:22

24001792 06/06/2024 15:37 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/06/2024 16:36:18

24001789 06/06/2024 14:23 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 06/06/2024 15:35:41

06/05/2024 22:10 PARKING COMPLAINT 
- LOG

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O30 NRP 06/05/2024 23:52:10

06/05/2024 16:22 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 06/05/2024 16:58:42

06/03/2024 13:50 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 06/03/2024 14:09:23

06/03/2024 12:27 OFFICER ADVICE 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 06/03/2024 12:59:33

06/02/2024 18:46 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 06/02/2024 19:31:24

24001717 05/30/2024 12:49 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 05/30/2024 15:36:04

24001711 05/29/2024 21:58 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 RPT 05/29/2024 23:00:21

05/28/2024 14:26 DAMAGE/VANDALISM 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 05/28/2024 14:54:01

24001704 05/28/2024 13:14 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 05/28/2024 15:45:45

24001667 05/25/2024 18:33 AOA - NON URGENT - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 05/25/2024 23:15:40

05/24/2024 00:44 HIT & RUN 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S19 NRP 05/24/2024 05:59:16

05/22/2024 15:05 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 05/22/2024 15:12:58

05/22/2024 14:27 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 05/22/2024 14:30:37

05/22/2024 12:00 SUSPICIOUS 
CIRCUMSTANCE-BRA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 05/22/2024 12:41:38

05/20/2024 23:05 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 NRP 05/20/2024 23:57:24

24001588 05/18/2024 22:37 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S19 RPT 05/18/2024 23:40:56

05/18/2024 11:06 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 05/18/2024 11:24:54

24001569 05/17/2024 17:10 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 05/17/2024 18:58:24

05/17/2024 11:36 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 05/17/2024 12:35:17

05/16/2024 21:03 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 05/16/2024 21:36:36

05/14/2024 22:56 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 05/14/2024 23:12:54

05/12/2024 16:40 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 05/12/2024 20:49:50

05/09/2024 20:39 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 05/09/2024 20:54:53

05/09/2024 09:29 THREATENING 
SUICIDE - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L4 NRP 05/09/2024 22:00:45

05/08/2024 21:21 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 05/08/2024 21:44:42

05/07/2024 18:18 VERBAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - JUST OC

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 05/07/2024 18:36:58

24001422 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001413 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY
FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway

06/11/2023 - 06/09/2024

Report Generated: 06/10/2024 10:08:16 | User ID: 1225

Page 1 of 9\\fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_EventListWithReportNumbers



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

24001414 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001415 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001416 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001417 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001418 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001419 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001421 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001420 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001425 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001424 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001426 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001427 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001428 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001429 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001430 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001431 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001432 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001423 05/07/2024 17:11 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 17:11:34

24001403 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001397 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001399 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001400 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001401 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001402 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001409 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001398 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001405 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001406 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001407 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001408 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001410 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001411 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

24001404 05/07/2024 14:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/07/2024 14:28:59

05/07/2024 09:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 05/07/2024 09:52:16

24001385 05/06/2024 14:40 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/06/2024 14:53:43

24001364 05/06/2024 13:49 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 05/06/2024 13:57:38

24001384 05/06/2024 12:08 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 05/06/2024 14:36:07

2401341 05/03/2024 19:16 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 05/04/2024 15:36:46

24001341 05/03/2024 18:30 THEFT - 
INFO/REFERRAL

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L4 RPT 05/03/2024 19:23:52

24001310 04/30/2024 09:43 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 04/30/2024 12:09:30

04/29/2024 22:57 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 NRP 04/29/2024 23:10:43

24001289 04/29/2024 11:47 ASSAULT CHARLIE -
JUST OCCURRED

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 04/29/2024 14:30:45

24001272 04/27/2024 14:47 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 04/27/2024 15:46:09

04/27/2024 11:49 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S39 NRP 04/27/2024 11:55:36

04/26/2024 15:13 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 04/26/2024 15:30:48

Page 2 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

24001248 04/25/2024 10:40 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S39 RPT 04/25/2024 11:14:06

04/24/2024 16:12 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 04/24/2024 16:45:12

24001213 04/23/2024 00:56 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 RPT 04/23/2024 19:04:37

24001213 04/22/2024 22:38 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 04/22/2024 23:20:19

04/22/2024 17:01 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 04/22/2024 17:32:39

04/21/2024 18:15 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 04/21/2024 18:57:03

04/21/2024 15:16 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 04/21/2024 17:23:05

04/20/2024 17:26 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 04/20/2024 17:45:15

04/18/2024 17:25 OFFICER ADVICE 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 04/18/2024 17:34:17

04/17/2024 18:00 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 04/17/2024 18:20:42

04/16/2024 18:33 SI - FLAG DOWN 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 04/16/2024 18:38:12

24001115 04/14/2024 14:23 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 04/14/2024 14:59:44

24001115 04/14/2024 11:25 PAST VEHICLE THEFT 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 04/14/2024 12:31:34

24001082 04/10/2024 20:58 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 RPT 04/10/2024 21:29:51

24001081 04/10/2024 20:44 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 RPT 04/10/2024 22:26:55

24001037 04/07/2024 20:02 FRAUD/FORGERY - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 RPT 04/07/2024 22:49:18

04/05/2024 14:12 HARASSMENT - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 04/05/2024 14:39:41

04/02/2024 05:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O16 NRP 04/02/2024 05:51:06

03/31/2024 15:23 ALARM 
HOLDUP/PANIC - DEL

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 03/31/2024 15:33:37

03/29/2024 13:05 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 03/29/2024 14:13:51

03/28/2024 20:02 ROAD RAGE - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 03/28/2024 20:36:58

03/25/2024 19:23 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 03/25/2024 19:43:02

03/23/2024 18:36 RECKLESS ACTIVITY - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 03/23/2024 19:04:38

24000874 03/23/2024 17:36 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 RPT 03/23/2024 18:37:24

24000917 03/23/2024 16:20 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 NRP 03/23/2024 17:44:59

24000862 03/22/2024 16:48 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 03/22/2024 17:07:06

03/20/2024 07:14 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 03/20/2024 07:59:31

24000831 03/19/2024 16:30 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 RPT 03/19/2024 20:17:07

03/18/2024 21:14 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 03/18/2024 21:26:41

03/18/2024 13:53 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 03/18/2024 14:18:55

03/17/2024 21:25 SEND PROTOCOL 
POLICE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 03/17/2024 21:41:19

24000811 03/17/2024 18:43 ASSAULT - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 03/17/2024 19:47:46

03/17/2024 11:54 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 03/17/2024 12:51:43

24000763 03/12/2024 22:02 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 RPT 03/12/2024 23:07:57

24000758 03/11/2024 20:50 DISTURBANCE 
INTOXICATED-CHARLI

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 03/11/2024 22:00:20

03/11/2024 17:52 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 NRP 03/11/2024 18:32:52

03/08/2024 13:18 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 03/08/2024 13:42:13

03/07/2024 17:31 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 03/07/2024 17:48:35

03/07/2024 12:31 SI-RECRUITMENT 537 JOHANSEN EXPY C2 NRP 03/07/2024 12:43:34

03/04/2024 21:33 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 03/05/2024 12:22:25

03/04/2024 17:45 FOUND PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 03/05/2024 12:44:53

03/03/2024 16:26 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 03/03/2024 16:43:21

24000662 03/02/2024 23:16 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O11 RPT 03/03/2024 02:37:51

03/02/2024 18:11 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 03/02/2024 18:39:56

03/02/2024 15:09 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 03/02/2024 16:07:30

Page 3 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

02/29/2024 14:57 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 02/29/2024 15:22:56

24000616 02/28/2024 20:56 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 RPT 02/28/2024 23:36:25

02/26/2024 20:21 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 02/26/2024 20:37:11

24000558 02/23/2024 16:23 FOUND PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 RPT 02/23/2024 21:34:41

02/23/2024 14:38 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 02/23/2024 16:59:07

02/23/2024 12:12 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 02/23/2024 13:12:28

02/21/2024 17:17 ASSAULT - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 02/22/2024 18:41:24

24000522 02/20/2024 18:00 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 02/20/2024 18:23:04

02/19/2024 16:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 02/19/2024 17:07:52

02/18/2024 18:24 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 02/18/2024 19:02:27

02/18/2024 14:55 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 02/18/2024 15:17:42

02/18/2024 12:07 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 02/18/2024 13:08:36

02/15/2024 16:44 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

NRP 02/15/2024 16:59:10

02/12/2024 22:11 DUI - PARKED - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 NRP 02/12/2024 22:45:08

24000438 02/12/2024 20:47 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 02/12/2024 22:56:09

24000407 02/10/2024 22:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 RPT 02/10/2024 23:25:42

24000405 02/10/2024 21:58 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S19 RPT 02/10/2024 23:12:40

02/09/2024 17:08 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 02/09/2024 17:32:11

24000398 02/09/2024 17:05 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 02/09/2024 17:42:26

02/07/2024 16:22 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 02/07/2024 16:55:52

02/02/2024 21:01 THREAT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY L3 NRP 02/03/2024 00:35:08

02/02/2024 20:43 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 02/02/2024 21:31:25

24000329 02/02/2024 12:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 RPT 02/02/2024 13:11:46

01/31/2024 21:16 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 01/31/2024 22:28:04

01/29/2024 16:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 NRP 01/29/2024 16:52:14

01/27/2024 23:15 VERBAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - JUST OC

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S19 NRP 01/27/2024 23:30:30

01/26/2024 15:00 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 01/26/2024 15:46:46

24000297 01/25/2024 23:26 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O30 NRP 01/26/2024 00:16:13

24000250 01/23/2024 12:43 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 RPT 01/23/2024 13:37:42

24000231 01/20/2024 22:00 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 01/21/2024 00:41:41

01/18/2024 23:07 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O30 NRP 01/19/2024 00:01:49

24000207 01/17/2024 22:56 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 01/17/2024 23:09:27

01/16/2024 12:51 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 01/16/2024 15:53:55

01/14/2024 08:09 SI - SECURITY CHECK 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O16 NRP 01/14/2024 08:19:43

24000124 01/12/2024 08:20 FRAUD/FORGERY - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 RPT 01/12/2024 10:19:57

01/11/2024 21:34 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O30 NRP 01/11/2024 22:57:24

24000109 01/10/2024 17:13 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 01/10/2024 18:47:56

24000105 01/10/2024 11:36 FRAUD/FORGERY - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 RPT 01/10/2024 13:24:41

01/09/2024 22:04 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 01/10/2024 02:02:21

24000098 01/09/2024 16:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 RPT 01/09/2024 17:37:37

01/09/2024 15:13 ROAD RAGE - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 01/09/2024 15:44:01

24000052 01/06/2024 16:38 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 01/06/2024 18:00:05

24000034 01/04/2024 13:40 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 RPT 01/04/2024 15:42:47

01/03/2024 17:45 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 01/03/2024 18:12:46

01/02/2024 20:55 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 01/02/2024 22:05:12

Page 4 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

01/02/2024 15:34 PRIVATE IMPOUND 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 01/02/2024 16:21:12

01/01/2024 20:21 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 01/01/2024 21:04:15

01/01/2024 15:47 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 01/01/2024 16:06:06

01/01/2024 13:08 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 01/01/2024 13:35:32

12/30/2023 17:53 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/30/2023 18:00:28

12/30/2023 17:42 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/30/2023 18:00:20

12/30/2023 16:32 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/30/2023 18:14:09

12/29/2023 15:03 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 SUBL 12/29/2023 15:25:28

23004759 12/28/2023 21:01 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 RPT 12/28/2023 23:14:55

12/28/2023 11:30 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 12/29/2023 13:23:01

23004731 12/26/2023 21:17 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 12/27/2023 16:35:51

12/26/2023 10:00 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 12/26/2023 10:14:59

12/24/2023 14:49 DAMAGE/VANDALISM 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 12/24/2023 15:14:19

23004702 12/23/2023 21:00 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 12/23/2023 23:00:21

12/22/2023 14:24 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 12/22/2023 15:08:31

23004666 12/20/2023 18:45 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 12/20/2023 19:05:47

12/18/2023 17:05 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 12/18/2023 17:31:07

23004641 12/18/2023 14:40 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 12/18/2023 14:55:09

12/17/2023 12:15 OFFICER ADVICE 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 12/18/2023 13:41:21

23004613 12/16/2023 23:12 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 12/16/2023 23:58:07

12/16/2023 22:38 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 NRP 12/16/2023 23:02:51

23004611 12/15/2023 20:32 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 12/15/2023 22:06:29

23004613 12/15/2023 20:06 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 12/16/2023 00:37:22

12/15/2023 13:56 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/15/2023 20:47:26

23004608 12/14/2023 16:46 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L4 RPT 12/15/2023 12:59:48

23004595 12/14/2023 16:09 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S39 RPT 12/14/2023 18:51:50

23004588 12/14/2023 11:28 ABDUCTION - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 RPT 12/14/2023 13:32:19

23004531 12/09/2023 21:45 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 12/09/2023 22:02:38

23004492 12/06/2023 19:52 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 12/06/2023 19:55:25

23004492 12/06/2023 16:52 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 12/06/2023 19:28:35

12/05/2023 18:09 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 NRP 12/05/2023 19:28:46

12/05/2023 14:38 ABUSE/NEGLECT/ABA
NDONDED-BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 12/05/2023 15:01:40

23004551 12/05/2023 13:06 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O37 SUBL 12/05/2023 13:25:02

12/04/2023 13:54 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 12/04/2023 18:18:39

12/02/2023 22:10 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 12/02/2023 23:08:46

12/02/2023 17:59 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 12/02/2023 19:36:45

23004438 12/02/2023 00:30 SUSPICIOUS 
CIRCUMSTANCE-BRA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 RPT 12/02/2023 01:24:59

12/01/2023 16:25 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/01/2023 17:05:55

12/01/2023 14:28 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 12/01/2023 17:27:37

11/28/2023 02:55 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 11/28/2023 03:09:34

23004393 11/27/2023 21:06 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O16 RPT 11/27/2023 22:43:35

11/27/2023 18:54 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 NRP 11/27/2023 19:26:35

11/27/2023 11:55 AOA - NON URGENT - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 11/27/2023 12:50:35

11/26/2023 00:36 URGENT WELFARE 
CHECK - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 NRP 11/26/2023 01:19:16

11/24/2023 15:18 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O8 NRP 11/24/2023 21:13:44

Page 5 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

11/20/2023 00:25 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 NRP 11/20/2023 00:42:26

23004288 11/17/2023 23:17 FOUND PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 11/17/2023 23:19:18

23004287 11/17/2023 22:48 ASSAULT - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 11/17/2023 23:18:13

11/11/2023 15:46 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L4 NRP 11/11/2023 18:20:31

11/10/2023 01:04 MINOR TRAF 
VIOL/COMP - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 NRP 11/10/2023 01:19:12

23004204 11/08/2023 14:01 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 11/08/2023 19:37:13

23004152 11/03/2023 19:41 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 11/03/2023 22:19:28

11/02/2023 22:28 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 11/02/2023 23:02:58

10/31/2023 20:51 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 10/31/2023 21:08:53

10/31/2023 14:56 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 10/31/2023 15:31:35

23004111 10/31/2023 08:16 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 10/31/2023 09:12:22

10/28/2023 16:52 REDDI 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 10/28/2023 17:37:04

10/27/2023 10:00 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 10/28/2023 13:42:18

10/26/2023 22:22 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 10/26/2023 22:37:42

23004008 10/21/2023 22:31 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/22/2023 00:34:22

23003986 10/19/2023 20:18 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 10/19/2023 20:54:57

23003973 10/18/2023 16:09 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/18/2023 17:45:23

10/17/2023 19:25 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 10/17/2023 19:38:46

10/14/2023 12:37 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 10/14/2023 13:20:59

10/13/2023 21:02 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 10/13/2023 21:41:45

23003906 10/13/2023 10:48 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 10/13/2023 12:27:12

23003898 10/12/2023 18:54 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 RPT 10/12/2023 20:26:07

23003877 10/10/2023 07:53 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/10/2023 08:20:51

23003876 10/10/2023 07:42 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/10/2023 07:44:02

23003875 10/10/2023 07:34 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/10/2023 07:36:38

23003874 10/10/2023 07:22 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/10/2023 07:24:44

23003873 10/10/2023 07:12 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/10/2023 07:15:08

10/09/2023 02:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O16 NRP 10/09/2023 03:08:47

10/06/2023 22:34 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 10/06/2023 22:59:01

23003374 10/05/2023 03:57 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 RPT 10/05/2023 04:20:28

23003807 10/04/2023 15:31 10-36 537 JOHANSEN EXPY C1 RPT 10/04/2023 16:55:25

10/03/2023 22:03 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 10/03/2023 23:37:27

23003786 10/03/2023 12:31 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/03/2023 13:47:59

23003771 10/02/2023 09:37 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:16:59

23003770 10/02/2023 09:35 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:17:11

23003769 10/02/2023 09:33 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:16:50

23003768 10/02/2023 09:31 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:16:43

23003767 10/02/2023 09:28 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:16:33

23003766 10/02/2023 09:23 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 10/02/2023 10:16:21

23003722 09/28/2023 18:14 THEFT-SUSP DET. & 
COOP - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 09/28/2023 18:57:19

23003702 09/27/2023 09:24 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:26:01

23003701 09/27/2023 09:22 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:23:20

23003700 09/27/2023 09:21 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:21:56

23003699 09/27/2023 09:20 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:20:51

23003698 09/27/2023 09:18 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:19:41

Page 6 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

23003697 09/27/2023 09:17 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:17:55

23003696 09/27/2023 09:15 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:16:18

23003695 09/27/2023 09:14 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:14:55

23003693 09/27/2023 08:58 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 09/27/2023 09:13:08

09/26/2023 19:08 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O30 NRP 09/26/2023 19:42:27

09/24/2023 16:53 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 09/24/2023 17:52:04

23003667 09/24/2023 16:46 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 RPT 09/24/2023 20:17:16

09/24/2023 00:27 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 NRP 09/24/2023 00:59:55

09/24/2023 00:24 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 NRP 09/24/2023 01:00:06

09/23/2023 18:29 THREAT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 09/23/2023 19:13:57

09/23/2023 15:32 ALARM 
HOLDUP/PANIC - DEL

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 FAB 09/23/2023 15:43:22

23003635 09/21/2023 21:46 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 09/22/2023 07:21:24

09/20/2023 20:29 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 09/20/2023 20:44:53

09/20/2023 20:00 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 09/20/2023 20:17:13

09/20/2023 19:23 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 09/20/2023 19:47:57

09/19/2023 20:52 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 09/19/2023 21:04:57

09/19/2023 11:24 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

NRP 09/19/2023 12:12:37

09/16/2023 14:07 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 09/16/2023 14:25:46

23003564 09/15/2023 22:26 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 09/16/2023 12:12:49

23003532 09/13/2023 13:59 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 09/13/2023 16:04:37

09/12/2023 19:54 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 09/12/2023 20:02:34

09/12/2023 16:58 DAMAGE/VANDALISM 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 NRP 09/12/2023 19:32:46

09/11/2023 13:55 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 NRP 09/11/2023 14:29:46

09/07/2023 16:26 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 NRP 09/07/2023 17:21:56

23003451 09/07/2023 13:57 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 09/07/2023 16:15:16

09/07/2023 13:57 MVC - NO INJURIES - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 09/07/2023 15:26:23

09/06/2023 19:56 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 NRP 09/06/2023 20:30:14

09/06/2023 18:08 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 09/06/2023 21:29:15

23003429 09/05/2023 21:58 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O55 RPT 09/05/2023 23:08:38

23003425 09/05/2023 14:56 SI - FIELD CONTACT 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 RPT 09/05/2023 15:35:00

09/03/2023 22:18 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O16 NRP 09/03/2023 22:47:51

23003374 09/01/2023 20:58 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 RPT 09/01/2023 22:56:13

09/01/2023 18:12 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 09/01/2023 18:25:22

23003371 09/01/2023 17:42 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 09/01/2023 19:41:07

08/31/2023 19:44 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 08/31/2023 21:30:37

08/31/2023 13:49 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 NRP 08/31/2023 14:46:56

08/31/2023 11:43 SI - SECURITY CHECK 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 NRP 08/31/2023 11:49:48

08/29/2023 18:12 PAST TRAFFIC 
VIOL/COMP - ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 08/29/2023 18:14:53

23003334 08/29/2023 16:41 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 08/29/2023 17:09:34

08/27/2023 18:11 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 08/27/2023 18:49:16

08/27/2023 08:47 SI - SECURITY CHECK 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 NRP 08/27/2023 09:00:35

08/25/2023 19:41 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 08/25/2023 20:10:16

08/25/2023 16:10 LOST PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 08/26/2023 10:13:32

08/25/2023 15:25 THREAT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S4 NRP 08/25/2023 17:28:44

08/23/2023 20:22 SI - FLAG DOWN 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 NRP 08/23/2023 20:32:12

Page 7 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

08/23/2023 19:08 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 NRP 08/23/2023 20:21:27

23003233 08/22/2023 20:13 RETAIL THEFT 
PROGRAM

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 08/22/2023 20:41:45

23003182 08/18/2023 20:27 PAST DISTURBANCE - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 08/18/2023 21:52:47

08/17/2023 15:45 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 08/17/2023 16:03:47

23003148 08/16/2023 18:41 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 08/16/2023 21:15:58

08/16/2023 03:18 PAST DISTURBANCE - 
BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O10 NRP 08/16/2023 05:27:47

23003131 08/15/2023 12:23 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 08/15/2023 12:25:46

08/13/2023 16:36 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 08/13/2023 17:15:21

23003135 08/12/2023 18:37 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 08/15/2023 17:21:41

08/11/2023 17:28 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S4 NRP 08/11/2023 18:14:57

08/05/2023 18:14 PHYSICAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 08/05/2023 18:42:04

23002957 08/02/2023 09:17 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 08/02/2023 10:01:51

23002932 07/31/2023 07:54 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 RPT 07/31/2023 09:02:07

07/28/2023 22:47 MISCELLANEOUS - 
INFO/REFERRAL

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L1 NRP 07/28/2023 23:00:28

23002872 07/26/2023 21:21 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 RPT 07/26/2023 23:42:56

23002855 07/26/2023 10:08 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O27 RPT 07/26/2023 11:04:34

23002860 07/26/2023 09:32 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 07/26/2023 11:14:16

07/25/2023 13:34 THREAT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 NRP 07/25/2023 13:50:33

07/23/2023 22:58 ROAD RAGE - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY C3 NRP 07/23/2023 23:55:55

07/22/2023 19:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 NRP 07/22/2023 20:07:55

23002778 07/20/2023 22:55 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 07/21/2023 00:10:50

23002756 07/19/2023 18:40 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 07/19/2023 21:42:12

07/19/2023 16:38 REDDI 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 SUBL 07/19/2023 17:13:16

07/19/2023 14:49 VIOLATION OF CRT 
ORDER-CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O2 NRP 07/19/2023 15:34:17

07/18/2023 19:27 VERBAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - JUST OC

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 NRP 07/18/2023 19:46:17

07/18/2023 14:50 ANIMAL COMP - 
BRAVO - OVERRIDE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 07/18/2023 14:57:45

07/18/2023 13:52 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 NRP 07/18/2023 14:01:14

23002736 07/17/2023 21:47 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O19 RPT 07/17/2023 22:33:56

23002734 07/17/2023 19:39 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 07/17/2023 21:23:01

23002711 07/16/2023 17:26 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 07/16/2023 18:24:43

23002729 07/14/2023 22:48 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 NRP 07/14/2023 23:06:43

23002683 07/14/2023 18:20 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 07/14/2023 19:05:19

07/14/2023 08:59 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 NRP 07/14/2023 09:05:15

07/13/2023 21:15 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 SUBL 07/13/2023 21:21:35

07/13/2023 18:40 ALARM BURGLARY - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 FAB 07/13/2023 19:19:49

23002660 07/13/2023 13:46 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O50 RPT 07/13/2023 14:13:32

23002624 07/11/2023 07:13 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK
1

RPT 07/11/2023 09:35:38

23002593 07/09/2023 20:53 ASSAULT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 RPT 07/10/2023 02:16:22

23002589 07/09/2023 17:12 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 07/09/2023 19:09:08

23002582 07/08/2023 21:43 SUPPLEMENTAL-
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 RPT 07/08/2023 22:03:59

23002582 07/08/2023 20:36 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 RPT 07/08/2023 23:24:22

23002538 07/04/2023 20:11 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK RPT 07/04/2023 21:27:51

07/03/2023 19:44 HARAS/STALK/THREA
T-INFO/REFERR

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 07/04/2023 10:59:51

23002506 07/02/2023 23:43 KEEP THE PEACE - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 RPT 07/03/2023 00:53:04

07/02/2023 21:38 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 07/02/2023 21:44:57

Page 8 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

07/01/2023 13:56 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 NRP 07/01/2023 14:25:44

23002482 07/01/2023 13:23 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O28 RPT 07/01/2023 21:10:29

06/30/2023 23:27 OFFICER ADVICE 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 07/01/2023 00:12:26

06/26/2023 15:17 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O42 NRP 06/26/2023 15:42:18

06/25/2023 17:43 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 06/25/2023 18:14:05

06/25/2023 14:26 SUSPICIOUS PERSON 
- CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 06/25/2023 14:57:36

23002370 06/24/2023 16:59 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 06/24/2023 19:49:56

06/22/2023 22:41 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 06/22/2023 22:55:22

06/22/2023 15:27 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 06/22/2023 15:36:59

06/22/2023 11:23 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

537 JOHANSEN EXPY DESK NRP 06/22/2023 11:31:05

06/21/2023 20:08 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 NRP 06/21/2023 20:25:53

23002304 06/20/2023 11:50 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 NRP 06/20/2023 12:19:17

06/19/2023 18:15 SUSPICIOUS/WANTED
-INFO/REFERRA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S21 NRP 06/20/2023 10:26:25

23002304 06/19/2023 13:34 SUSPICIOUS 
CIRCUMSTANCE-BRA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O31 RPT 06/19/2023 16:17:32

06/18/2023 18:10 RECKLESS ACTIVITY - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY L2 NRP 06/18/2023 18:25:49

23002312 06/17/2023 21:32 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O17 NRP 06/17/2023 22:11:24

23002278 06/17/2023 20:47 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O20 RPT 06/17/2023 21:29:08

23002277 06/17/2023 18:39 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 JOHANSEN EXPY O7 RPT 06/17/2023 19:59:22

23002276 06/17/2023 18:24 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O6 RPT 06/17/2023 19:26:03

23002269 06/16/2023 23:59 DUI - MOVING - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY O5 RPT 06/17/2023 02:05:13

06/14/2023 21:34 FOUND PROPERTY - 
ALPHA

537 JOHANSEN EXPY S5 NRP 06/14/2023 23:09:55

23002202 06/12/2023 18:06 THEFT  - DELTA 537 JOHANSEN EXPY S15 RPT 06/13/2023 07:16:58

Total Number of Events Listed: 378

Page 9 of 9FPD Calls for Service 537 Johansen Expressway





Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

06/08/2024 03:34 PD PROQA 
PROCESSED

537 GAFFNEY RD O8 NRP 06/08/2024 03:44:31

24001747 06/02/2024 17:26 ASSAULT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O31 RPT 06/02/2024 19:34:31

06/01/2024 03:07 CIVIL PROBLEM 537 GAFFNEY RD O30 NRP 06/01/2024 03:44:56

05/26/2024 11:48 SEND PROTOCOL 
POLICE

537 GAFFNEY RD S21 NRP 05/26/2024 11:55:27

24001670 05/26/2024 01:55 VERBAL DOMESTIC 
DIST - JUST OC

537 GAFFNEY RD O16 RPT 05/26/2024 02:54:50

05/13/2024 18:37 911 HANG-UP - 
CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O42 NRP 05/13/2024 19:14:45

05/05/2024 01:50 WELFARE CHECK - 
LOG

537 GAFFNEY RD S19 NRP 05/05/2024 02:43:55

05/04/2024 22:48 NUISANCE - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O16 NRP 05/04/2024 22:55:36

24001268 04/27/2024 12:39 WANTED PERSON - 
CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O7 RPT 04/27/2024 13:06:52

04/18/2024 10:35 INDECEN/LEWDNESS 
- CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O7 NRP 04/18/2024 10:42:50

24001145 04/18/2024 01:48 10-36 537 GAFFNEY RD O17 RPT 04/18/2024 02:07:04

04/14/2024 03:06 SI - FIELD CONTACT 537 GAFFNEY RD O28 NRP 04/14/2024 03:23:38

24001103 04/13/2024 06:27 ASSAULT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O30 RPT 04/13/2024 08:11:12

24001022 04/06/2024 13:47 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O31 RPT 04/06/2024 14:24:28

03/28/2024 23:11 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

537 GAFFNEY RD S19 NRP 03/28/2024 23:32:11

03/23/2024 03:11 HOT PD CALL 537 GAFFNEY RD O28 NRP 03/23/2024 03:32:25

24000791 03/17/2024 16:42 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE  - DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O11 RPT 03/17/2024 17:48:21

24000791 03/16/2024 00:12 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O30 RPT 03/16/2024 02:17:41

03/10/2024 01:11 INCAPACITATED 
PERSON

537 GAFFNEY RD O16 NRP 03/10/2024 01:32:33

03/04/2024 11:19 SEND PROTOCOL 
POLICE

537 GAFFNEY RD O6 NRP 03/04/2024 11:38:41

02/24/2024 00:32 OFFICER ADVICE 537 GAFFNEY RD S19 NRP 02/24/2024 01:55:26

02/18/2024 19:20 TRESPASS/UNWANTE
D - CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O31 NRP 02/18/2024 21:14:13

24-000494 02/18/2024 18:07 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O50 NRP 02/20/2024 20:13:22

02/18/2024 03:13 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O5 NRP 02/18/2024 03:29:33

24000494 02/18/2024 01:30 THEFT FROM 
VEHICLE - BRAVO

537 GAFFNEY RD O30 RPT 02/18/2024 02:42:11

01/28/2024 18:24 MISSING  - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O31 NRP 01/28/2024 21:29:35

01/28/2024 14:56 MISSING  - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O37 NRP 01/28/2024 15:46:24

01/28/2024 03:47 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 GAFFNEY RD O16 NRP 01/28/2024 04:10:13

24000279 01/27/2024 02:17 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O5 RPT 01/27/2024 02:22:32

24000279 01/27/2024 00:24 WEAPONS INCIDENT - 
DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O5 RPT 01/27/2024 01:22:11

01/20/2024 11:29 MISSING  - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD S21 NRP 01/20/2024 12:46:16

01/19/2024 22:58 VIOLATION OF CRT 
ORDER-CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD S19 NRP 01/19/2024 23:26:21

12/17/2023 02:49 SI - SECURITY CHECK 537 GAFFNEY RD S21 NRP 12/17/2023 03:14:59

23004622 12/16/2023 15:34 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD L4 RPT 12/16/2023 18:00:56

23004535 12/10/2023 04:52 SUSP 
CIRCUMSTANCES - C

537 GAFFNEY RD S19 RPT 12/10/2023 06:13:18

12/10/2023 00:49 UNKNOWN 
SITUATION - DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD S21 NRP 12/10/2023 01:02:03

12/03/2023 09:56 WELFARE CHECK 
OVERRIDE - BRAVO

537 GAFFNEY RD O50 NRP 12/03/2023 10:04:33

11/04/2023 02:41 TRESPASS 
OVERRIDE - DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O5 NRP 11/04/2023 03:17:51

23004100 10/30/2023 13:35 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 GAFFNEY RD O42 RPT 10/30/2023 17:58:03

10/28/2023 17:19 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O19 NRP 10/28/2023 22:58:48

10/28/2023 03:38 ASSAULT CHARLIE -
JUST OCCURRED

537 GAFFNEY RD O19 NRP 10/28/2023 04:28:29

CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY
FPD Calls for Service 537 Ganney Rd

06/11/2023 - 06/09/2024

Report Generated: 06/10/2024 10:46:10 | User ID: 1225

Page 1 of 2\\fecc-app\ossicad\cad\rpt\EventHistory_EventListWithReportNumbers



Report # Call Time Nature Location
Prime 
Unit Disp. Close Time

23003997 10/20/2023 20:20 THEFT OR VEH 
THEFT JUST OCCUR

537 GAFFNEY RD O6 RPT 10/20/2023 21:36:49

23003927 10/15/2023 02:45 10-36 537 GAFFNEY RD O8 RPT 10/15/2023 04:16:13

23002912 10/14/2023 23:23 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O5 RPT 10/14/2023 23:27:40

10/13/2023 22:21 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O5 NRP 10/13/2023 22:23:29

23003683 10/01/2023 05:38 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O28 RPT 10/01/2023 23:18:48

10/01/2023 01:14 SI - FIELD CONTACT 537 GAFFNEY RD O5 NRP 10/01/2023 01:14:16

10/01/2023 00:39 DISTURBANCE 
VERBAL CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O20 NRP 10/01/2023 01:12:07

09/24/2023 13:26 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 GAFFNEY RD DESK NRP 09/24/2023 13:32:11

09/23/2023 02:43 HITRUN - NO/MINOR 
INJ - BRAVO

537 GAFFNEY RD O28 NRP 09/23/2023 03:31:28

09/21/2023 20:00 SI - FIELD CONTACT 537 GAFFNEY RD O7 NRP 09/21/2023 20:02:31

23003611 09/19/2023 16:22 PAST THEFT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O27 RPT 09/20/2023 13:14:26

23003490 09/10/2023 14:16 PAST DOMESTIC 
DISTURBANCE

537 GAFFNEY RD O31 RPT 09/10/2023 15:36:52

23003379 09/02/2023 03:00 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O28 RPT 09/02/2023 03:59:11

08/29/2023 13:01 OFFICER ADVICE 537 GAFFNEY RD L3 NRP 08/29/2023 14:59:44

23003225 08/22/2023 00:51 SI - FIELD CONTACT 537 GAFFNEY RD O20 RPT 08/22/2023 01:27:26

08/18/2023 12:42 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O19 NRP 08/19/2023 20:22:41

23003108 08/18/2023 00:16 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O16 RPT 08/18/2023 00:27:19

08/17/2023 01:50 REDDI 537 GAFFNEY RD O16 NRP 08/17/2023 02:28:53

23003115 08/13/2023 11:09 PAST HIT & RUN - 
ALPHA

537 GAFFNEY RD O6 RPT 08/13/2023 18:34:04

23003108 08/13/2023 02:59 ASSAULT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O16 RPT 08/13/2023 03:57:00

23002912 07/30/2023 19:29 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD L1 RPT 07/30/2023 19:39:26

07/30/2023 00:53 10-36 537 GAFFNEY RD L1 UTC 07/30/2023 01:21:46

07/23/2023 07:09 SUSPICIOUS VEHICLE 
- CHARLIE

537 GAFFNEY RD O50 NRP 07/23/2023 07:35:12

23002587 07/09/2023 15:54 SI - FOLLOW-UP 537 GAFFNEY RD O31 RPT 07/12/2023 15:09:06

23002587 07/09/2023 15:03 THEFT  - DELTA 537 GAFFNEY RD O31 RPT 07/09/2023 15:52:23

07/01/2023 02:26 DISTURBANCE 
PHYSICAL  DELTA

537 GAFFNEY RD O17 NRP 07/01/2023 02:48:37

23002281 06/18/2023 00:45 ASSAULT - BRAVO 537 GAFFNEY RD O20 RPT 06/18/2023 01:16:22

Total Number of Events Listed: 68

Page 2 of 2FPD Calls for Service 537 Ganney Rd



         
CITY OF FAIRBANKS CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
____________________________________________    _____________________________________________ 

800 Cushman Street Telephone (907) 459-6702 
Fairbanks, AK  99701      Fax (907) 459-6710 
 

City of Fairbanks | 800 Cushman Street | Fairbanks, Alaska 99701-4615 
www.fairbanksalaska.us  

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Mayor Pruhs and City Council Members 
 
FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Determination of Demolition Costs and Method of Cost Recovery, 719 Front Street 
 
DATE: June 19, 2024 

 
The demolition of the structure(s) located at 719 Front Street (Lot 18, Tract E, Graehl Townsite), 
owned by the Estate of Frederick Carroll, was completed on November 13, 2023. The total cost was 
$62,326.00.  
 
In accordance with Section 902 of the City Abatement Code, a notice of hearing, along with a copy of 
the 2015 City of Fairbanks Abatement Code and the abatement invoice, was sent to the property owner 
via certified mail on May 24, 2024.  Also pursuant to the Code, an advertisement of the public hearing 
was published in the Fairbanks Daily News Miner on Sunday, June 10, 2024.   
 
In accordance with Section 904 of the City Abatement Code, the Council must hold a hearing on the 
demolition cost report.   
 
The purpose of the hearing is to:   

1. Hear and consider any written objections or protests to the proposed report; 
2. Make such revision, correction, or modification to the report or to the charges as the City 

Council may deem just; 
3. Confirm or reject the report; and  
4. Determine whether to assign a personal obligation of the property owner and/or to create a lien 

against the property.   
 
As of the date of this memorandum, no written objections have been filed with the City Clerk's Office.   
 
First, a motion to confirm the report is in order; the Council may discuss and modify the report or 
charges.  If the Council approves the report, a second motion would be appropriate to determine 
whether to make the charges a personal obligation of the property owner and/or create a lien against 
the property.   
 
Thank you. 

http://www.fairbanksalaska.us/


CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
Office of the City Clerk 
800 CUSHMAN STREET 

FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 99701-4615 

OFFICE: 907-459-6774 

FAX: 907-459-6710 

dsnider@fairbanks.us 

 

May 24, 2024 
 

Frederick Carroll     Certified Letter No. 7022-3330-0001-8317-7698 

c/o Robert Austin Pers. Rep. 

1097 Freshwater Park Street 

Port Angeles, WA  98363-8501 
 

Re: Abatement at 719 Front Street  

 Tax Lot 18, Tract E, Graehl Townsite 

 Notice of Hearing 

 Determination of Demolition Costs and Method of Recovery 
 

Mr. Carroll: 
 

In accordance with the City of Fairbanks Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings, a public hearing 

will be held on Monday, June 24, 2024, at the City Council Chambers located at City Hall, 800 Cushman 

Street, Fairbanks, regarding the demolition costs for the property located at 719 Front Street. The meeting 

will begin at 6:30 p.m. Remote participation is permitted. If you wish to participate remotely via Zoom, 

visit https://www.fairbanksalaska.us/citycouncil/page/stay-connected-city-council to learn more about how 

to do so, or contact the City Clerk.  
 

The purpose of the hearing is for the City Council to hear and pass upon the report of demolition costs, 

along with any objections or protests filed with the City Clerk’s Office. The City Council may revise, 

correct, or modify the report or the charges before confirming or rejecting. The City Council’s decision on 

the matter will be final and conclusive.  
 

The City Council may order that the charge be made a personal obligation of you, the property owner, 

and/or be made a lien against the property. Any person affected by a decision of the City Council in this 

regard may appeal to the State of Alaska Superior Court at Fairbanks. Any such appeal must be filed within 

30 days of the City Council’s decision and must comply with the Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure. 
 

If you have any questions regarding this notice of hearing you may contact me at (907) 459-6774.  
 

Sincerely, 
 

 

D. Danyielle Snider 

Fairbanks City Clerk 
 

Cc: David Pruhs, City Mayor 

 Clem Clooten, Building Official 

 Jeff Jacobson, Public Works Director 

 Thomas Chard II, City Attorney 

 Abatement file 
 

Encl: City of Fairbanks Abatement Code 

 Abatement Invoice, 719 Front Street 

mailto:dsnider@fairbanks.us
https://www.fairbanksalaska.us/citycouncil/page/stay-connected-city-council


2015 City of Fairbanks Abatement Code 

(as Amended by Ordinance No. 6161, April 12, 2021) 

17 of 18 Page 

If any part of the work is to be accomplished by private contract, standard public works contractual 

procedures will be followed. 

 

801.2 Costs. The cost of such work will be paid from the general fund and may be made from a 

special assessment against the property involved and/or a personal obligation of the property 

owner, as the city council shall determine appropriate.  

 

CHAPTER 9 

RECOVERY OF COST OF REPAIR OR DEMOLITION 

 

SECTION 901 - ACCOUNT OF EXPENSE, FILING OF REPORT 

 

The director of public works shall keep an itemized account of the expense incurred in the repair 

or demolition of any building done pursuant to the provisions of Section 701.3, Item 3, of this 

code. Upon the completion of the work of repair or demolition, the director shall prepare and file 

with the city clerk a report specifying the work done, the itemized and total cost of the work, a 

description of the real property upon which the building or structure is or was located, and the 

names and addresses of the persons entitled to notice pursuant to Section 401.3. 

 

SECTION 902 - NOTICE OF HEARING 

 

Upon receipt of the report, the city clerk shall schedule a date for the council to hear the report and 

any protests or objections thereto. The clerk shall publish notice of the hearing once in a newspaper 

of general circulation in this jurisdiction and shall mail a copy of the notice by certified mail, 

postage prepaid, addressed to the owner of the property as the owner's name and address appears 

on the  borough’s property tax records, if it appears, or as known to the clerk.  In addition, the 

building official shall cause notice of the hearing to be posted upon the property involved.  Such 

notice will be given at least 10 days prior to the date set for the hearing and will specify the day, 

hour and place when the council will hear and pass upon the director's report, together with any 

objections or protests which may be filed as hereinafter provided by any person interested in or 

affected by the proposed charge. 

 

SECTION 903 - PROTESTS AND OBJECTIONS 

 

Any person interested in or affected by the proposed charge may file written protests or objections 

with the clerk at any time prior to the time set for the hearing on the report of the director. Each 

such protest or objection must contain a description of the property in which the signer thereof is 

interested and the grounds of the protest or objection. The clerk shall endorse on every such protest 

or objection the date of receipt. The clerk shall present such protests or objections to the council 

at the time set for the hearing, and no other protests or objections will be considered. 

 

SECTION 904 - HEARING OF PROTESTS 

 

Upon the day and hour fixed for the hearing, the council shall hear and pass upon the report of the 

director, together with any objections or protests. The council may make such revision, correction 

or modification in the report or the charge as it may deem just; and when the council is satisfied 

ddsnider
Highlight



2015 City of Fairbanks Abatement Code 

(as Amended by Ordinance No. 6161, April 12, 2021) 

18 of 18 Page 

with the correctness of the charge, the report (as submitted or as revised, corrected or modified) 

together with the charge, will be confirmed or rejected. The decision of the council on the report 

and the charge, and on all protests or objections, will be final and conclusive. 

 

SECTION 905 - PERSONAL OBLIGATION AND PROPERTY LIEN 

 

905.1 General. The council may order that the charge be made a personal obligation of the 

property owner and/or a lien against the property. 

 

905.2 Personal Obligation. If the council orders that the charge be a personal obligation of the 

property owner, it shall direct the city attorney to collect the charge on behalf of the city by use of 

all appropriate legal remedies. 

 

905.3 Property Lien. If the council orders that the charge be made a lien against the property, it 

shall direct that the lien be recorded. The lien will be paramount to all other liens except for state 

and borough property taxes with which it will be upon a parity. The lien will continue until paid 

in full.   

 

905.4 Interest. All charges imposed by the council remaining unpaid after 30 days from the date 

of recording will become delinquent and will bear interest at the legal rate from and after that date. 

 

SECTION 906 – APPEAL 

 

Any person affected by a decision of council under Sections 904 and 905, may appeal to the State 

of Alaska Superior Court at Fairbanks.  Any such appeal must be filed within 30 days of the 

council’s decision and must comply with the Alaska Rules of Appellate Procedure. 



Rhino Construction LLC 
General Contractor. Licensed. Bonded. Insured. 
P.O. Box 55416 
North Pole, Alaska 99705 
907.590.0570 

Rhinoconstruction@RhinoAlaska.com 
Residential Contractor Endorsement #124696 

   DEC Certified Installer #2022-30-1769 

 

City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 

RFP-23-17 
719 Front St 

Fairbanks, AK 99701 
Completed Date: 11-13-2023 

Invoice Date: 11-14-2023 
 

Scope of work completed per approved bid: 

Demoed structures, removed debris from both lots, removed 

all vehicles, filled in house basement hole with gravel, found 

one sewer line and installed sewer line plug. Found no fuel 

tanks. 

 

Invoice Total Due……………………………………….…………….$62,326.00 



CITY OF FAIRBANKS
Public Notice 

The Fairbanks City Council will hold a hearing on Monday, June 24, 2024, 
beginning at 6:30 p.m. in City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, 
Fairbanks, Alaska, to determine abatement costs incurred by the City of 
Fairbanks and the method of recovery of abatement costs for the following 
property:  

719 Front Street, Fairbanks, Alaska 
Lot 18, Tract E, Graehl Townsite

Protests or objections may be submitted for consideration by the City Council 
to the City Clerk. Protests or objections must contain a property description and 
the grounds of the protest or objection. City Council Meetings are being held 
remotely and in person. To learn more about remote participation, visit https://
www.fairbanksalaska.us/citycouncil/page/stay-connected-city-council or call 
the City Clerk at 907-459-6774.

D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk00075412



  Introduced by: Mayor Pruhs  
  Introduced: April 22, 2024 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 5116 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS AUTHORIZING AN 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH, THE 
CITY OF NORTH POLE, AND THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS TO JOINTLY 

PROVIDE FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
WHEREAS, A.S. § 29.35.110(c) authorizes second-class boroughs, including the 

Fairbanks North Star Borough (Borough), to expend tax revenue collected on an areawide basis 
for economic development if there is an agreement in place with a city located in the borough to 
cooperatively or jointly provide for economic development; and 

 
WHEREAS, A.S. § 29.35.110(c) was recently amended to include using revenue from 

other sources of funding including grants; and 
 

WHEREAS, AS § 29.71.800 defines economic development as "an action intended to 
result in an outcome that causes an increase in, or avoids a decrease of economic activity, gross 
domestic product, or the tax base;" and 

 
WHEREAS, Borough Resolution No. 2023-27 supports areawide cooperation and the 

joint provision of economic development stating that it is in the best interest of all borough citizens 
for the Borough to be able to spend tax revenue on economic development that will benefit the 
entire borough; that the cities of Fairbanks and North Pole and the Borough have been operating 
under an agreement signed by the Mayors of each jurisdiction since 2004; that economies are not 
bound by governmental boundaries; and that regardless of the source of the revenue, the Borough 
is not interested in acquiring an areawide power of economic development which would prohibit 
the City of North Pole or the City of Fairbanks from exercising economic development within their 
boundaries; and  

 
WHEREAS, Borough Resolution No. 2023-27  further states that the Borough has tracked 

areawide economic indicators since the 1970's through the Community Research Quarterly 
publication; that it is a resource for the exchange of local economic information between and 
amongst local businesses and municipal, state, and federal governments; and that the Economic 
Development Commission is a necessary and integral part of the coordination of economic 
development activities of the Borough and participates in specific economic development projects 
as they are proposed; and 

 
WHEREAS, approval of the proposed Memorandum of Agreement does not amend or 

modify the role of the Economic Development Commission nor does it infringe on, or eliminate, 
the appropriating power of the Borough Assembly, North Pole City Council, or Fairbanks City 
Council. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Fairbanks 

authorizes the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement with the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough and City of North Pole to jointly provide for economic development and authorizing each 



  

Resolution No. 5116 
Page 2 of 2 

municipality to: 
 
1. Apply for, receive, and administer grants.  

 

2. Take other action to develop, encourage, study, or finance economic development 
projects that benefit the City of Fairbanks and the entire borough, such as: 
 

a. Supporting economic development organizations that support key 
industries outlined in the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS) such as the Fairbanks Economic Development Corporation and 
Explore Fairbanks.  
 

b. Promoting, supporting, and facilitating projects for key economic industries 
as identified in the CEDS.  
 

3. Develop and maintain key economic indicators and metrics to be used for informing 
economic development decisions for the City of Fairbanks and the entire borough. 
 

4. Create and disseminate information on the economic status of the City of Fairbanks 
and entire borough in support of economic development actions. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED this ____ day of April 2024.  

 

 
 _______________________________ 
 David Pruhs, City Mayor 
 
 
YEAS:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 

 



ATTACHMENT TO 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS RESOLUTION NO. 5116 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, CITY OF NORTH POLE,  1 
AND THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH TO JOINTLY PROVIDE  2 

FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 3 
 4 

  WHEREAS, AS 29.35.110(c) authorizes a second-class borough to expend 5 
tax revenue collected on an areawide basis for economic development if an agreement is 6 
in place with a city located in the borough; and 7 
 8 
  WHEREAS, AS 29.35.110(c) was recently amended to include using revenue 9 
from other source of funds to include grants; and 10 
 11 

WHEREAS, The City of Fairbanks, the City of North Pole, and the Borough 12 
have been operating under an agreement signed by the Mayors of each jurisdiction since 13 
2004; and 14 

 15 
WHEREAS, It is in the best interest of all borough citizens for the Borough 16 

to be able to spend tax revenue on economic development that will benefit the entire 17 
borough, regardless of the source of the revenue; and 18 

 19 
WHEREAS, Economies are not necessarily bound by governmental 20 

boundaries; and 21 
 22 
WHEREAS, The Borough is not interested in acquiring an areawide power 23 

of economic development, which would prohibit the City of Fairbanks and the City of 24 
North Pole from exercising economic development within their boundaries; and 25 

 26 
  NOW THEREFORE that the parties agree to jointly provide for borough-wide 27 
economic development and authorizing each municipality to:  28 
 29 

1. Apply for, receive, and administer grants. 30 



Fairbanks North Star Borough, Alaska   
Page 2 of 2 

 

2. Take other action to develop, encourage, study, or finance economic 31 
development projects that benefit the entire borough, such as: 32 

a. Support economic development organizations that support key 33 
industries outlined in the Comprehensive Economic Development 34 
Strategy (CEDS), such as the Fairbanks Economic Development 35 
Corporation and Explore Fairbanks. 36 

b. Promote, support, and facilitate projects for key economic industries as 37 
identified in the CEDS. 38 

3. Develop and maintain key economic indicators and metrics to be used for 39 
informing economic development decisions for the entire borough. 40 

4. Create and disseminate information on the economic status of the entire 41 
borough in support of economic development actions. 42 

 43 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this _____ DAY 44 
OF __________ 20____. 45 
 46 
 _____________________________ 47 
 Bryce Ward, Mayor 48 
 Fairbanks North Star Borough 49 
 50 
 51 
 _____________________________ 52 
 David Pruhs, Mayor 53 
 City of Fairbanks 54 
ATTEST:      55 
 56 
________________________________ ______________________________ 57 
April Trickey, MMC Michael Welch, Mayor 58 
Borough Clerk  City of North Pole 59 



 Introduced by:  Mayor David Pruhs 
 Introduced:  June 24, 2024 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 5126 

 
A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO LONG BUILDING 
TECHNOLOGIES INC FOR SECURITY UPGRADES AT THE FIRE 

TRAINING CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $304,044 
  

WHEREAS, in accordance with FGC Chapter 54, Article VI, Section 54-241, the 
purchasing agent may award a contract when there is only one source for the required 
purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City identified that Long Building Technologies, Inc. can provide 

a suite of physical and technological security upgrades that will integrate with the City’s 
existing system at the Fire Training Center for the first phase of this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City intends to contract with Long Building Technologies, Inc. in 

the amount of three hundred four thousand, forty-four dollars and zero cents 
$304,044.00); and 

 
WHEREAS, funding was approved in the Capital Fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor or his 

designee is authorized to execute a contract with Long Building Technologies, Inc. for 
security upgrades at the Fire Training Center in the amount of $304,044. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 24th Day of June 2024. 

 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 David Pruhs, City Mayor 
 
 
YEAS:  
NAYS:  
ABSENT  
APPROVED:  
 
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk Thomas A Chard II, City Attorney  



Resolution No. 5126 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 5126

Abbreviated Title: AWARDING CONTRACT TO LONG BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES, INC

Department(s): IT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No x

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

PURCHASE 
COST

$304,044

$304,044

TOTAL

$304,044

$304,044

 
Initial mb Date  6/12/2024

TOTAL

The maintenance costs associated with this project will be incorporated in the annual information technology general fund 
budget.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

CAPITAL FUND (PUBLIC FACILITIES)

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:

PROJECTS:

FAIRBANKS TRAINING CENTER SECURITY UPGRADES

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?



Introduced by:  Mayor Pruhs 

Date:  June 24, 2024 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 5127 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING UPDATES TO THE CITY OF 

FAIRBANKS EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (EOP) 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks recognizes the need to prepare for disasters of all 

types; and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 

Assistance Act (Public Law 93-288, 42 USC 5121-5207) as amended, the City of Fairbanks is 

responsible for taking appropriate actions to prepare for local emergencies; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks supports the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) 

Multi-Hazard, Multi-Jurisdictional Mitigation Plan; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) augments the 

FNSB plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the EOP was last updated on February 10, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, over several months Fire Chief Coccaro and Driver Field led an effort 

across all City departments to thoroughly update the Emergency Operations Plan. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF FAIRBANKS that the attached updates to the City of Fairbanks Emergency 

Operations Plan are hereby adopted. 

 

 PASSED and APPROVED this 24th day of  June 2024. 

 

 

______________________________ 

David Pruhs, City Mayor 

 

 

AYES:   

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

APPROVED:  

 

 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ ______________________________ 

D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

February 10, 2014  

 

 

City of Fairbanks, Alaska 
Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page ii 
   

PREAMBLE 
 
 

SUPPORTING THE PROMULGATION OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN (EOP) 

 

PREAMBLE: Pursuant to the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency 
Assistance Act, (Public Law 93-288, 42 USC 5121-5207) as amended, the City of 
Fairbanks, a political sub-division of the state of Alaska, is legally responsible for ensuring 
that necessary and appropriate actions are taken to protect people and property from the 
consequences of emergencies and disasters within its jurisdiction. In accordance with 
Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) 5, all agencies or departments that 
have responsibilities delineated in this EOP will use the National Incident Management 
System (NIMS). NIMS enable proper coordination between local, state, and federal 
organizations in emergency response. Furthermore, the Incident Command System (ICS) 
will be utilized to manage emergency events. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page iii 
   

PROMULGATION 
PROMULGATION: This EOP directs certain individuals and organizations to mitigate, 
prepare for, respond to, and recover from the effects of a disaster that might affect or has 
occurred in the City of Fairbanks. The EOP is written with explicit interest in the welfare 
and safety of the citizens of and visitors to the City of Fairbanks. It provides the framework 
to better prepare for and to more quickly recover from disasters, thereby saving lives, 
property and resources.    

Under the authority of the Mayor and Council, this EOP, its attachments, appendices, and 
annexes are adopted as City policy.  City officials having managerial or operational 
responsibilities for executing this EOP shall take all necessary measures to ensure they 
and their appropriate personnel are familiar with the duties and responsibilities specified 
therein.  This version of the EOP supersedes all previous versions. 

This EOP will improve the City’s ability to prepare for, respond to, and recover from a 
wide variety of hazards & events. This plan and its provisions will become official when it 
has been signed and dated by the Mayor.   

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page iv 
   

RECORD OF CHANGES 
 
DATE REVISED 

 
PAGES REVISED 

 
REVISED BY 

1/14/20114 Base Plan Olson Group and UAF 
06/18/2024 All City of Fairbanks EM Director 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page v 
   

DISTRIBUTION LIST 
Name Agency/Dept. Address Phone Fax Email Initials 

Andrew Coccaro, Fire 
Chief / Emerg Mgr 

Fairbanks Fire 
Department 

1101 Cushman St. 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 450-6604 (907) 450-6666 acoccaro@fairbanks.us   

David Pruhs, Mayor City of Fairbanks 
Mayor’s Office 

800 Cushman St. 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6793 (907) 459-6787 Dpruhs3@fairbanks.us   

Tomas Chard, Att. City Attorney’s Office 800 Cushman St. 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6750 (907) 459-6761 tchard@fairbanks.us   

Clem Clooten, Bldg 
Official 

Building Department 800 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 450-6720 (907) 459-6719 cmclooten@ci.fairbanks.a
k.us  

 

Danyielle Snider, City 
Clerk 

Clerk’s Office 800 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6702 (907) 459-6710 dsnider@fairbanks.us   

Kristi Merideth, Disp 
Mgr 

Fbks Emerg 
Communication Ctr 

911 Cushman St. 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 450-6588 (907) 452-1588 kmerideth@fairbanks.us   

Bob Pristash, 
Director 

Public Works / City 
Engineering 

800 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6770                 
(907) 459-6740 

(907) 456-6276 
(907) 452 5913 

rpristash@fairbanks.us   

Margarita Bell, Chief 
Financial Officer 

City Finance 
Department 

800 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6706 (907) 459-6722 mbell@fairbanks.us   

Jake Merritt, Director HR  800 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6780 (907) 459-6731 Jmerritt2@fairbanks.us   

Mike Sanders, 
Director 

Information 
Technology 

800 Cushman St. 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-6796 (907) 456-1712 msanders@fairbanks.us  

Ron Dupee, Police 
Chief 

Fairbanks Police 
Department 

911 Cushman St 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 450-6513 (907) 452-6276 rdupee@fairbanks.us   

       
Chad Heineken, Fire 
Chief 

North Pole Fire 
Department 

125 Snowman Ln. 
North Pole, AK  
99705 

(907) 488-0444 (907) 488-3747 blane@northpolefire.org   

Nacy Durham, Emerg 
Mgr.   

FNSB Emerg 
Operations 

3175 Peger Road 
Fairbanks, AK  
99701 

(907) 459-1219 (907) 459-1119 Nancy.durham@fnsb.gov   

       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       
       

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li

mailto:tchard@fairbanks.us
mailto:cmclooten@ci.fairbanks.ak.us
mailto:cmclooten@ci.fairbanks.ak.us
mailto:rpristash@fairbanks.us
mailto:mbell@fairbanks.us
mailto:blane@northpolefire.org


City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page vi 
   

 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PREAMBLE ......................................................................................................................ii 
Promulgation ................................................................................................................... iii 
Record of Changes .........................................................................................................iv 
Distribution List ................................................................................................................ v 
Table of Contents ............................................................................................................ 1 
Purpose and Scope ......................................................................................................... 2 

Purpose ....................................................................................................................... 2 
Scope .......................................................................................................................... 3 

Situation and Assumptions .............................................................................................. 4 
Situation ....................................................................................................................... 4 
Assumptions ................................................................................................................ 6 

Concept of Operations .................................................................................................... 8 
General ........................................................................................................................ 8 
Organization of the Emergency Operations Center ..................................................... 8 
Components of the ICS General Staff ....................................................................... 11 

Operations Section ................................................................................................. 11 
Planning Section .................................................................................................... 12 
Finance and Administration Section ....................................................................... 12 
Logistics Section .................................................................................................... 12 

Emergency Support Functions .................................................................................. 12 
Incident Command System and Emergency Support Functions in the EOC ...... 16 

Actions by Phases of Emergency Management ..................................................... 17 
Organization &  Assignment of Responsibilities ............................................................ 19 

Non-Emergency Organization ................................................................................... 19 
Emergency Organization ........................................................................................... 19 

Emergency Management Chain of Command ....................................................... 19 
Emergency Support Functions (ESF) Summary .................................................... 20 
Responsibilities ...................................................................................................... 24 

Direction, Control, and Coordination ............................................................................. 26 
Plan Development and Maintenance............................................................................. 27 

General ...................................................................................................................... 27 
Schedule of Review ................................................................................................... 27 
Training and Exercises .............................................................................................. 27 

Actions, Legal Authorities, and References ................................................................... 28 
Actions Under Local Emergencies ............................................................................. 28 

Declaring a Local Emergency ................................................................................ 28 
Powers of the City Executive during a Local Emergency ....................................... 28 
City Employees as Emergency Workers ................................................................ 28 
Acceptance of Donations ....................................................................................... 28 
Violation of Emergency Regulations ...................................................................... 29 
Local Emergency Deactivation ............................................................................... 29 

Legal Authorities ........................................................................................................ 29 
National/Federal Laws and Regulations ................................................................. 29 
State Emergency Laws and Regulations ............................................................... 31 
City of Fairbanks Emergency Laws and Regulations ............................................. 31 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 2 

PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
Purpose 

The purpose of this Basic Plan is to establish the legal and organizational basis for 
operations in the City of Fairbanks in response to any type of disaster or large-scale 
emergency situation. It assigns broad responsibilities to local government agencies and 
support organizations for disaster mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery. 
These responsibilities are generally extensions of normal, day-to-day functions involving 
the same personnel and material resources. This supporting Plan set forth the concepts 
and procedures whereby the City can effectively respond to both natural and manmade 
disasters. More specific purposes this Plan serves to;   

1. Reduce the vulnerability of people of this City to injury & loss of life, and damage 
to property resulting from natural, technological or manmade emergencies, 
catastrophes, or hostile military or paramilitary action.  

2. Drive decisions on long-term prevention and mitigation efforts or risk-based 
preparedness measures directed at specific hazards. 

3. Prepare for prompt and efficient response and recovery to protect lives and 
property affected by emergencies.  

4. Be flexible enough for use in all emergencies. The EOP describes the purpose of 
the Plan, situation and assumptions, concept of operations, organization and 
assignment of responsibilities, administration and logistics, plan development and 
maintenance, and authorities and references. Additional documents such as 
procedures, handbooks, checklists, etc. provide more details and tasks.  

5. Respond to emergencies using all systems, plans and resources necessary to 
preserve the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of and visitors to the City of 
Fairbanks. 

6. Recover from emergencies by providing for the rapid and orderly start of 
restoration and rehabilitation of persons and property affected by emergencies.  

7. Minimize damage to property, material shortages, and service system disruptions 
which would have an adverse impact on the residents, the economy, and the well-
being of the City. 

8. Manage emergency operations within the City by coordinating the use of resources 
available from municipal governments, private industry, civic and volunteer 
organizations, Borough, State, and Federal agencies. 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 3 

Scope 

The Basic Plan describes the various types of emergencies that are likely to occur in the 
City of Fairbanks. The Basic Plan further provides procedures for disseminating warnings, 
coordinating response, ordering evacuations, opening shelters, and for determining, 
assessing, and reporting the severity and magnitude of such emergencies. The Basic 
Plan establishes the concept under which the City and its response partners will operate 
in response to natural and manmade disasters by: 

1. Establishing fundamental policies, program strategies and assumptions. 
2. Establishing a concept of operations spanning the direction and control of an 

emergency from initial monitoring through post-disaster response and recovery.  
3. Defining the responsibilities of elected and appointed local government officials.  
4. Defining the emergency roles and functions of City and municipal departments and 

agencies, private industries, and volunteer and civic organizations. 
5. Creating a framework through a hybrid of the Incident Command System (ICS) and 

Emergency Support Function (ESF) concept for effective and coordinated 
utilization of City government resources. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 4 

SITUATION AND ASSUMPTIONS 
Situation 

1. Community Profile – They 
call Fairbanks the Golden 
Heart City. Between the 
City’s history as an 
energetic mining town, its 
location in the heart of 
Alaska, the midnight sun 
and genuine hospitality, the 
name is no misnomer. Its 
Alaska’s second largest city 
and a hub to the interior. The 
Chena River courses 
through town.  
Fairbanks was an energetic 
town long before Alaska was 
even a state, beginning back 
in 1902 when gold was discovered 
here. The city’s most famous dredge, Gold Dredge No. 8 — still the most viewed 
in the state — recovered more than 7 million ounces of gold from 1928-1959. The 
construction of the Alaska Railroad, the Alaska Highway and the trans-Alaska oil 
pipeline all contributed to the growth of Fairbanks. It was even home to the original 
campus of University of Alaska, incorporated in 1917. More than 100 years after 
its inception, Fairbanks is a boomtown of oil, gas, gold and coal mining, a 
flourishing university and of course: tourism.  
Fairbanks is located in the central Tanana Valley, straddling the Chena River near 
its confluence with the Tanana River. Immediately north of the city is a chain of 
hills that rises gradually until it reaches the White Mountains and the Yukon River. 
The southern border of the city is the Tanana River. South of the river is the Tanana 
Flats, an area of marsh and bog that stretches for more than 100 miles (160 km) 
until it rises into the Alaska Range, which is visible from Fairbanks on clear days. 
To the east and west are low valleys separated by ridges of hills up to 3,000 feet 
(910 m) above sea level. 
The Tanana Valley is crossed by many low streams and rivers that flow into the 
Tanana River. In Fairbanks, the Chena River flows southwest until it empties into 
the Tanana. Noyes Slough, which heads and foots off the Chena River, creates 
Garden Island, a district connected to the rest of Fairbanks by bridges roads. 
According to the United States Census Bureau, the city has a total area of 32.7 
square miles (85 km2); 31.9 square miles (83 km2) of it is land and 0.8 square 
miles (2.1 km2) of it (2.48%) is water. 

Figure 1: City of Fairbanks, Alaska 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 5 

Fairbanks, unlike other larger cities in Alaska, still has a separate borough and city. 
The City of Fairbanks was incorporated on November 10, 1903.  

2. Demographic Characteristics – With 30,547 (June 2012) people based on the 2010 
Census), Fairbanks is the 3rd most populated city in the state of Alaska out of 333 
cities.  
In 2010, the median household income of Fairbanks residents was $51,320. 
However, 11.0% of Fairbanks residents live in poverty. 
The median age for Fairbanks residents is 27.9 years young. 
The largest Fairbanks racial/ethnic groups are White (78%), Black (5%). followed 
by Native American (7%), and Asian (3.0%) The remainder of the population is 
made up of other or mixed ethnicities. 

3. Transportation – As the transportation hub for Interior Alaska, Fairbanks features 
extensive road, rail, and air connections to the rest of Alaska and outside Alaska. 
At Fairbanks' founding, the only way to reach the new city was via steamboat on 
the Chena River. In 1904, money intended to improve the Valdez-Eagle Trail was 
diverted to build a branch trail, giving Fairbanks its first overland connection to the 
outside world. The resulting Richardson Highway was created in 1910 after Gen. 
Wilds P. Richardson upgraded it to a wagon road. In the 1920s, it was improved 
further and made navigable by automobiles, but it was not paved until 1957.  
Fairbanks' road connections were improved in 1927, when the 161-mile Steese 
Highway connected the city to the Yukon River at the gold-mining community of 
Circle. In 1942, the Alaska Highway connected the Richardson Highway to the 
Canadian road system, allowing road travel from the rest of the United States to 
Fairbanks, which is considered the unofficial end of the highway. Because of World 
War II, civilian traffic was not permitted on the Highway until 1948. 
In the late 1960s and early 1970s, a series of roads were built to connect Fairbanks 
to the oil fields of Prudhoe Bay. The Elliott Highway was built in 1957 to connect 
Fairbanks to Livengood, southern terminus of the Dalton Highway, which ends in 
Deadhorse on the North Slope. West of the Dalton intersection, the Elliott Highway 
extends to Manley Hot Springs on the Tanana River. To improve logistics in 
Fairbanks during construction of the Trans-Alaska Pipeline, the George Parks 
Highway was built between Fairbanks and Palmer in 1971. 
Until 1940, none of Fairbanks' surface streets were paved. The outbreak of World 
War II interrupted plans to pave most of the city's roads, and a movement toward 
large-scale paving did not begin until 1953, when the city paved 30 blocks of 
streets. During the late 1950s and the 1960s, remainders of the city’s streets were 
converted from gravel roads to asphalt surfaces. Few have been repaved since 
that time; a 2008 survey of city streets indicated the average age of a street in 
Fairbanks was 31 years.  
Public transportation has been provided by the Metropolitan Area Commuter 
System (MACS), an agency of the borough government, since 1977. Bus service 
links much of the urban Fairbanks area, with most routes connecting at the 
downtown transit center. University Bus Lines, a private company, existed for 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 6 

several decades before MACS started. The company mainly linked downtown 
Fairbanks with the university campus and the military bases. 
Commercial airlines connect Fairbanks to the rest of Alaska as well as the lower 
48 and select international destinations via Fairbanks International Airport. 

4. Climate – Interior Alaska experiences seasonal temperature extremes with 
January temperatures ranging from -66 to 50 °F, and July temperatures from 30 to 
99 °F. Annual precipitation averages 10.37 inches with approximately 68 inches of 
snowfall. During the winter months, the area can experience ice fog when 
temperature drops below -20 °F. Fairbanks is known for its lingering summer days 
with more than 22 hours of daylight at Summer Solstice. 

5. Hazard Analysis – Residents in the City of Fairbanks are subject to the effects of 
several primary hazards. Because of the existing and continuing possibility of the 
occurrence of natural and manmade emergencies and disasters in the City of 
Fairbanks, the City must be prepared to respond to, recover from, and reduce the 
vulnerability to such events. Extreme situations may create conditions that require 
evacuations, sheltering, medical treatment, restoration of services, and recovery 
assistance. When dealing with these conditions, operations may be required 
around-the-clock and will require extraordinary measures to manage available 
resources. The major natural hazards that occur in or around the City are 
earthquakes, severe weather, floods, volcanic ash, and wildland fires. The City of 
Fairbanks is within a nationally designated flood zone. The flood zone information 
and data will be added as an attachment to the plan. While other types of hazards 
– both natural and manmade – have the potential to impact City residents, this 
Plan focuses on the types of incidents that are severe enough to require an 
ongoing and a potentially prolonged response from the City and support from the 
borough, state, and federal government. A detailed hazard analysis has recently 
been conducted between the City and the FNSB and is contained in the Hazard 
Mitigation Plan.  

6. The City of Fairbanks and the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) are currently 
developing a Hazard Mitigation Plan. A Vulnerability Assessment (conducted by 
the State of Alaska DHS) has been completed.  Both documents shall become a 
part of this plan by reference in draft or final form.  

Assumptions 
1. Emergencies of various types, size, intensity, and duration may occur within or 

near the jurisdictional boundaries of the City with or without warning.  These 
emergencies can develop into disasters that affect the safety, health, and welfare 
of the population and cause damage or destruction to private and public property.  

2. The government of the City of Fairbanks is responsible for maintaining the 
emergency plan and response capability to protect the lives and property of its 
citizens from the effects of both man-made and natural disasters. City government 
must continue to function throughout a disaster or emergency situation.  

3. This plan will be officially adopted by the City Council and promulgated by the 
Mayor.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 7 

4. The Emergency Manager (Fire Chief) maintains the Emergency Operations Plan. 
The Emergency Manager will coordinate with each emergency resource 
organization and assure the development and maintenance of an appropriate 
emergency response capability.  The Plan will be reviewed and updated annually, 
as necessary.  The Emergency Manager should have the Plan readopted every 
five years.  

5. In the event of an emergency situation that exceeds local emergency response 
capabilities, outside assistance is available, either through mutual support 
agreements with nearby jurisdictions and volunteer emergency organizations or, 
through the State Emergency Operation Center (EOC).  A local emergency must 
be declared and local resources must be fully committed before State and Federal 
assistance is requested. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 8 

CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
General 

The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) uses the National Response 
Framework (NRF) to improve the EOP and its functionalities. With State and Federal 
documents as guiding sources, the plan is written with the concept that the City of 
Fairbanks bears primary responsibility for disaster response and recovery. The City of 
Fairbanks structure for emergency operations consists of existing government 
departments and other public and private emergency response organizations.  

Each City department is responsible for ensuring that the specific Support Function for 
which they are the primary organization fulfills its applicable responsibilities. That 
obligation includes resources and personnel, which means each department needs to be 
cognizant of their available equipment and other physical resources and those resources’ 
disposition, as well as ensuring that personnel are aware of and trained on the 
department’s responsibilities.  

The City Mayor may declare an immediate local emergency lasting up to seven days, and 
the declaration can be extended with the consent of the City Council. The declaration of 
a local emergency activates the Emergency Operations Plan and authorizes the provision 
of aid and assistance there under.  A local emergency should be declared when a 
coordinated response among several local agencies/organizations is required, or when it 
becomes necessary to incur substantial and extraordinary financial obligations in order to 
protect the health and safety of persons and property or to provide assistance to the 
victims of a disaster. 

When local resources are insufficient to cope with the effects of a disaster and the City 
requests State assistance, the following procedures will apply. The Emergency Manager 
will directly communicate or, by Situation Report (SITREP) to the State Emergency 
Manager, will indicate that a local emergency has been declared, that the local 
Emergency Operations Plan has been implemented, that available resources have been 
committed, that state assistance is being requested and, if appropriate, that it is 
recommended that the Governor declare a state of emergency.  A copy of the resolution 
declaring a local emergency with Mayoral signature should be emailed or faxed as soon 
as possible to the State EOC.  

Organization of the Emergency Operations Center 

The Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will use the Incident Command System (ICS) 
organizational structure and procedures for emergency response.  

This plan is not intended for use as an in-depth primer on the Incident Command System. 
Excellent resources are available on line and for no cost for those who wish to expand 
their expertise in the ICS fundamentals and applications. The following content will help 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 9 

EOP users better understand the organizational construct of the Fairbanks EOC through 
a brief explanation of ICS.  

The Incident Command System is a standardized, on-scene, all-hazards incident 
management approach that: 

• Allows for the integration of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures and 
communications operating within a common organizational structure.  

• Enables a coordinated response among various jurisdictions and functional 
agencies, both public and private.  

• Establishes common processes for planning and managing resources. 

All levels of government—federal, state, tribal and local—use ICS. It is also used by many 
nongovernmental organizations and in the private sector. ICS is also applicable across 
disciplines (for example by fire departments, but also by hospitals, or by law 
enforcement).  

ICS is typically structured to facilitate activities in five major functional areas:  

1. Command  
2. Operations  
3. Planning  
4. Finance/Administration  
5. Logistics 

All of the functional areas may or may not be used based on the incident needs. 
Intelligence/Investigations is an optional sixth functional area that is activated on a case-
by-case basis. 

As a system, ICS is extremely useful; not only does it provide an organizational structure 
for incident management but it also guides the process for planning, building and adapting 
that structure. Using ICS for every incident or planned event helps hone and maintain 
skills needed for the large-scale incidents. 

Generally, ICS command in an EOC includes: 

• Incident Commander 

• Command Staff 

• General Staff 

As noted on the following page, the ICS structure consists of five major functional areas, 
divided basically into Command Staff responsibilities and General Staff responsibilities.   

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 10 

 

 

Figure 2: EOC ICS Structure 

 

Command Staff responsibilities include senior level executive policy and decision 
making, interaction and strategizing by members of the Unified Command (where 
applicable), establishing and maintaining appropriate operational safety protocols, 
ensuring timely and accurate information is passed to the media and general public, and 
maintaining effective liaison with key event stakeholders such as elected officials, outside 
technical specialists, advocacy groups, and Borough, State and Federal emergency 
response officials. 

General Staff responsibilities involve the “nuts and bolts” activities that drive an effective 
and efficient response.  Operations are the actual on scene activities such as search and 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Public Safety 
Branch

Infrastructure 
Branch

Recovery Branch

Finance Section Logistics Section

EOC Support 
Branch

External 
Activities 

Support Branch

Safety Public 
Information

Liaison OfficerC
om

m
an

d 
St

af
f 

G
en

er
al

 S
ta

ff
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 11 

rescue, environmental response, firefighting, evacuation, maintaining civil order, repair 
and restoration of critical infrastructure, and other critical activities that are essential to 
mitigating the impact of the event and returning to normal as soon as possible.  Planning 
involves information gathering and analysis, maintaining situational awareness, and 
developing realistic incident action plans that address both current and anticipated 
conditions.  Logistics involves the timely acquisition of supplies, materials, equipment 
and qualified personnel necessary to deal effectively with the event- “getting the right stuff 
to the right place at the right time.”  Finance/Administration involves recordkeeping, bill 
paying, contract administration, and related fiscal, legal and personnel issues that are 
associated with the event. 

Components of the ICS General Staff 

The following brief descriptions provide further information regarding various roles within 
the general staff sections. Depending on the scale and/or complexity of the incident, some 
or all of these positions may be staffed. It may also be that one person/group has 
responsibility for multiple task areas within a section, given that this multi-tasking does 
not exceed a reasonable span of control for any one individual or group.  

Operations Section 

The Operations Section is responsible for supervising, coordinating and performing 
activities in the field that are directly intended to save human life, protect the environment 
and critical infrastructure, promote public safety and maintain civil order, mitigate the 
effects of the event, and recover and return to normal as quickly as possible.  The 
Operations Section will often be the largest section in the ICS organization, and typically 
involves large numbers of “first responders”.   

To ensure adequate oversight of all of the responsibilities and activities that fall under the 
Operations Section in a complex event, the section is subdivided then into three key 
Branches: Public Safety; Infrastructure, and Recovery.   Each Branch has been further 
subdivided into specialized Groups, each tasked with performing specific activities that 
require unique technical skills, legal authorities, and/or specialized equipment and 
training. 

The Public Safety Branch manages those aspects of the response that typically involve 
first responders, and address essential lifesaving activities, environmental protection, 
public health and well-being, and maintenance of civil order.   

The Infrastructure Branch manages those personnel and activities involved in the 
restoration of transportation systems, communications systems, public utilities, 
reservoirs, dams, dikes, sewers and water treatment facilities, and the assessment of the 
structural integrity and safety of residential structures and city owned buildings. 

The Recovery Branch is responsible for ensuring the proper implementation of 
Continuity of Operations Plans (COOP), and conducting post incident damage 
assessments, debris removal operations, and assisting affected individuals and 
businesses in preparing applications for applicable reconstruction grants.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 12 

Planning Section 

The Planning Section is responsible for collecting, evaluating, and disseminating tactical 
information and intelligence pertaining to the incident. This section maintains information 
and intelligence on the current and forecasted situation, as well as the status of resources 
assigned to the incident. The Planning Section prepares and documents Incident Action 
Plans (IAP) and incident maps, gathers and disseminates information and intelligence 
critical to the incident to interested parties, and provides technical assistance to other 
branches and functional groups in the EOC.   

Finance and Administration Section 

The Finance and Administration Section provides administrative and accounting functions 
to support the activities associated with the event and its aftermath. These functions 
include, but are not limited to, maintaining audit trails, billing, and administration of 
contracts, invoice payments, and grant and reimbursement activities.  

Logistics Section 

The Logistics Section is responsible for acquiring and delivering the proper personnel, 
equipment, resources, and materiel to the correct destination at the right time so that the 
incident can be resolved in the most effective and efficient manner possible.   

To ensure adequate oversight of all of the responsibilities and activities that fall under the 
Logistics Section in a complex event, the section is subdivided then into two key 
Branches:  

• EOC Support  
• External Activities Support  

Emergency Support Functions 

Emergency Support Functions (ESFs) were initially developed to provide the structure for 
coordinating Federal interagency support for a Federal response to an incident. ESFs 
group emergency response tasks into 15 function-specific groups (some jurisdictions 
choose to add groups to address the specific needs of their jurisdiction). 

All of these functions apply to some degree at the city level as well.  Incorporating the 
ESF concept into our local planning, preparedness, and response model ensures several 
key objectives are met.  

• Aligns Fairbanks model with the National Response Framework (NRF) and 
the Alaska Emergency Operations Plan, providing continuity and 
consistency with State and Federal partners.  

• Provides an effective template for assigning a responsible agency or 
agencies to each function, and subsequently placing that function within the 
appropriate ICS General Staff element.    

• Aids in the all-hazards planning process by ensuring no key functions are 
overlooked. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 13 

While the EOC is not organized according to ESFs, they are a very useful organizational 
tool for understanding the function of each role in the EOC. Understanding ESFs is useful 
when communicating with State and Federal partners. The following chart will facilitate 
this by briefly describing each ESF and its associated functional Annex. 

 

ESF Title Scope 

1 Annex A: 
Transportation 

• Coordinate and process transportation 
resources and people (evacuation) 

• Report damage to transportation 
infrastructure 

• Coordinate alternate transportation service 
• Coordinate the restoration and recovery of 

the transportation infrastructure  

2 Annex B: 
Communication 

• Provide temporary communications to 
support incident management 

• Facilitate the restoration of the 
communications infrastructure 

• Supports all state agencies in the 
procurement and coordination of 
communications services from the 
communications and information 
technology industry during an incident 
response. 

3 
Annex C: Public 
Works and 
Engineering 

• Infrastructure protection and emergency 
restoration 

• Emergency assistance and support for first 
responders 

• Engineering and construction services 
• Liaison with state and federal resources 
• Debris management 

4 Annex D: Firefighting 
• Fire prevention and suppression activities 
• Fire mutual aid and resource augmentation 
• Fire command and control structure 

5 Annex E: Emergency 
Management 

• Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 
activation, configuration, management and 
staffing 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 14 

ESF Title Scope 
• On-scene command control structure and 

interface with the EOC 
• Emergency decision making and the local 

declaration process 
• Requesting Borough, State and Federal 

assistance 
• Overall coordination of mutual aid  
• Information collection and database 

creation and management 
• Analysis and dissemination of information 
• Issuing situation reports, bulletins and 

advisories 
• Notification and updating of staff and 

elected officials 
• Science and technology support (GIS 

mapping, modeling) 
• Incident Action Plans and resource 

tracking 

6 Annex F: Mass Care 

• Mass care operations including sheltering, 
feeding and other essential human needs 

• Housing resources 
• In-place shelter operations 
• Access and Functional Needs Populations 

7 
Annex G:  
Logistics and 
Resource Support 

• Resource identification 
• Resource coordination and support 
• Resource procurement 
• Personnel augmentation 
• Logistics management 

8 
Annex H:  
Public Health and 
Medical Services 

• Assessment of public health and medical 
needs 

• Public health surveillance 
• Medical care personnel 
• Medical equipment and supplies 

9 Annex I:  
Search and Rescue 

• Resources needed to conduct search and 
rescue activities 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 15 

ESF Title Scope 
• Borough, State and Federal resources 

available to augment local search and 
rescue efforts 

• Aerial and ground search resources 

10 
Annex J: Oil and 
Hazardous Materials 
Response 

• Coordinated response to oil and 
hazardous materials incidents 

• Specialized local, Borough, regional, State 
and Federal mutual aid resources 

• Hazardous materials planning and 
reporting requirements 

• Short and long-term environmental 
cleanup  

11 Annex K: Agriculture 
and Natural Resources 

• Control and eradication of an outbreak of a 
devastating animal/zoonotic disease or 
plant disease 

• Assurance of food safety and security 
• Natural resource protection and restoration 

or historic properties 

12 Annex L: Energy 

• Energy system assessment, repair and 
restoration 

• Water services (water, sewer and storm 
water) 

• Private utilities industry coordination 
• Energy forecasting 
• Power outages 

13 Annex M: Public Safety 

• Law enforcement activities 
• Operational and personnel security 
• Ingress and egress to the disaster 

scene(s) 
• Liaison between response operations and 

criminal investigation activities 
• Coordination with Borough, State and 

Federal law enforcement agencies  

14 Annex N: Long-term 
Community Recovery 

• Community recovery operations 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 16 

ESF Title Scope 
• Economic assessment, protection and 

restoration 
• Mitigation analysis and program 

implementation 
• Coordination with the private sector 
• Coordination with state and federal 

community assistance programs 

15 Annex O: External 
Affairs 

• Emergency public information 
• Protective action guidance 
• Ongoing emergency information 
• Inter-departmental coordination 
• Establishing a Joint Information Center 

(JIC) and Joint Information System (JIS) 
• Media and community relations 
• Governmental and public affairs  

16 Annex P: Volunteer and 
Donations Management 

• Coordinate Spontaneous (unaffiliated) 
Volunteers.  

• Coordinate Affiliated Volunteer Groups, 
e.g. Volunteer Organizations Active in 
Disasters (VOADs), Red Cross, Salvation 
Army, Community Emergency Response 
Teams (CERTs) 

• Manage Financial and Material Donations 

Incident Command System and Emergency Support Functions in the EOC 

Each City of Fairbanks department or agency will ensure that the specific mission areas 
within the functional annexes for which they have primary responsibility is planned for in 
order to fulfill the agency’s emergency response role. That obligation includes training, 
resources, and personnel. This means each department needs to be cognizant of their 
available equipment and other physical resources and those resources’ disposition, as 
well as ensuring that personnel are aware of and trained on the department’s 
responsibilities and that personnel are available and assigned for response.  

The Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities section of this plan will fully 
detail the responsibilities of each stakeholder agency or department by Emergency 
Support Function. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 17 

The chart on the following page shows the interface between ICS and the Emergency 
Support Function structure. Each ESF aligns with a specific functional annex as noted 
above. 

 
Figure 3: ICS/EOC Interface 

 Actions by Phases of Emergency Management 
1. Mitigation – The City of Fairbanks will conduct mitigation activities as an integral 

part of the emergency management program. The Mitigation Act of 2000 is the 
guiding document used to ensure mitigation is done to federal standards and 
recommendations.  Mitigation is intended to eliminate hazards, reduce the 
probability of hazards causing an emergency situation, or lessen the 
consequences of unavoidable hazards. Mitigation should be a pre-disaster activity, 
although mitigation may also occur in the aftermath of an emergency situation with 
the intent of avoiding repetition of the situation.  Mitigation is further developed in 
the Hazard Mitigation Plan which is published separately.  

2. Preparedness – The City of Fairbanks will conduct preparedness activities to 
develop the response capabilities needed in the event of an emergency. Among 
the preparedness activities included in our emergency management program are:   

a. Providing emergency equipment and facilities. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 18 

b. Emergency planning, including maintaining this Plan, its Annexes, and 
appropriate SOPs. 

c. Conducting or arranging appropriate training for emergency responders, 
emergency management personnel, other local officials, and volunteer 
groups who assist us during emergencies. 

d. Conducting periodic drills and exercises to test plans and training. 
3. Response – The City of Fairbanks will respond to emergency situations effectively 

and efficiently. The focus of most of this Plan and its Annexes is on planning for 
the response to emergencies. Response operations are intended to resolve an 
emergency situation while minimizing casualties and property damage. Response 
activities include warning, emergency medical services, firefighting, law 
enforcement operations, evacuation, shelter and mass care, emergency public 
information, search and rescue, as well as other associated functions.  

4. Recovery – The City of Fairbanks will carry out a recovery program that involves 
both short- and long-term efforts in the event that disasters occur.  Short-term 
operations seek to restore vital services to the community and provide for the basic 
needs of the public.  Long-term recovery focuses on restoring the community to its 
normal state.  The Federal government, pursuant to the Stafford Act, provides the 
vast majority of disaster recovery assistance.  The recovery process includes 
assistance to individuals, businesses, and to government and other public 
institutions. Examples of recovery programs include temporary housing, 
restoration of government services, debris removal, restoration of utilities, disaster 
mental health services, and reconstruction of damaged roads and bridges.  

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 19 

ORGANIZATION &  
ASSIGNMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

Non-Emergency Organization 

The City of Fairbanks is an autonomous jurisdiction. The City Charter vests the Legislative 
authority of the City in an elected mayor and the six elected members of the City Council. 
The day-to-day administration of the City rests with a Chief of Staff who is appointed by 
the Mayor.  

Emergency Organization 

This plan is designed to be activated partially or fully based on the nature and magnitude 
of the emergency or disaster. The Emergency Manager or Incident Commander, and or 
his/her designee, with support from designated local officials, will exercise direction and 
control from the EOC during disaster operations. The EOC may be partially or fully staffed 
depending on the type and scope of the emergency. The EOC will provide logistical and 
administrative support to response personnel deployed to the disaster site(s). Available 
warning time will be used to implement increased readiness measures that will insure 
maximum protection of the population, property, and the City’s resources from the effects 
of threatened disasters. 

Overall organization will be managed under the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS) which is explained in more detail in the Direction and Control Section, which 
follows. The plan supporting the EOC is designed with specific emergency support 
functions (ESFs) identified.  The ESFs have specific guidelines and duty assignments to 
allow these functions to be activated on an as needed basis. Specific duties for each ESF 
are identified below.  

In the event of a major emergency or disaster, the Mayor, or authorized designee, may 
order the activation of the EOC located in the Police Station at 911 Cushman St.  All 
participating organizations are requested to send representatives to the EOC to 
coordinate response and recovery activities. City departments have pre-designated 
representatives. Other applicable organizations including the various boards, quasi-
governmental organizations and private disaster relief organizations are also encouraged 
to designate representatives as well. 

Emergency Management Chain of Command 
• Emergency Manager: Fire Chief 
• Emergency Manager Deputy: Asst. Fire Chief  

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 20 

Emergency Support Functions (ESF) Summary 
a. ESF - 1: Transportation – The City of Fairbanks Police Department is the 

primary agency for ESF-1 provides the coordination for the acquisition and 
provision of transportation for people and materials for emergency and 
disaster situations.  The services and activities provided under this ESF will 
include the identification, acquisition, arrangement, mobilization and 
coordination of available City departments such as Public Schools, MACS, 
private industry, and voluntary transportation equipment, manpower and 
technical expertise to meet the requirements of providing essential 
transportation services before, during and after emergencies and disasters.  
The ESF also covers the actions that need to be taken to facilitate 
transportation and overcome impediments in emergencies and disasters. 

b. ESF - 2: Communications – The communication services responsibility 
falls under the City of Fairbanks Information Technology (IT) Department, 
who will under this ESF process identification, mobilization and coordination 
of available City government personnel and equipment to ensure all 
potential and needed communication lines are available to incident 
responding personnel. The IT Department will ensure needed increase of 
services is provided, work with private industry and volunteer personnel and 
equipment essential to gather, coordinate and disseminate information 
before, during and after an impending or actual disaster situation.  In the 
event that normal means of communications become overburdened or 
destroyed, communications and information processing personnel shall use 
private industry, amateur radio teams and State and Federal assistance 
while re-establishing primary communication systems.  ESF 2 will also 
provide for the establishment of systems to disseminate to appropriate 
government officials and the general public timely forecasts of all hazards 
requiring emergency preparedness or response actions. 

c. ESF-3: Public Works & Engineering –The City of Fairbanks Public Works 
Department carries the primary responsibility to provide the needed 
coordination of all available public works, engineering and construction 
resources and expertise in an emergency or disaster. It provides for the 
identification, agreement, mobilization and coordination of available City 
government, private industry which through mutual aid agreement to 
provide essential services before, during and after emergencies and 
disasters.  

d. ESF-4: Fire Fighting – The City of Fairbanks Fire Department is the 
primary agency for ESF-4 provides for the detection, control and 
suppression of rural and urban fires caused by an incident of natural or 
technological events. Services provided under this ESF shall include 
actions taken through the application of equipment, manpower and 
technical expertise to control and suppress fires that have or threaten to 
become disasters. Provision of such services will be in accordance with 
mutual aid agreements with City and Borough governments, private 
industry, and other jurisdictions using established recognized standards of 
firefighting methods under the Incident Command System.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 21 

e. ESF-5: Emergency Management – Emergency Management 
encompasses all emergency activities conducted by the City of Fairbanks 
Fire Department, who has the primary responsibility for this ESF. ESF-5 will 
also be supported by outside governments, private industry and volunteer 
organizations through mutual aid agreements before, during and after 
natural and technological emergencies and disasters. The ESF includes 
preparations for emergencies.  It includes the analysis of the City’s potential 
hazards and capabilities, the development of plans, procedures, 
agreements and arrangements to deal with emergencies and disasters, 
training of the City’s overall ICS functions, regional government and 
volunteer personnel involvement and exercising of plans. When 
emergencies occur, ESF-5 will include activating the City’s Emergency 
Operations Center (EOC), collecting, communicating and analyzing 
information about impending and impacting emergencies, assessing the 
impact and damages from emergencies, coordinating evacuation activities, 
setting all available resources into motion and restoring the affected people 
and property to their pre-disaster condition wherever possible.  

f. ESF-6: Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services - ESF-6 provides 
Mass Care, including Shelter, Mass Feeding and Housing and Human 
services support for victims of natural and technological emergencies and 
disasters: 

• The overall coordination for the Mass Care for disaster victims is 
conducted by the City of Fairbanks Engineering Department, with 
support from the American Red Cross (ARC) and FNSB Public 
Schools. The Engineering Department will ensure that all needed 
information from the City is provided, while the ARC and Schools 
provide direct assistance to the victims in shelter. The Engineering 
Department coordinates Federal assistance that is available to 
shelter as well as non-shelter seeking victims.   

• Mass Care will provide shelter during the emergency period and 
immediately following the disaster, in which victims are housed as a 
result of evacuation or, on a limited basis, pending repair of dwellings 
or assignment and movement into temporary housing. Emergency 
shelter is not intended for prolonged periods of occupancy due to the 
emergency nature of the activity and the requirements for mass 
feeding, bedding and adequate sanitary facilities. Shelter will include 
the mass feeding of victims and emergency workers through a 
combination of fixed sites, mobile feeding units and bulk distribution 
of food. 

• Mass Care will collect and provide information about individuals in 
the emergency area through their arrival at the shelter. Such 
information will be used to aid reunion of families and individuals 
separated by the emergency or disaster. 

• Housing activities will provide for short and long-term housing needs 
of emergency and disaster victims. Housing activities may include 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 22 

rental assistance, temporary housing, and loans for house repair 
and/or replacement of primary residences. 

• Human services include all government and relief organization 
actions to provide immediate assistance to victims of emergencies 
and disasters. It will include the provision and expedited processing 
of federal benefits claims such as Social Security, disaster 
unemployment assistance, Veterans Administration benefits and tax 
refunds. 

• Human Services may include, as appropriate, crisis counseling and    
supportive mental health services and such commodities as water, 
ice and other basic needs. 

• Housing and Human Services are dependent on Federal and State 
government involvement to ensure that proper authorized personnel 
are available to assist the victim with State and Federal issues.  

g. ESF-7: Resource Support - ESF-7 provides the resource support activities 
needed in emergencies and disasters. The City of Fairbanks Finance 
Department along with the support of the Purchasing Department, carries 
the primary responsibility for the approval and payment of the needed 
acquisitions. Resource support deals with the personnel, services, facilities, 
equipment, materials and supplies needed for emergency and disaster 
operations, whether from governmental, private or volunteer sources. 
Mutual aid agreements are in place to ensure that the City’s resources can 
expand beyond the daily resource usage.   

h. ESF-8: Public Health and Medical Services - ESF-8’s primary 
responsibility falls under the City of Fairbanks Fire Department. This ESF 
provides public health and sanitation, emergency medical, dental and 
hospital services, crisis counseling and mental health services to disaster 
victims and workers, to supplement and support disrupted or overburdened 
local medical personnel and facilities and relieve personal suffering and 
trauma. Public Health and Sanitation refers to the services, equipment and 
staffing needed to protect the health and general welfare of the public from 
communicable diseases, contamination and epidemics; the development 
and monitoring of health information; inspection of food and water quality 
and sanitation measures; immunizations; laboratory testing; animal and 
vector control; inspection of public drinking water supplies and sewage 
treatment services. Medical care refers to emergency and resident medical 
and dental care; doctors, technicians, supplies, equipment, ambulance and 
emergency medical services, hospitals, clinics and units, planning and 
operation of facilities and services. Crisis Counseling and Mental Health 
refer to the provision of professional personnel, services and facilities 
essential to relieve victim trauma and mental health problems caused or 
aggravated by a disaster or its aftermath. 

i. ESF-9: Urban Search & Rescue- During search and rescue operations, 
the City of Fairbanks Fire Department will carry the primary responsibility 
for ESF-9. Mutual aid agreements are in place to ensure surrounding 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 23 

Borough (FNSB) support when operations are needed to expand beyond 
City resources.   
ESF-9 provides for a trained and equipped emergency rescue response 
force with the capability to perform search and rescue operations during 
extraordinary conditions. The services and activities provided under this 
ESF will include locating, removal from the stricken area, and identification 
of survivors, the injured in need of medical treatment and decontamination, 
the marooned, and the dead.  

j. ESF-10: Hazardous Materials- The City of Fairbanks Fire Department has 
the primary responsibility for ESF-10. It provides for an effective and 
efficient response to and recovery from hazardous materials (HAZMAT) and 
radiological incidents that threaten the environment of the Borough and the 
lives and property of its citizens.  Hazardous materials include oil spills. This 
ESF coordinates the City, regional area, and private resources responding 
to and remedying oil spills, HAZMAT incidents and radiological releases. 
Actions in this function can range from the detection of a release of spill, 
through the provision of initial response actions, to the request of state 
assistance and procurement of a contractor, to coordination of joint local, 
regional, State and Federal operations under the Incident Command 
System, to the final inspection and approval of remedial and restoration 
work.    

k. ESF-11: Agriculture and Natural Resources – The Fairbanks 
Engineering Department has the primary responsibility for this ESF. ESF-
11 provides protection for the City’s food supply to ensure that the 
population of the City is provided adequate and healthy nutrition during and 
after natural and technological emergencies and disasters. It is also 
concerned with diseases and infestations that could affect plant, animal and 
cultivated seafood species, and with animal evacuation, sheltering and 
health care. ESF-11 covers the wide range of nutritional assurance and 
plant, animal and cultivated seafood health and safety in all types of natural 
and technological threats.  

l. ESF-12: Energy – The City of Fairbanks Engineering Department serves 
as the primary agency for this ESF. ESF-12 provides for a coordinated 
response to maintain or reestablish natural gas, electric and water and 
sewer utility services within a disaster area to best serve the needs of the 
City’s population. Services under this ESF include and encompass the 
restoration of natural gas, electric and water and sewer utilities subjected to 
interruption or destruction by emergencies and disasters on a priority basis. 

m. ESF-13: Public Safety and Security – The City of Fairbanks Police 
Department holds the primary responsibility for this ESF. ESF-13 provides 
for the provision of law enforcement, emergency police and public safety 
services, and legal authority in an emergency or disaster. Services under 
this ESF include the identification, mobilization and coordination of available 
City and regional government agencies, other public safety and legal 
manpower, and expertise and equipment to minimize the adverse impact of 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 24 

an emergency or disaster on life and property in the affected area.  Routine 
and emergency law enforcement, investigation, bomb disposal, traffic and 
crowd control, area access control, security, assistance with 
communications and transportation, determination of legal authority 
ramifications and related functions are included. 

n. ESF-14: Long Term Recovery and Mitigation – The City of Fairbanks 
Engineering Department has the primary responsibility of ESF-14. This ESF 
is concerned with long-term policies and programs for community recovery, 
mitigation and economic stabilization.  This ESF provides for the recovery 
of the City from the long-term impacts and consequences of emergencies 
and disasters.  The ESF addresses the stabilization of the City’s and local 
economies and measures taken to reduce or eliminate risk from future 
emergencies and disasters, wherever possible. 

o. ESF-15: External Affairs - ESF-15’s primary responsibility is held by the 
City of Fairbanks Mayor’s Office. It provides information and external 
communications to inform people about the threats from natural and 
technological emergencies and disasters and the precautions and response 
measures that the City, local and regional governments are taking to protect 
and preserve life and property using all available methods and media. ESF-
15 will also advise people of actions they need to take before and during 
emergencies and disasters. Public information provided before, during and 
after disasters and emergencies will provide clear, concise and accurate 
information on the existing situation in the disaster area.  Every effort shall 
be made to minimize and counter rumors, hearsay and half-truths. 

p. ESF – 16 Volunteer and Donations Management – ESF 16’s primary 
responsibility is held by the City of Fairbanks Human Resources 
Department. This annex outlines methods to provide for the coordination, 
supervision, and operations of volunteers and donations through all phases 
of emergency response. The purpose of this ESF is:  

• To provide guidance for the coordination of volunteers responding to 
an emergency or disaster.  

• To establish a consistent framework for coordinating with volunteer 
organizations supporting the response and recovery.  

• To provide guidance for the coordination of goods donated in 
response to an emergency in an efficient and timely manner.  

• To outline a volunteer and donations management program for the 
City of Fairbanks (COF) that can be implemented for large-scale, 
high-visibility disasters, or for smaller scale emergencies that may 
also generate a flow of unsolicited volunteer services and donated 
goods.  

Responsibilities 

General – Officials at all levels of government share responsibility for the necessary 
planning needed to minimize losses and provide relief from possible disasters. This 
shared responsibility includes the disaster preparedness and response capabilities of the 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 25 

City government, districts and independent authorities, regions, volunteer agencies, and 
State and Federal governments.  

Initial response will provide for an immediate reaction to alleviate human suffering, 
prevent loss of life, protect property, and to return the area to normalcy in the shortest 
possible time. Operational plans shall be developed for accomplishment of various 
program goals and objectives designed to effectively reduce hazards and to bring long-
range recovery to distressed areas.  

City of Fairbanks –  

• City government senior officials and staff must be prepared to direct 
and control local response to emergencies and disasters in 
accordance with local laws and mutual aid arrangements with 
adjacent communities, special districts, and voluntary organizations.  

• Provide immediate response through the City departments and other 
public agencies.  

• Establish readiness procedures to ensure proper training of 
personnel, and the availability of appropriate personnel and 
equipment in time of emergency. Readiness procedures must also 
provide for notification of personnel when a warning is received from 
the City of Fairbanks Fire Department or Emergency Operations 
Center.  

• Request activation of mutual aid arrangements when specific aid 
coordination in such agreements is required.  

• Request assistance from higher levels of government, Borough, 
State and Federal, through the Alaska Division of Emergency 
Management when:  

- Local resources are fully committed and found to be 
inadequate to cope with the situation, and;  

- A particular capability is required and is not otherwise 
available. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 26 

DIRECTION, CONTROL, AND COORDINATION 
The final responsibility for all emergency management in the City of Fairbanks belongs to 
the City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager, under the policy direction of the City Mayor’s 
Office.  

The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager and/or their designee are responsible for 
administering the emergency management program. He/she makes routine decisions 
and advises the Mayor on alternatives when major decisions are required of that body. 
During emergency operations, he/she is responsible for the proper functioning of the EOC 
and its staff. The Emergency Manager, through the EOC, also acts as liaison with other 
local, borough, state and federal emergency management agencies. 

Specific persons in departments, work units/agencies are responsible for fulfilling their 
responsibilities as stated in this Basic Plan and the annexes thereto. Department Heads, 
Work Unit/Agency Supervisors will retain control of their employees and equipment during 
response operations. Standing operating procedures (SOPs) are required of each 
department, work unit, or agency having responsibilities in this plan. These SOPs must 
include: 

1. Method for the recall of personnel during non-duty hours.  
2. Prioritization of tasks to guide response and recovery work.  
3. Procedures to be followed that deviate from normal.  
4. Specific emergency authorities that may be assumed by the designated successor 

during emergency situations.  

During some periods of an emergency, Department Heads, and Work Unit/Agency 
Supervisors will be required to remain in the EOC and direct their departments from that 
facility. During any large-scale emergency, the EOC will in fact become the focal point for 
the Administration and control of many City functions for the duration of the crisis. 

In accordance with Homeland Security Presidential Directive (HSPD) 5, all department 
heads, work units and agencies of the City of Fairbanks having responsibilities delineated 
in this Emergency Operation Plan (EOP) will use the National Incident Management 
System (NIMS). This system will allow proper coordination between local, state and 
federal organizations. 

As described in the Concept of Operations (CONOPS) and Organization and assignment 
of responsibilities section of this Plan, the Incident Command System (ICS), as a part of 
NIMS, will enable effective and efficient incident management by integrating a 
combination of facilities, equipment, personnel, procedures, and communications 
operating with a common organizational structure.  

All on-scene management of incidents will be conducted using the Incident Command 
System. Additionally, for the purposes of interface with Federal and other outside support, 
the 16 Emergency Support Functions will align under a responsible ICS position in the 
EOC. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 27 

PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE 
General 

The contents of this Plan must be known and understood by those people responsible for 
its implementation. The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is responsible for briefing 
the Mayor, city officials, departments, and partner organizations concerning their role in 
emergency management and the contents of this Plan in particular. 

Schedule of Review 

The Emergency Manager and/or their designee will maintain this EOP. He or she will 
coordinate with each emergency resource organization and coordinate the development 
and maintenance of an appropriate emergency response plan. The Mayor and/or their 
designee will ensure that an annual review be conducted by all officials involved in the 
execution of this Plan. 

The Emergency Manager will facilitate this review and any plan revision and distribution 
found necessary. Department Heads are responsible for development and maintenance 
of their respective segments of this Plan and their appropriate supporting SOP's as stated 
here and set forth in each relevant Annex. 

The EOP will be reviewed and updated annually, as necessary.  The Executive branch of 
the City of Fairbanks should have the Plan readopted every five years.  

Training and Exercises 

This Plan will be tested at least once a year in the form of a simulated emergency exercise 
(drill, tabletop, functional, or major multi-agency/jurisdictional) in order to provide 
practical, controlled experience to those emergency managers tasked within the plan. 
The Emergency Manager may, at his/her discretion, conduct more than one emergency 
management training activity per year as money, manpower, or need arises. 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 28 

ACTIONS, LEGAL AUTHORITIES, AND 
REFERENCES 

Actions Under Local Emergencies 
Declaring a Local Emergency 

The Mayor of the City of Fairbanks with City Council approval is empowered to declare 
the existence of a local emergency or disaster when there is a clear and present danger 
to the health, life or safety of the people or property in any part of the City or at any time 
a disaster or State of Emergency is declared by the President of the United States or by 
the Governor of Alaska. The declaration of a local emergency by the Mayor will be in 
writing and will take effect immediately upon issuance. The Mayor will cause widespread 
publicity and notice to be given of such declaration throughout the City. 

Powers of the City Executive during a Local Emergency 

During a local emergency, the Incident Commander, Emergency Manager or designee is 
the Incident Commander. All powers and duties conferred upon the Emergency Manager, 
or any officer or manager of a functional Emergency Response Stakeholder division or 
agency, shall be exercised subject to the approval of the Mayor. The Mayor is authorized 
to issue and enforce rules, regulations, orders and directives considered necessary for 
the protection of life and property. The rules, regulations, orders, and directives will take 
effect immediately upon issuance, and copies of such documents will be maintained in 
accordance with the statutory requirements for retention of government records. 

City Employees as Emergency Workers 

The Mayor may require any City employee to serve under the direction of the Incident 
Commander or Emergency Manager in accordance with City Ordinance. 

All City employees shall provide services as required per this Plan and within their 
department plans and procedures, as directed by the Incident Commander or Emergency 
Manager. It is the responsibility of the Office of Human Resources to establish plans for 
the use of additional City employees by any other City department requesting additional 
city personnel resources. Such reassignment will be coordinated by the Office of Human 
Resources. Assignment of City employees will be based on operational needs, priority, 
availability of personnel, and applicable collective bargaining agreements. 

Acceptance of Donations 

During a local emergency, the City is authorized to accept gifts, grants, or in-kind 
donations. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 29 

Alaska Statute allows for political subdivisions within the State to accept services, gifts, 
grants, and loans of any amount for purposes of emergency management.  

The City Clerk’s Office will coordinate, administer, process, and deposit all monetary, in-
kind, and property donations during a local emergency. 

Violation of Emergency Regulations 

During a declared local emergency, or within the area designated for a planned event or 
the area designated as the incident area, obstructing a member of the Fire Department, 
and/or Organization represented in the EOC for Emergency Response Operations in the 
performance of their duties, or violation of any rule, regulation, ordinance, or directive 
issued by the Incident Commander shall constitute a misdemeanor per City of Fairbanks 
General Code Section 1-19.  Where no specific ordinance is stated in the violation or no 
specific penalty is provided, the penalties will follow those specified under AS 18.70.075. 

Local Emergency Deactivation 

The Emergency Manager or Incident Commander will keep the Mayor and the City 
Council advised of the status of the emergency and the level of activation of the EOC. 
The Mayor will declare and publicize the termination of such local emergency declaration 
at the earliest possible date that conditions will allow, unless the level of activation does 
not necessitate a declaration being issued. The City Council may nullify or modify any 
proclamation declaring a state of emergency by resolution. Upon termination of a 
declared local emergency, such rules, regulations, orders, or directives issued in 
conjunction with the emergency will terminate and have no further force or effect.  

Legal Authorities 
National/Federal Laws and Regulations 

The following federal laws and/or regulations authorize the preparation and execution of 
emergency and government continuity operations. These operations mitigate, plan for, 
respond to, and recover from injury or damage, which may be caused by natural, human, 
and technological disasters or acts of terrorism. 

• Title 5, United States Code (Public Law 107-296, HR 5005 of 107th 
Congress) “Homeland Security Act of 2002” Effective March 1, 2003.  
This Act established the Department of Homeland Security and the transfer 
of 22 federal agencies to this department.  The Act establishes the direction 
and control of agencies involved in preparedness, intelligence and 
information gathering, border control, infrastructure protection, and 
emergency response and recovery, and amends the Robert T. Stafford 
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act of 2000, the Federal Civil 
Defense Act of 1950, the National Security Act of 1947, and Executive 
Order 12148 dated July 20, 1979. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 30 

• Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, PL 
100-707 November 23, 1988; amended the Disaster Relief Act of 1974, PL 
93-288.  
This Act constitutes the statutory authority for most Federal disaster 
response activities especially as they pertain to FEMA and FEMA programs. 
The Stafford Act brings an orderly and systemic means of federal natural 
disaster assistance for state and local governments in carrying out their 
responsibilities to aid citizens. The Stafford Act is a 1988 amended version 
of the Disaster Relief Act of 1974. It created the system in place today by 
which a presidential disaster declaration of an emergency triggers financial 
and physical assistance through the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). The Act gives FEMA the responsibility for coordinating 
government-wide relief efforts. The Federal Response Plan implements 
include the contributions of 28 federal agencies and non-governmental 
organizations, such as the American Red Cross. Congress amended it by 
passing the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, and again in 2006 with the Pets 
Evacuation and Transportation Standards Act. 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive # 1 January 23, 2003  
This Presidential Directive supersedes and amends all prior Presidential 
Directives that provided for Terrorism Crisis and Consequence 
Management, along with Emergency Response on a federal basis (EO 
12148, FEMA, July 20, 1979), to include a revision of the National 
Response Plan, the Federal Response Plan, and the National Contingency 
Plan. 

• Homeland Security Presidential Directive # 5 February 28, 2003  
This Presidential Directive establishes the Secretary of Homeland Security 
as the principal Federal official for domestic incident management, 
recognizes the role of local authorities for initial management of domestic 
incidents, recognizes the role of the private sector, and tasks the 
Department with the development and administration of a National Incident 
Management System (NIMS). 

• Federal Preparedness Circular 65 July 26, 1999 
This document outlines guidance to Federal Executive Branch departments 
and agencies for use in developing viable and executable contingency plans 
for the continuity of operations. 

• Public Law 95-510 Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (CERCLA) as amended 
Requires facilities to notify authorities of accidental releases of hazardous 
materials. 

• Public Law 99-499 Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 
1986, as amended  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) – June 20, 2024 
 

Base Plan Page 31 

Governs hazardous materials planning and right-to-know. This law 
established the State Emergency Response Commissions (SERC) and the 
Local Emergency Planning Committees (LEPC). The LEPC performs local 
audits of facility’s emergency plans and revises the City Hazardous 
Substance Response Plan is referenced in Annex 10. 

• Code of Federal Regulations Title 44 Chapter I, Federal Emergency 
Management Agency, Parts 0-399  
Covers the many aspects of disaster mitigation planning requirements, 
along with disaster relief and assistance regulations, the National Urban 
Search and Rescue Teams, and the designation of utilizing an Incident 
Management System. 

• Code of Federal Regulations Title 49 Part 830  
Regulates the notification and reporting of aircraft accidents or incidents, 
and overdue aircraft, and preservation of the aircraft wreckage, mail, cargo, 
and records. 

• Code of Federal Regulations Title 14 Part 77  
Regulates the construction and land use measures around airports and 
navigable airways. 

State Emergency Laws and Regulations 
• AS 18.70.075 Authority of Fire Department Officers and Penalty 
• AS 18.70.090 Enforcement Authority 
• AS 26.23.060 Local & Inter-jurisdictional Disaster Services 
• AS 26.23.140 Local Disaster Emergency  
• AS 26.23.190 Emergency Powers 
• AS 26.23.500 Intrastate Mutual Aid System 
• State of Alaska Emergency Operation Plan 

City of Fairbanks Emergency Laws and Regulations 
• Fairbanks General Code of Ordinances 

- Sec 1-19  Right of Entry  
- Sec 4.1.c  Mayor designate 
- Sec 2-61  Succession to Office 
- Sec 2-117  Emergency Meetings; notice, justification 
- Sec 3.6  Ordinance Exceptions 
- Sec 6.5.B.5  Special Appropriation 
- Sec 6.6.B.3 Emergency Expenditures 
- Sec 54.246 Emergency Purchasing 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex A –Transportation (ESF 1)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Management is the functional coordinator for all 
functions in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function 
is sub-divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below.  

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support 
Agency 

POC/Liaison 

Aviation/Airspace 
Management & 
Control 

State of Alaska 
and the FAA 

COF Emergency 
Management 

(Fire Chief 

FAA / ATC (907) 474-0050/0452 
or (907) 778-2240 
COF EM thru Dispatch 

Transportation Safety 
and Coordination of 
Transportation 
Resources 

COF Police and 
Public Works 
Department 

Alaska 
Department of 
Transportation 

COF Police thru Dispatch   
Public Works (907) 459-6770 

Restoration/Recovery 
of Transportation 
Infrastructure 

COF Public 
Works 

Department 

Alaska 
Department of 
Transportation 

COF Public Works (907) 459-
6770    
AK DOT (907) 451-2294 / 2205 

Movement 
Restrictions 

COF Police, 
Public Works and 
Fire Departments 

Alaska State 
Troopers 

COF Police thru Dispatch   
Public Works (907) 459-6770 

Damage & Impact 
Assessment 

COF Public 
Works, Building, 
and Engineering 

Departments  

NA COF Public Works (907)459-
6770 COF Building (907)459-
6720  
COF Engineering (907) 459-
6759 

 
Purpose  
The Transportation Annex provides for the actions that need to be taken to facilitate 
transportation and overcome impediments in emergencies and disasters, and provides 
for the coordination of the acquisition, and provision of transportation for people and 
materials for emergency and disaster situations.  The services and activities provided 
under this function will include the identification, acquisition, arrangement, mobilization 
and coordination of available City departments and mutual aid partners to meet the 
requirements of providing essential transportation services before, during and after 
emergencies and disasters.   
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted on the following page.  For all other Transportation (ESF 1) needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) in coordination with 
Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
2 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Aviation/Airspace Management & Control City of Fairbanks Emergency 

Management will coordinate with the 
state EOC and the FAA to obtain 
airspace closures 
 

Transportation Safety Maintain Roads and Direct Traffic 
 

Restoration/Recovery of Transportation Infrastructure Repair and maintain roads 
 

Movement Restrictions Direct traffic with barricades and 
personnel  
 

Damage & Impact Assessment Conduct Engineering and building 
assessments 

 
This Functional Annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex A is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Transportation Functional Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
Although private automobiles are the preferred method of evacuation, there will be 
individuals and groups who require assistance in relocating from an evacuation area. 
Schools, hospitals, nursing homes & daycare centers are responsible for ensuring the 
overall safety and well being of their students, patients, residents, staff and visitors to their 
facilities. To that end, emergency plans should be developed taking into account the 
hazards to which those facilities might reasonably be exposed. Such hazards include, but 
are not limited to, natural and technological disasters, fire/explosion, physical plant and/or 
utility failure, security threats and vehicular accidents. These “vulnerable populations” are 
encouraged to be pro-active in developing and implementing their plans. 
Because of its critical nature, the assessment of damage and if necessary the restoration 
and protection of transportation infrastructure and resources will be the main priority of 
this function during emergency operations. 
Transportation to and from shelters may be a subject for consideration. Most 
businesses, schools, hospitals, nursing homes, etc., have developed internal plans for 
providing expedient shelter within their facilities. However, the City of Fairbanks does 
not have any designated shelters for protection from natural or technological hazards; it 
does coordinate the activation of shelters with FNSB for the purpose of providing mass 
care and shelter for persons displaced from their homes. (For more information, see 
Mass Care, Feeding and Sheltering (ESF 6)) 
When the emergency/disaster situation has stabilized and it is again safe to return to a 
previously evacuated area, the authorization to allow reentry will be given by the City 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
3 

emergency operations center (EOC), the Incident Commander (IC), or as otherwise 
directed. 
There are numerous transportation routes throughout the City that may become critical 
during emergency situations (Attachment 2). 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with Transportation. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of 
Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with 
Transportation (ESF 1) being aligned with the Operations Section as shown in the figure 
below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Transportation Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will notify the appropriate Transportation 
function coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate 
representatives report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
 
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with transportation 
activities. Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and 
federal officials may also become critical members of the Transportation team. 
Direction and Control 
All evacuation and transportation activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Transportation 
(ESF 1)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
4 

Access and Functional Needs Populations 
A variety of methods for transportation are available by the various agencies responsible 
for the care of individuals with Access and Functional Needs.  However, large-scale 
transportation would be difficult with few resources to cover a City of this size. The number 
of vehicles needed for those with severe physical disabilities is extremely limited and 
would require the assistance of outside agencies and/or businesses. 
Transportation of individuals will be coordinated with the appropriate agency 
responsible for their welfare, with assistance from one or more of the following 
agencies: 

• Metropolitan Area Commuter System (MACS) 

• Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) School District 

• Fairbanks Correctional Center (Jail) 

• City of Fairbanks Fire Department (EMS) 

• Alaska National Guard 

• Ft Wainwright Army Base 

• Eielson Air Force Base 
 
Responsibilities 
All tasked agencies will: 

• Develop applicable SOPs, guidelines and/or checklists detailing the 
accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
transportation activities 

• Provide ongoing status reports. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work in 
the event that state and federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities, and provide this information to the City’s Emergency Manager 

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 
 
The Functional Coordinator will coordinate with the appropriate primary and support 
agencies to: 

• Identify and maintain critical transportation routes. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
5 

• Work with other agencies to designate transportation bases, staging area, 
refueling and repair facilities. 

• Coordinate the use of additional transportation resources. 
 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Businesses and agencies with responsibilities for Access and Functional Needs 
populations are responsible for acquiring and/or contracting resources to meet 
transportation need for these citizens. 
Additional transportation needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the ESF 
Resources Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
All agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. The 
Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform the 
functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
6 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
7 

Attachment 1: Transportation Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Work with other involved agencies to identify and 
correct potential shortfalls in the ability to use 
emergency access and egress routes and available 
transportation resources. 

 Coordinate with other agencies on the development 
of evacuation plans, particularly for pre-identified 
hazard areas along with possible structural analysis 
and remodel.                      

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain awareness of the transportation related 
components of the EOP. 

 Develop mutual aid and other support agreements 
with surrounding jurisdictions and the private sector. 

 Ensure personnel are trained in EOC operations, 
the incident Command System (ICS) and the 
National Incident Management System (NIMS). 

 Develop plans to use available transportation 
systems to manage the immediate transport of 
critical supplies. 

 Develop plans to provide resources to assist with 
evacuations or other movements of people. 

 Participate in training, drills and other activities to 
improve interagency communications. 

 Review departmental Standard Operating 
Procedures and maintain personnel call up lists. 

 Participate in training and exercises. 
 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Ensure damage assessments are performed on 
infrastructure and transportation systems, facilities 
and equipment. 

 Coordinate with other response agencies regarding 
the operational capabilities of the transportation 
system. 

 Assign transportation resources to move materials, 
personnel and supplies as requested by first 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
8 

Phase Actions 
responders. 

 Assist in making decisions regarding closures, 
restrictions, and priority repairs to transportation 
routes. 

 Assist in initiating traffic management operations 
and control strategies. 

 Provide field support for emergency responders at 
the scene integrated through the Incident Command 
System (ICS). 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Continue to coordinate transportation of equipment, 
supplies and people. 

 Continue to perform tasks necessary to expedite 
restoration and recovery operations. 

 Gradually revert assignments and personnel 
requirements to normal. 

 Return borrowed resources and those obtained 
through agreement, lease, or rental when those 
resources are no longer required. 

 Evaluate response and make necessary changes in 
this Functional Annex to correct shortfalls and 
improve future response activities. 

 Participate in after action meetings and prepare 
after action reports as requested. 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
9 

Attachment 2: City of Fairbanks Map 

 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
10 

Attachment 3: List of Transportation Resources 
 

• Ambulances from COF Fire Department 

• School buses from FNSB School District 

• Private Vendors 

• Equipment via City Public Works Department 

• Equipment Vendors 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
11 

Attachment 4: Rail Map 
 

 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex A – Transportation (ESF 1)       Operations Branch 
12 

Attachment 5: Fairbanks International Airport Map 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
1 

 

Annex B –Communications (ESF 2)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below.  

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Coordination with 
Telecommunications 
& Information 
Technology 
Industries 

Information 
Technology  

(COF IT) 
AlasConnect 

 

• Fairbanks Dispatch 

• ARES/RACES 

COF IT  
(907) 459-4999 

Restoration &  
Repair of 
Telecommunications 
Infrastructure 

Information 
Technology  

(COF IT) 
AlasConnect 

• Alaska 
Communications, 
GCI Alaska, AT&T, 
Verizon  

• Private Vendors  

• Fairbanks Dispatch 

• Ares/RACES 

COF IT  
(907) 459-4999 
ACS  
(800) 478-3081                                                 
GCI  
(800) 800-4800  
AT&T  
(800) 478-9000  
Verizon  
(800) 891-4966 

Protection, 
Restoration, & 
Sustainment of 
Cyber & Information 
Technology 
Resources 

Information 
Technology  

(COF IT) 
AlasConnect 

• None COF IT  
(907) 459-4999 

Oversight of 
Communications 
w/in Fairbanks 
Incident 
Management & 
Response 
Structures 

City of Fairbanks 
Emergency 

Management 
(Fire Chief) 

• Fairbanks Dispatch 

• Ares/RACES 

COF EM  
(907) 450-6604 
or Dispatch   
(907) 459-
68000-6507 

Purpose  
The Communications Annex describes the systems and procedures for communicating 
during a disaster. It addresses: 

• Communications interoperability among field response units 

• Primary and back-up communications systems 

• Communications to and from the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
2 

• Sources for communications augmentation such as Amateur Radio 

• Other communications systems to support emergency operations 
The Communications Annex also addresses warning and notification, as well as 
information technology and telecommunications. 
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted on the following page.  For all other Communications (ESF 2) needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) in coordination with 
Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Coordination with Telecommunications & 
Information Technology Industries 

Work with private companies to ensure 
communications 

Restoration &  
Repair of Telecommunications Infrastructure 

Work with private companies to ensure 
communications 

Protection, Restoration, & Sustainment of Cyber & 
Information Technology Resources 

Work to ensure communications are 
secure 

Oversight of Communications w/in Fairbanks 
Incident Management & Response Structures 

Work to ensure communications are 
secure 

 
This Functional Annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to require 
activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the City of 
Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex B is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information contained 
in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Communications Functional Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for ESF 2. As ESF 
coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, training, 
and other activities with the private sector and the communications primary and support 
agencies. 
The City has a wide variety of emergency communications equipment including: radios 
(fixed, mobile and handheld), pagers, telephones (including mobile and cellular), fax 
machines, etc. The City also utilizes a variety of radio frequencies to facilitate day-to-day 
and emergency communications.  A list of these frequencies is found in Attachment 
2 of this Annex. 
Warning 
The warning process may be activated from any of several points in the system including 
Dispatch, Emergency Management and Police Department. Once the network is 
activated, the responsibility for its operations belongs to Emergency Management. All 
warning activities will be coordinated through the EOC staff.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
3 

Existing Warning Systems and Uses 
• National Warning System (NAWAS): NAWAS is a nationwide dedicated 

telephone warning system that operates on three levels: local, state and 
federal. The primary warning point for the City of Fairbanks is located at the 
Fairbanks North Star Borough Emergency Operations Center. 

• National Weather Service (NWS): Current weather information and warnings 
are received over the NWS teletype circuit. Radio broadcasts are received over 
the NOAA Weather Radio system broadcasting out of the National Weather 
Service Forecasting Office in Fairbanks. In addition, NWS will issue weather 
warnings over the NAWAS lines. 

• Weather Spotter Program: This is a national program designed to place 
personnel in the field to spot and track severe weather conditions. These field 
personnel are trained by the NWS in basic severe weather meteorology and in 
how and what to report to the proper officials. During periods of severe weather, 
the spotters are dispatched into the field to relay reports back to the EOC. 
Confirmed severe weather sightings are then relayed to the NWS which 
disseminates the appropriate warning. 

• Flood Warning System: The National Weather Service has established a 
network of rain and river gauges to collect data for flood warning purposes. If 
excessive rainfall or snow melt occurs, flood predictions are made and, if 
necessary, flood warnings are issued. 

• Emergency Alert System (EAS): The EAS provides a means for supplying 
emergency information for the public. It utilizes commercial radio and television 
broadcast services which are provided on a voluntary basis by the transmitting 
stations. It supplies emergency information as prescribed by the National 
Weather Service, law enforcement, Emergency Management and school 
officials of emergency closings. The system may be activated at the local, state, 
or federal level. A list of the local broadcast stations, which are a part of 
the system can be found in Attachment 3 to this Annex. 

• Print Media: When time is sufficient, emergency information is provided to the 
print media, although this particular medium is not a reliable source of 
immediate information for the public. 

 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all activities 
associated with Communication. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC 
is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Communications (ESF 
2) being aligned with the Operations Section as shown in the figure below. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
4 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Communications Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Communications function 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering agency 
personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with communications activities. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and Federal 
officials may also become critical members of the Communications team. 
Direction and Control 
All Communications activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency 
Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the source of all 
direction and control. 
Access and Functional Needs Populations 
A goal of this function is to re-establish sufficient communications infrastructure within the 
affected areas to support ongoing life-sustaining activities; provide basic human needs, 
including the needs of individuals with disabilities and others with access and functional 
needs; and transition to recovery. 
Responsibilities 

General 
All tasked agencies will: 

• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 
checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Communications
(ESF 2)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
5 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
communications activities. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly segregate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement becomes available from the state and federal government. 

The Functional Coordinator will coordinate with the appropriate primary and support 
agencies to: 

• Identify and maintain critical communication modes. 

• Coordinate the use of additional communications resources. 

Warnings 
• Fairbanks Dispatch 

o Activate warning systems (if needed as a backup to EOC)  
o Maintain communications link with the Fairbanks EOC or Incident 

Command Post 
o Maintain all radio systems 

• Fairbanks Fire Department 
o Provide mobile public address units if necessary 
o Provide manpower for door-to-door warning if necessary 

Maintain a communications link with the Fairbanks EOC or Incident 
Command Post 

• Fairbanks Public Works 
o Provide, program and maintain mobile reader boards.  

• Fairbanks Police Department 
o Provide additional siren-equipped mobile units where necessary to 

supplement warning coverage 
o Alert hospitals, nursing homes, schools or other large institutional 

groups and private industry 
o Provide manpower for door-to-door warnings if necessary 
o Maintain a communications link with the Fairbanks EOC or Incident 

Command Post  

• Fairbanks Emergency Management 
o Provide trained spotters in the field to report to the EOC on weather-

related events provided by the National Weather Service 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
6 

o Pass information on weather events to the NWS-Fairbanks for potential 
warning alerts 

o Along with the NWS, direct the sounding of warning systems 
o Contacts the appropriate local, state and federal agencies of hazardous 

materials events 

Communications 
• Fairbanks Dispatch 

o Provide communications necessary for the City to communicate to all 
governmental entities as well as higher levels of government 

o Support mutual aid communications to adjacent jurisdictions and 
agencies 

o Coordinate and maintain the operation of the communication systems 
as needed to fulfill communications capabilities within the City 

• City of Fairbanks Information Technology Department 
o Maintains the city-wide LAN and WAN services 
o Provides for service and integrity of the City's phone service 
o Ensures the operability of the technological aspects of the Fairbanks 

EOC 

• Fairbanks Emergency Management 
o Assigns personnel for proper operation of the communications within the 

EOC 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB, and/or field deployed 
command posts to responsible representatives in the State Emergency Operations 
Center, and as required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
All agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. The Proclamation of a State of Local Emergency or a State Disaster issued 
by the Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support 
operations. The functional coordinator will determine the specific impact of the situation 
and inform the Communications Function group members. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
7 

Status Reports 
Fairbanks Emergency Management and the Fairbanks Dispatch Center will maintain 
status of all outstanding assistance requests and unresolved Communications-related 
issues. This information will be summarized into periodic status reports and submitted in 
accordance with applicable operating procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each primary and support agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls 
necessary to manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability 
and justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
8 

Attachment 1: Communication Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool 
for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 When practical, protect equipment against 
lightning strikes and electromagnetic pulse (EMP) 
effects. 

 Ensure methods are in place to protect 
communications equipment, including cyber and 
telecommunications resources. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Ensure alternate or backup communications 
systems are available. 

 Coordinate common communications procedures. 
 Develop and test emergency procedures. 
 Develop mutual aid agreements. 
 Develop and/or review procedures for the crisis 

augmentation of resources. 
 Review departmental Standard Operating 

Procedures and maintain personnel call up lists. 
 Participate in Emergency Management training 

and exercises. 
 Develop and maintain a communications resource 

inventory.  

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Maintain existing equipment and follow 
established procedures for communicating with 
organization personnel performing field 
operations. 

 Implement procedure to inspect and protect 
communications equipment. 

 Make arrangements to ensure emergency 
communications equipment can be repaired on a 
24-hour basis. 

 Keep the EOC informed of their operations at all 
times and maintain a communications link with the 
EOC. 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024   

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)       Operations Branch 
9 

Phase Actions 
 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Continue to perform tasks necessary to expedite 
restoration and recovery operations. 

 Gradually revert assignments and personnel 
requirements to normal. 

 Evaluate response, and make necessary changes 
in this ESF Annex to improve future operations. 

 Phase down operations, as appropriate. 
 Clean, repair, and perform maintenance on all 

equipment before returning to normal operations 
or storage. 

 Participate in after action reports and meetings as 
requested.  

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)       May 20, 2024 
    

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)         Operations Branch 
10 

Attachment 2: Fairbanks Area Radio Fleet Map (Radio Frequencies) 

Fairbanks Fire Department 

 
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)       May 20, 2024 
    

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)         Operations Branch 
11 

 

City of Fairbanks 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)       May 20, 2024 
    

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)         Operations Branch 
12 

FPD 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)       May 20, 2024 
    

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)         Operations Branch 
13 

 

FPD Continued   

 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)       May 20, 2024 
    

Annex B – Communications (ESF 2)         Operations Branch 
14 

Attachment 3: Fairbanks Area EAS Participating Stations 
 
Application and step by step to be added



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
1 

Annex C –Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)  ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support 
Agency 

POC/Liaison 

Infrastructure 
Protection & 
Emergency Repair 

Public Works 
Department and 

Engineering 

Private Industry 
 

Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 
Engineering  
(907) 459-6759 

Infrastructure 
Restoration 

Public Works 
Department and 

Engineering 

Private Industry COF Police thru Dispatch   
Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Engineering Services 
& Construction 
Management 

Public Works 
Department and 

Engineering 

Private Industry COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770    
AK DOT 
(907) 451-2294 / 2205 

Debris Management Public Works 
Department  

City of Fairbanks 
Emergency 

Management 
(Fire Chief) 

COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770    
COF EM  
(907) 450-6604 
Dispatch 
(907) 450-6507 

 
Purpose  
This ESF Annex provides guidance for the organization of public works and engineering 
resources to respond to and recover from emergency events causing damage to public 
buildings, roads, bridges, and other facilities that will have to be repaired, reinforced or 
demolished to ensure safety and allow for emergency response activities. 
It addresses critical resources and the cooperation that is necessary among public and 
private sectors to ensure the prompt and effective restoration of lifelines and services 
critical to the City of Fairbanks. 
Specifically, it addresses: 

• Infrastructure protection and emergency restoration 

• Safety inspections and other assistance for first responders 

• Engineering and construction services 

• Liaison with State and Federal resources 

• Debris management operations   



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
2 

Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This Functional Annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex C is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Public Works and Engineering Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The Public Works and Engineering Functional Coordinator and the support agencies 
are critical members of the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described 
in Emergency Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited cpabilities to repond to the identified mission areas as 
noted below. For all other Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3) needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) in coordination with 
Fairbanks North Star Borrough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Infrastructure Protection & Emergency Repair Public works repair and maintain roads 
Infrastructure Restoration Public works repair and maintain roads 
Engineering Services & Construction Management Oversee engineering of roadways and 

key structures 
Debris Management Oversee debris management activities 

with private contractors, State of Alaska 
Department of Transportation, or Army 
Corps of Engineers 
 

 
Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for Public Works 
and Engineering. As ESF coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates meetings, 
plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the Public 
Works and Engineering primary and support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The Incident Commander(s) will assess the need for public works and engineering 
resources at the scene(s) and request that the EOC deploy available assets to support 
emergency operations. The Public Works Department with support from Engineering 
will work with the EOC Team to rapidly assess these requests and recommend 
appropriate actions. 
Public works and engineering resources available to the City will be used as necessary 
to accomplish emergency tasks, including but not limited to: 

• Ensuring the safety of emergency responders and victims 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
3 

• Assessing damaged infrastructure 

• Restoring and protecting critical roads. and bridges 

• Repairing critical public buildings, bridges and other infrastructure 

• Bridges are the responsibility of the state DOT 
The City could lack equipment, fund and materials to conduct emergency repairs and/or 
restoration of all essential streets, roads, and related bridges, overpasses and 
underpasses depending upon the extent and duration of a disaster or emergency 
situation. Other essential services may be severely restricted as well. For example, the 
City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to provide emergency power for all but critical 
service locations such as the dispatch center, radio transmission tower sites, the EOC, 
the fire department, City Hall, Birch Hill, University of Alaska Fairbanks (UAF), public 
works and the police department. The City of Fairbanks has limitedno capabilityies to 
provide potable water and will have to rely on out-of-City resources. 
The City’s Engineering Department will maintain essential roads and streets in a 
condition to facilitate traffic movement. 
As needed, the City of Fairbanks Public Works Department, along with the private utility 
companies will make emergency repairs to lift stations and critical wastewater facilities, 
equipment and systems. The Public Works Department, Engineering, and the Fire 
Department will provide assistance for debris removal and disposal activities, and by 
providing a “rapid assessment” of damage sustained to wastewater facilities, equipment 
and systems. 
Sanitation needs, such as trash removal is the responsibility of Public Works in 
Fairbanks. If portable toilets are required, the transportation, placement and removal of 
portable toilets will be handled through criteria outlined in the Resources Annex (ESF 7)  
Debris removal and disposal is associated with nearly every disaster. A major disaster 
can generate an enormous volume of debris in a short period of time. Hazardous 
materials or hazardous wastes may also be generated as a result of a disaster. These 
types of waste require specialized removal, neutralization, disposal and remediation 
procedures in accordance with Federal, State and local laws, regulations and 
ordinances. Public Works personnel are trained only to the Awareness Level as 
prescribed by 29 CFR 1910.120. They can assist the Fire Department with HazMat in a 
support capacity, but not to exceed the extent of their training. 
Once landfills, temporary staging areas (transfer sites) and/or reduction sites are 
determined, transportation routes to these facilities will be included in debris disposal 
announcements to the public. Considerations for route selection will include truck size, 
length of haul, traffic patterns, road conditions, and facility access. Designated routes 
for hazardous materials, if any, will be included. 
Timely information will be provided to the public on the magnitude of the situation, as 
well as the sequence of debris removal and disposal operations. Public officials and 
environmental groups should be briefed on the burning methods used, how the systems 
work, environmental standards, and associated health issues and risks. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
4 

Incidents of illegal dumping or the locations of illegal dump sites should be reported to 
the City of Fairbanks Police Department. 
Debris removal activities will be prioritized in the following order: 

• Threats to Public Health & Safety 
o Debris as threat to lives, public health, and safety, including debris 

which obstructs passage of emergency vehicles and access to critical 
facilities 

• Prevention of Damage 
o Debris posing the threat of significant additional damage to public 

structures (buildings, roads, etc.), or private property 

• Speedy Recovery 
o Debris hindering the economic recovery of the City of Fairbanks 

• Debris on Private Property 
o The property owner is responsible  

 Most homeowner fire and extended coverage insurance policies 
have special coverage for debris removal and for demolition of 
heavily damaged structures  

 Specific guidance with respect to debris pick-up may be 
provided to the public following disaster or emergency 

• Right of Entry 
o Should local governmental resources be used to remove debris from 

private property when it poses a hazard to public health or safety, a 
right of entry agreement will be executed with the property owner. The 
right of entry agreement shall include a waiver of liability for 
government workers and specify any known owner intent to rebuild, to 
ensure that the foundation and utilities are not damaged further during 
debris removal operations 

Sites selected for temporary debris staging and reduction will be on public property with 
sufficient acreage to handle anticipated needs. Selection criteria will include minimum 
noise impact, adequate traffic flow and environmental considerations. 
Decisions on an ultimate disposal site (or sites) will be based upon the type(s) of debris 
involved, the proximity of existing public or private landfills, and any restrictions or 
capacity limits on their use. 
Prior to returning temporary debris staging and reduction sites to their previous use, all 
federal, state and local environmental requirements must be met: 

• Removable of Debris 
o Sites must be cleared of all foreign materials introduced as a result of 

the incident 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
5 

• Environmental Assessment 
o An environmental assessment or audit, may be conducted by the 

Public WorksEngineering Department and/or the Environmental 
Protection Agency to establish the need for a testing or monitoring 
program. This assessment should be done on ash, soil, ground & 
surface water 

The Public Works Department maintains a listing of Public Works Department owned 
equipment and trained operators including equipment, personnel and supplies. The 
Engineering Department and Fire Department maintain lists of local contractors and 
equipment rental businesses, including those qualified to remove hazardous materials, 
substances or wastes, asbestos and lead-based paint. 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with Public Works and Engineering. As indicated in the base EOP, 
the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, 
with Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3) being aligned with the Operations Section as 
shown in the figure on the following page. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Public Works and Engineering Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Public Works and Engineering 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with public works and 
engineering activities. Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Public Works & 
Engineering 

(ESF 3)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
6 

State, and Federal officials may also become critical members of the Public Works and 
Engineering team. 
Direction and Control 
All public works and engineering activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 
 
Responsibilities 
All tasked agencies will: 

• Develop applicable standard operating procedures (SOPs), guidelines and/or 
checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with public works 
and engineering activities 

• Provide ongoing status reports. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities, taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work in 
the event that state and federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities, and provide this information to the City’s Emergency Manager. 

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 
 
The Functional Coordinator will coordinate with the appropriate primary and support 
agencies to: 

Pre-Emergency 
• Render assistance to the Incident Commander as requested to mobilize and 

coordinate operations. 

• Facilitate call back of essential personnel. 

• Contact resources for availability. 

• Subsequent to a disaster, assess potential structural damage of roads and 
bridges for integrity for the movement of heavy equipment. 

• Treat roads as necessary to prevent accidents 

• Barricade non-essential roads to control traffic flow 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
7 

During Emergency 
• Restore traffic routes, providing priority service to roads and streets 

designated as primary or support routes. 

• Make emergency repairs on streets, bridges and other structures. 

• Establish detour routes. 

• Provide barricades for traffic control points; assist in traffic control as 
requested. 

• Remove debris and transport to selected sites for disposal. 

• Implement existing standard operating procedures, such as snow removal 
plans and support to facilitate law, fire and search/rescue operations. 

• During a flood situation, provide assistance in sandbagging operations, 
emergency dike repair and clearance of floating debris obstructing free water 
flow. 

• Provide protection for water supplies and sewage systems from the effects of 
hazardous materials 

Post-Emergency 
• Ensure that hazardous material identification and protection training is 

provided to all Public Works personnel 

• Assist with damage assessment to essential transportation routes, bridges 
and public buildings 

• Make recommendations for changes to building codes as required 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the ESF 
Resources Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
All agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
8 

The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. The 
Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform the 
functional group members. 
 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines.  
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. COF finance will provide project codes. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
9 

Attachment 1: Public Works & Engineering Function Checklist of Actions by 
Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities in the public 
works system. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex, as well as 
supporting guidelines and operating procedures. 

 Review all portions of the EOP to ensure proper 
coordination of public works and engineering 
activities. 

 Ensure public works and engineering personnel 
receive appropriate emergency operations training. 

 Establish contact with private resources that could 
provide support during an emergency. 

 Participate in emergency training and exercises. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Provide public works and engineering support on a 
priority basis as determined by the EOC and/or the 
Incident Commander(s). 

 Provide representative to the EOC as requested. 
 Inspect damage to streets, bridges, and public 

buildings and provide this information to the 
Damage Assessment Coordinator. 

 Support decontamination as necessary. 
 Clear roads to facilitate emergency operations. 
 Close roads and construct barricades as directed. 
 Make recommendations on priority of repairs. 
 Request outside assistance from surrounding 

jurisdictions and the private sector as required. 
 Assist in emergency operations as described in the  

Search and Rescue Annex (ESF 9). 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 

by the situation. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
10 

Phase Actions 
 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Continue to repair infrastructure and buildings on a 
priority basis. 

 Continue all activities in coordination with the EOC 
based on the requirements of the incident. 

 Participate in after-action reports and critiques. 
 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 

and supporting plans and procedures. 
 Recommend changes in planning, zoning, and 

building codes to prevent or lessen the effect of 
future disasters. 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
11 

Attachment 2: List of Public Works and Engineering Resources 
 
On file at Fairbanks Fire Department Administration Office 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
12 

Attachment 3: List of Heavy Equipment Vendors 
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex C – Public Works and Engineering (ESF 3)      Operations Branch 
13 

Attachment 4: Landfill Map 
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex D –Firefighting (ESF 4)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager or Incident Commander or the designee is 
the functional coordinator for all functions in the EOP. However, due to capacity and 
capability limitations, each function is sub-divided into individual mission areas with 
agencies having primary and support responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary 
Agency  

Support Agency POC/Liaison 

Coordination of Local 
Firefighting Activities 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Department 

Area Fire 
Departments 

 
 
 

Ft. Wainwright 
Fire Department 

 
 

Eielson Fire 
Department 

 
 
COF Public Works 

Department 
 

COF Police 
Department 

COF Fire  
(907) 450-6600 or 
Dispatch   
(907) 450-6507 
 
Ft. Wainwright Fire  
(907) 353-6485 
 
 
Eielson Fire  
(907) 377-4156 
 
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 
 
 
 
COF Police Contact Dispatch 

Support To Wild land, 
Rural, & Urban 
Firefighting Operations 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Department 

AK Department of 
Natural 

Resources 
(Forestry) 

 
 
 

U.S. Bureau of 
Land 

Management 

COF Fire  
(907) 450-6600 or 
Dispatch  
(907) 450-6507 
 
DNR  
(907) 451-2626 / 2660 
 
BLM  
(907) 356-5670 
 
 

 
Purpose  
This Functional Annex provides guidance for the organization of City resources to 
respond to fires resulting in an emergency situation exceeding normal firefighting 
capabilities. Specifically, it discusses: 

• Fire suppression and prevention activities 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
2 

• Mutual aid and resource augmentation 

• Fire command and control structure 
 
The Fire Departments and other supporting agencies have existing emergency plans 
and procedures. This annex is not designed to take the place of these plans, rather it is 
designed to complement and support the departmental staffing and procedures already 
in place.  
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex D is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Firefighting Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with assigned 
emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The Firefighting Functional Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members 
of the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other firefighting (ESF 4) needs, the City of Fairbanks will 
require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area and federal fire 
departments, and in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the 
State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Coordination of Local Firefighting Activities Incident Command 
Support To Wild land, Rural, & Urban Firefighting 
Operations 

Incident Command and Mutual Aid 

 
The Fairbanks Emergency Manager is designated as the coordinator for firefighting. As 
ESF coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, 
training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the Firefighting primary and 
support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The Fairbanks Regional Communication Center is responsible for dispatching 
firefighting resources within the City. 
A comprehensive resource inventory of fire apparatus and equipment is maintained by 
Fairbanks Fire Department (See Attachment 4 – Firefighting Resources). 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
3 

The Fire Chief is responsible for coordination, planning, training and the development of 
firefighting operational policy for the City. Included, is the coordination of fire services 
during an emergency/disaster occurring within the boundaries of the Fairbanks Fire 
Department’s responsibility. Control over personnel and equipment will be retained 
within the City of Fairbanks at all times.  
Providers of specialized equipment are responsible for ensuring the proper training and 
certification of equipment operators. 
Under NIMS, the Safety Officer assesses hazardous and/or unsafe situations, and 
either develops measures or ensures compliance with existing policies for assuring 
personnel safety of responders. 

Critical/Specialized Capabilities 
• Rescue: The Fairbanks Fire Department is trained in auto extrications, heavy 

rescue response, rope rescue, and high angle rescue, confined space rescue, 
water rescue., trench rescue, and structural collapse rescue. 

• Medical: EMS is provided throughout the FNSB from either Borough EMS or 
one of the many Fire Districts serving the area (See Attachment 2: Fire and 
EMS Service Map and Attachment 3 EMS Mutual Aid Agreement). Within 
the City of Fairbanks, the Fire Department provides both Basic Life Support 
(BLS) and Advanced Life Support (ALS). For an incident within the Fairbanks 
areas of responsibility, FFD personnel will act as Medical Control and begin 
initial treatment and triage for the eventual transportation to a medical facility. 

• Mass Care: Fire departments/districts serving the greater Fairbanks area can 
assist with the delivery of non-potable water for critical facilities in the event of 
a disaster. 

• Damage Assessment/Inspections: During the initial stages of a disaster, 
FFD can assist in the preliminary damage assessment. During the recovery 
phase, FFD can assist in fire safety inspections of post disaster housing, 
sheltering, and feeding facilities as required. 

• Hazardous Materials Incidents/Accidents: FFD is responsible for the initial 
response and, if possible, containment of hazardous materials. If the scope of 
the problem is beyond the capabilities of FFD, the Incident Commander may 
call for the response of the Borough Hazardous Materials Team through 
Dispatch.  
The Emergency Manager or Incident Commander will determine the hazard 
level of the incident, identification of the material, and direct the activities of 
responders and affected population(s). All fire department personnel in the 
City of Fairbanks are trained to at least the Awareness Level for hazardous 
materials in accordance with 29CFR 1910.120.  

Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
4 

activities associated with firefighting. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks 
EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with firefighting (ESF 
4) being aligned with the Operations Section as shown in the figure on the following page. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Firefighting Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate firefighting coordinators/liaisons of 
EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives report to the EOC to 
coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with firefighting. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and Federal 
officials may also become critical members of the Firefighting team. 
Direction and Control 
All firefighting activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency 
Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the source of 
all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission.  

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the Fairbanks EOC to assist with 
firefighting activities. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Firefighting
(ESF 4)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
5 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Communicate warnings in areas of the City of Fairbanks without warning 
devices. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned.  

City of Fairbanks Public Works Department 
• Provide resources and personnel to support emergency firefighting 

operations. 

City of Fairbanks Police Department 
• Assist with traffic control and security at fire scene(s). 

Functional Coordinator through Primary and Support Agencies  
• Pre-Emergency 

o Render assistance to the Incident Commander as requested to 
mobilize and coordinate operations. 

o Facilitate call back of essential personnel. 
o Contact resources for availability. 
o Barricade non-essential roads to control traffic flow 

• During Emergency 
o Establish detour routes. 
o Provide barricades for traffic control points; assist in traffic control as 

requested. 
o Provide protection for firefighting water supplies. 

• Post-Emergency 
o Assist with preliminary damage assessments.   
o Conduct fire safety inspections of post disaster housing, sheltering, 

and feeding facilities as required. 
 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
6 

Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the ESF 
Resources Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or to the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform 
the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
7 

 
 

Attachment 1: Firefighting Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities in the firefighting 
function. 

 Develop fire safety programs that include disaster 
situations and present them to the public. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex as well as 
supporting operating procedures and guidelines. 

 Ensure fire personnel receive appropriate 
emergency operations training.  

 Ensure fire mutual aid agreements with surrounding 
jurisdictions are current. 

 Develop and maintain mutual aid agreements with 
private area resources that could be useful for fire 
prevention or suppression. 

 Develop and maintain standard operating 
procedures and checklists to support emergency 
firefighting operations. 

 Ensure emergency call-up and resource lists are 
current. 

 Ensure the availability of necessary equipment to 
support firefighting activities. 

 Participate in emergency training and exercises. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Respond as required on a priority basis. 
 Activate mutual aid if needed. 
 Coordinate activities with other responding 

agencies. 
 Coordinate outside fire resources. 
 Alert or activate off-duty personnel as required by 

the emergency. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
8 

Phase Actions 
by the situation.  
 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Support clean up and restoration activities. 
 Review plans and procedures with key personnel 

and make revisions and changes. 
 Replenish supplies and repair damaged equipment. 
 Continue all activities in coordination with the EOC 

or Incident Command based on the requirements of 
the incident. 

 Provide sufficient documentation within established 
guidelines for possible State or federal 
reimbursement. 

 Participate in after-action briefings and develop 
after-action reports. 

 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 
and supporting plans and procedures. 

 
 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
9 

Attachment 2: Greater Fairbanks Fire Departments/Districts 
Distric map is avilable at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department. 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
10 

Attachment 3: EMS Mutual Aid Agreement 
 

Formatted: AEP Paragraph



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
11 

  
  

  
   



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
12 

 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
13 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
14 

 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
15 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
16 

 

Attachment 4: Firefighting Mutual Aid Agreement 
 
On file at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department 
 
 
 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
17 

 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
19 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 5: Firefighting Resources 
 

FAIRBANKS FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Apparatus 
Number 

Type of 
Equipment 

Pump or 
Primary Use 

Tank 
Capacity Special Equipment 

A–083 Ambulance EMS  Paramedic ALS; 4x4. 

A–095 Ambulance EMS  Paramedic ALS;. 4x4 

A–0106 Ambulance EMS  Paramedic ALS; 4x4 

A–0117 Ambulance EMS  Paramedic ALS; 4x4  (Bariatric Equipped) 

E–02 Pumper-Tanker 2000 2500 1000’ of 5” hose. CAFS;30 gal- AFFF.light tower 

E–04 Pumper-Tanker 2000 2500 1000’ of 5” hose. CAFS; 30 gal- AFFF.light tower 

E–05 Engine 2000 500 1000’ of 5” hose. 30 gallon of AFFF.light tower 

E–06 Engine 2000 500 1000’ of 5” hose; 30 gallon of AFFF.light tower 

E-07 Engine 2000 500 1000’ of 5” hose; 30 gallon of AFFF.light tower 
 

E-08 Engine 2000 500 1000’ of 5” hose; 30 gallon of AFFF.light tower 
 

PLT–21 Platform 2000 300 102’ platform with waterway; 800’ of 5” hose. 

PLT–32 Platform 2000 300 100’ platform with waterway; 800’ of 5” hose.  

R–1 Rescue Med. Rescue  Hurst tool; low pressure air bag system; raft; 
misc. rescue equipment. 

Boat Boat Water Rescue  River boat with 50 hp jet motor. 

Boat Raft Water Rescue  Inflatable raft with small motor. 

F–0171 SUV/Command Fire Chief  4x4; multi-channel radios; cell phone. 

F–01511 SUV/Command Asst. ChiefBack 
up BC  4x4 multi channel radio 

F–01312 SUV/Command 
Assistant 

ChiefBack up 
BC 

 4x4; multi-channel radios; cell phone. 

Formatted Table

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024 

Annex D – Firefighting (ESF 4)       Operations Branch 
20 

F–01613 SUV/Command 
Battalion 

ChiefTraining 
Officer 

 4x4; multi-channel radios; cell phone. 

F–04 Van Command Post 
& Investigation   Command Post equipment; inverter; multi-

channel radios; lighting; etc. 

F–09 
SUV/ 

Inspections & 
Investigations 

Deputy Fire 
Marshal   4x4; multi-channel radios; cell phone. 

F–0186 Pickup Support  4x4 ¾ ton  with 100 gal diesel tank 

F–0197 Pickup Support  4x4 ¾ ton ton  with 100 gal diesel tank 

F–010 (S)  
Heat PlantSkid 

Unit 
SUMMER Load 

CAFS–200 
GPM 150 

CAFS skid unit, Summer load on F-450 flat 
bed10kw gen; 2 oil-fired heaters; 4 - 500 watt 
lights; 8–20’ heat ducts; 5–120v duplex 
receptacles, Inflatable Shelter. 

F–01410 
(W) 

Skid Unit 
WINTER Load 
Brush Truck 

CAFS 
200gmpCold 
Operations 

 
10kw gen; 2 oil-fired heaters; 4 - 500 watt lights; 
8–20’ heat ducts; 5–120v duplex receptacles, 
Inflatable Shelter.  Winter load on F-450 flat bed 

FTR–24 Trailer Trench Rescue  Trench rescue support 

FTR–37 Trailer Trench rescue  7.5 KW generator, light tower 

TR–0396 Trailer Car Fire 
PropRoll back  Large covered low boy trailer 

WPS–01 Trailer Water 
Purification  H2O purification 20KW generator 

TR-03035 Trailer 
Oxygen 

Concentrator at 
FMH 

 Oxygen Concentrator, to refill O2 cylinders 

FLP–02 Light Tower Night 
Operations  6kw generator; 4–1000 watt lamps; 3–120v 

duplex receptacles.  

FL–05 Fork Lift City Garage  Outdoor, propane fueled 7000 lbs capacity 

ML-2 Scissor Lift City Garage  Electric scissor lift, 19’ 

 
 
Staffing:  Total responders = 39 
 
 

Hazardous Materials training/certification   EMS Level 
Awareness = 2 ETT = 0 

Operations =  0 EMT-1 = 4 

Technician = 37 EMT-2 = 5 

Specialist = 1  EMT-3 = 8 
Command = 2 MICP = 22 
 
 

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
1 

Annex E –Emergency Management (ESF 5)   ICS Area: Command 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support 
Agency 

POC/Liaison 

Coordination of 
Incident Management 
& Response Efforts 

COF Emergency 
Management 
(Fire Chief) 
 
 

COF Fire 
Department 
 
 
 
COF Police 
Department 
 
 
COF Public 
Works 
Department 

COF EM (Fire Chief)  
(907) 450-6604 or  
Dispatch   
(907) 450-6507 
 
COF Fire and Police Contact 
Dispatch  
(907) 450-6507 
 
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Issuance of Mission 
Assignments 

COF Emergency 
Management 
(Fire Chief) 
 

 

COF Fire 
Department 
 
 
 
COF Police 
Department 
 
 
COF Public 
Works 
Department 

COF EM (Fire Chief)  
(907) 450-6604 or  
Dispatch   
(907) 450-6507 
 
COF Fire and Police Contact 
Dispatch  
(907) 450-6507 
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Resource and Human 
Capital 

COF Human 
Resources 
Department 

N/A COF Human Resources  
(907) 459-6780 

Incident Action 
Planning 

COF Emergency 
Management 

N/A COF EM (Fire Chief)  
(907) 450-6604 

Financial Management COF Finance 
Department 

All City 
Departments 

Finance Director  
(907) 459-6776 

 
Purpose  
This Functional Annex describes the actions required to coordinate disaster response 
and recovery functions and manage disaster related information. This annex addresses: 

• Emergency Operations Center (EOC) activation, configuration, management 
and staffing. 

• On-scene command and control structure and interface with the EOC. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
2 

• Emergency decision making and the local declaration process. 

• Requesting Borough, State and Federal assistance. 

• Overall coordination of mutual aid and regional operations. 

• Decision-making and information dissemination. 

• Information collection, analysis and dissemination. 

• Issuing situation reports, bulletins and advisories. 

• Briefings for staff and elected officials. 

• GIS and Modeling Support. 

• Action Planning and Resource tracking. 
  

Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex E is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Emergency Management Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The Firefighting Functional Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members 
of the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Emergency Management (ESF 5) needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area and 
federal fire departments, and in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) 
and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Coordination of Incident Management & Response 
Efforts 

All Incident Command System (ICS) 
Capabilities 

Issuance of Mission Assignments All Incident Command System (ICS) 
Capabilities 

Resource and Human Capital All Incident Command System (ICS) 
Capabilities 

Incident Action Planning All Incident Command System (ICS) 
Capabilities 

Financial Management All Incident Command System (ICS) 
Capabilities 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
3 

 
The Fairbanks Emergency Manager is designated as the coordinator for Emergency 
Management. As ESF coordinator, the Emergency Manager (or designee) coordinates 
meetings, plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the 
Emergency Management primary and support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision making. Smaller incidents 
may be coordinated from the Incident Command Post without the need to activate the 
EOC.  
Policy and coordination functions will be accomplished from the EOC, while tactical and 
operational decisions will be made in the field within the Incident Command 
(ICS)/National Incident Management System (NIMS) structure. 
The City of Fairbanks EOC is located at 911 Cushman Street (Police Station). The City 
of Fairbanks EOC is equipped to communicate with the field, as well as with other local, 
State, Federal and private sector agencies by landline telephone, radio, facsimile and 
cellular telephone. In the event that the City of Fairbanks EOC should become 
unusable, the alternate location will be the 2121 Peger Road (City Public Works)1710 
30th Ave, Fire Training Center. 
Security for the City of Fairbanks EOC is provided through Fairbanks Police 
Department. All EOC personnel will be checked in through security and provided with 
an EOC pass. In case of the need for relocation, the primary EOC staff will direct 
volunteers to report to the alternate site to begin the process of setting up the alternate 
site. Key Officials will be notified to re-direct their response to the new site. 
Information will continue to be relayed and recorded by Dispatch Center as the 
relocation occurs in order to provide a smooth flow of information to the Key Officials as 
they arrive at the alternate site. 
The EOC will be established to support field operations and promote the integration of 
all response and recovery operations, including the following: 

• Collect, record, analyze, display and distribute information. 

• Support activities at the scene and in the field. 

• Coordinate public information and warning. 

• Conduct liaison and coordination activities with external entities. 

• Prioritize and coordinate disaster related activities. 

• Notify and provide ongoing information to elected officials. 

• Prepare action and policy plans. 

• Coordinate long term recovery operations. 

• Situation assessment. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
4 

• Direction and control (broad guidance, not tactical unless operating from the 
Incident Command Post). 

• Interagency coordination. 

• Establishment of priorities. 

• Resource management and augmentation 
Since routine emergencies can quickly grow into disasters, response agencies will keep 
the City of Fairbanks Emergency Management informed of escalating situations that 
may require EOC activation. The EOC may be activated or deactivated as required for 
exercises, impending or actual emergencies, or on the order of the Emergency 
Management Coordinator.  
Field operations will normally communicate with the EOC primarily by radio and or 
cellular telephone. Most other agencies and organizations will communicate with the 
EOC via landline and cellular telephone and/or facsimile. 
As information reaches the EOC, it will be recorded into an events log electronically or 
using preprinted (hard copy) ICS forms. Emergency Management will work to ensure a 
system is in place to receive information from responding and participating agencies 
and relay messages to the appropriate EOC personnel. 
In urgent situations, messages may be relayed to EOC personnel verbally, but should 
be followed up with written documentation as soon as feasible. 
Reports will be forwarded as needed to the appropriate local, State and Federal 
officials. 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with Firefighting. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks 
EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Firefighting (ESF 
5) being aligned with Command as shown in the figure below. 

 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Emergency Management:
ESF 5

Planning Section Operations 
Section Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
5 

 
EOC ICS Structure Showing Emergency Management Function 

 
The EOC will be organized and staffed to support the ICS/NIMS operational structure 
described above. The organization and staffing of the EOC will be designed to provide a 
direction and control structure with the flexibility to adapt to the magnitude of any 
emergency situation. 
Following, are the EOC positions that may be filled during EOC activations. During 
smaller EOC activations, one individual may fill more than one position. During large or 
complex events, teams of people may be needed to fill each position. 
 

 
ICS/EOC Interface 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Functional coordinators/liaisons of 
EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives report to the EOC to 
coordinate their Functions as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist. Depending on the nature 
and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and Federal officials may also become 
critical members of the Emergency Management team. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
6 

Direction and Control 
All Emergency Management activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned functions/mission 
areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
Emergency Management activities. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned. 
 
Each and every agency, department, office and division of City of Fairbanks 
government is charged with development of and assistance in their respective Function. 
Each of these entities as well as private industry and other public and private agencies 
that have responsibilities for the public should maintain and periodically test, review and 
update their Functional Annex. 

Persons with Access and Functional Needs 
Addressing individuals with access and functional Special needs will be accomplished 
by each individual agency chaged with their care. All agencies rely upon the expertise of 
those entities that deal with special populations on a day-to-day basis not only to 
provide comprehensive and accessible means of service, but to work closely with all 
public safety agencies to ensure complete and adequate care before, during and after 
disaster situation. Among these services are included: 

• Communication (pre- and post-disaster) 

• Evacuation 

• Transporation 

• Sheltering 

• Mitigation assistance 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
7 

• Unmet needs 
 

Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform 
the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
8 

Attachment 1: Emergency Management Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in the hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities. 

 Develop emergency preparedness programs and 
present them to the public. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex and its attachments. 
 Ensure City personnel and partner agencies and 

organizations are provided with opportunities to take 
emergency operations and ICS training. 

 Maintain the primary and alternate Emergency 
Operations Centers (EOCs). 

 Develop and maintain standard operating 
 Procedures and checklists to support Emergency 

Management activities. 
 Ensure notification and call-up lists are current. 
 Develop emergency exercises to support 

Emergency Management activities. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Activate the EOC and notify City and partner 
agencies, Borough, and State officials as needed. 

 Request mutual aid as needed. 
 Request assistance from Alaska Emergency 

Management through Fairbanks North Star Borough 
Emergency Management, if dictated by the 
situation. 

 Coordinate the activities of all responding agencies. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 

by the situation. 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre- disaster levels. 

 Continue to coordinate the activities of all 
responding agencies. 

 Support community recovery activities. 
 Schedule after-action briefings and develop after-

action reports. 
 Develop and implement mitigation strategies. 
 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 

and supporting plans and procedures. 
 
 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
9 

Attachment 2: Process for Declaration of Local State of Emergency 

Authority:   
AS.24.140 

Definitions: 
 

EMERGENCY: Shall mean and include "disasters" and "war emergencies."  
A situation occurs that has progressed or is anticipated to progress beyond the 
capability of regular municipal personnel and resources, assisted by personnel and 
resources from contiguous municipalities, to maintain order, control and confine the 
incident. 
 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS: Actions taken to provide for the health, 
safety and welfare of the people AND to aid in the prevention of damage to and the 
destruction of property during any emergency, as defined above, by prescribing a 
course of conduct in order to centralize control of activities having to do with such 
emergency. 

Elements in the Declaration Process: 
When in the Opinion of the Emergency Manager (Fire Chief) or in his/her absence 
the Deputy Fire Chief, a Disaster/Emergency has occurred or is imminent in the City 
of Fairbanks. 

Actions: 
• The Emergency Manager (or designees) SHALL declare a state of local 

emergency to exist. 

• The Emergency Manager will confer with the Mayor, when contemplating a 
declaration of a State of Local Emergency and prior to the actual Declaration. 

• As soon as it becomes apparent that the Declaration of a Local State of 
Emergency may become necessary and prior to issuing the Declaration the 
Emergency Manager SHALL notify the FNSB Office of Emergency 
Management and the Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management. 

• Upon issuing a Declaration of a Local State of Emergency by the Mayor, the 
Emergency Manager SHALL have complete authority to issue such orders as 
may be necessary to implement and carry out Emergency Management 
operations and to protect the health, safety, and resources of the residents of 
the City of Fairbanks. 

• Upon issuance of the Declaration a copy will immediately be forwarded to the 
FNSB Office of Emergency Management and the Alaska Division of 
Homeland Security and Emergency Management 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
10 

Contents of a Declaration of a Local State of Emergency: 
Shall contain but not be limited to the following: 

• DATE & TIME of the declaration. 

• DELINEATION of the area included in the declaration. 

• SPECIAL ORDERS associated with the declaration and the reasons justifying 
these orders. 

Situations that might require a declaration: 

• Natural Disaster: Winter Storms, Earthquake, Flooding, and Public Health 
Emergency. 

• Man-made Disasters: Civil Unrest, HazMat incidents. 
Delineation examples: 

Exists within the entire City, exists within a specific area of the City, i.e., from 
Airport Way Street north to Growden Park.  

Special Orders:  

• Curfews 
o Justification: To provide Law Enforcement personnel the ability to 

control access to particular areas. 

• Evacuations, partial or full. 
o Justification: To remove potential victims from the dangers 

associated with the incident. 

• Restrict access to certain geographic areas. 
o Justification: To allow only emergency response personnel to specific 

areas. 

• Rationing of resources, i.e., odd/even watering days, odd/even license of 
resource per pickup period. 

o Justification: Provide control over limited resources. 

• Travel Restrictions Prohibiting all NON-EMERGENCY related travel. 
o Justification: To protect lives and allow emergency work to be 

accomplished. 

• Restrictions on vehicle parking. 
o Justification: To be able to keep roads clear for emergency response 

vehicles. 
 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
11 

Process of Declaring a Local State of Emergency 
1. Determine that the situation meets the criteria for a declaration. 
2. Confer with Mayor, City Attorney, Borough/State Emergency Management 

personnel etc. 
3. Determine the specifics and justifications for the declaration. 
4. Prepare, utilizing the sample provided, date, and sign the Declaration 
5. Alert the public about the specifics of the declaration. 
6. Notify & send copy of declaration to the Borough and State. 

Rescinding Declaration of Emergency 
When the situation is stabilized and there no longer a need have the special orders in 
effect, the Declaration of Emergency should be rescinded. Upon rescinding, notify the 
Borough and State. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
12 

Attachment 3: Sample Local Emergency Declaration 

TO ALL RESIDENTS AND PERSONS WITHIN THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, 
AND TO ALL DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the powers vested by AS 26.24.140, I have declared that a local 
disaster/emergency exists within the City of Fairbanks, and 
 
WHEREAS, the aforesaid Ordinance authorizes the promulgation of such orders, rules and 
regulations as are necessary to meet the various problems which have or may occur due to such 
an emergency, and 
 
WHEREAS, by reason of the conditions which are imminent due to [DISASTER NAME] 
anticipated impact on the City of Fairbanks which may affect the health, safety and welfare of 
the people of the City of Fairbanks, and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that these areas of the City of Fairbanks should then be 
declared disaster areas and further that certain measures must be taken in order to insure that the 
authorities as well as maintaining an orderly flow of traffic, and further in order to protect the 
persons and property of the residents affected by the conditions, and 
 
WHEREAS, the following areas are designated disaster areas: Within the [ENTIRE CITY OF 
FAIRBANKS OR DESCRIBE SPECIFIC AREA].  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH the aforesaid ordinance, it is promulgated and 
declared that the following regulations shall be in addition to all other laws of the State of Alaska 
City of Fairbanks. 

Special Orders [EXAMPLES): 

• Curfew 

• Evacuation 

________________________________          
Emergency Manager 
 
________________________________        Date: 
Print Name 
________________________________ 
Mayor 
________________________________        Date: 
Print Name 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex E – Emergency Management (ESF 5)      Command 
13 

Attachment 4: List of Emergency Management Resources 
 
On file at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex F –Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)  ICS Area:  
Operations 
Functional Coordination 

 
Functional  Coordinator: City of Fairbanks (COF) Emergency Manager (EM):  
907-450-6604 or Dispatch 450-6507 
 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Mass Care (i.e. basic 
first aid not requiring 
hospital care) 

COF Fire/ 
Emergency 
Medical Services 
(EMS) 

Fairbanks 
Memorial Hospital 
(FMH) 

P: Local EMS contacted thru 
Dispatch  
(907) 450-6507 
 
S: FMH Emergency Dept.  
(907) 452-8181 

Emergency Assistance COF, 
American Red 
Cross (ARC) 

COF EM P: Red Cross  
(907) 456-5937 
 
S: City of Fairbanks 
Emergency Management: (Fire 
Chief)  
(907) 450-6604 or  
Dispatch  
(907)450-6507 

Disaster Housing ARC  
 
State of Alaska 
(SOA) 
 
 ARC 

SOA Department 
of Health and 
Social Services 
(DHS)/EM 
 
COF Housing 
Coordinator 
ARC 

P: Red Cross  
(907) 456-5937, SEOC 
 
S: DHSS through the SEOC 
 
S: Housing Coordinator 
(907) 459-6836 

Human Services Public Health SOA Department 
of Health and 
Social Services 

P: Public Health  
(800) 478-1777 
 
S: DHSS through the SEOC 

 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table above.  

NOTE: For care of medically fragile populations in a general shelter, coordination with 
Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8) is important. Public Health and Medical 
Services has the lead in Alternate Care Site/Medical Surge shelters, with coordination 
as necessary with Mass Care. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
2 

Purpose  

Mass Care is the capability to provide immediate shelter, feeding centers, basic first aid, 
bulk distribution of needed items, and related services to persons affected by a large-
scale incident. Mass Care speaks to the ability to receive and care for persons who 
have evacuated, either from a high-risk area in anticipation of an emergency, or in 
response to an actual emergency, then assist with their temporary and permanent 
housing needs.  Shelter operations comprise the majority of services addressed in this 
annex. Other services are frequently provided in conjunction with shelter operations or 
set up separately dependent upon the specifics of the incident.  

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below.  For all other Mass Care (ESF 6) needs, the City of Fairbanks will 
require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) in coordination with Fairbanks 
North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Health of citizens (i.e. basic first aid, not requiring 
definitive care) 

COF EM will coordinate with COF 
Fire/EMS and FMH as needed to provide 
basic first aid to affected citizens in 
shelters or at other mass care sites. 

Emergency housing, basic human needs COF Housing CoordinatorARC will 
coordinate with COF EM,  and SOA, and 
ARC (and through COF IC with the SOA 
EOC) to coordinate shelter/alternate 
housing strategies, and human services 
needs.  
 
NOTE: ARC will also be responsible for 
coordinating requests for blood 
donations and blood donations 
operations. This is addressed in Annex 
H: Public Health and Medical Services. 

Trailers & other temp housing COF Housing Coordinator ARC will 
coordinate with COF EM and through 
COF EM with SEOC and ARC to identify 
and deploy temporary housing solutions 
not included in shelter operations (e.g. 
trailers, mobile homes, hotels, etc.). 

DHSS related services COF will coordinate with DHS and SOA 
DHSS to provide human services. 

 
The capabilities of Fairbanks Memorial Hospital are directly limited to the resources 
available to the hospital.  
This Functional Annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) (or the incident command 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
3 

structure deemed appropriate for the incident) and implementation of the City of 
Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex F is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 

General 
NOTE: Activities and Responsibilities by Phase of Response are provided in 
Attachment A of this Annex. 
Responsibilities for Mass Care on a large scale disaster are as follows:  

• COF EM will perform overall coordination and serve as the primary external 
liaison for the City of Fairbanks.  

• COF Housing CoordinatorARC provides coordination for shelter facilities, 
kitchens, and custodial and/or maintenance staff. This coordination includes 
involvement of SOA ARC, and other agencies as necessary and through the 
COF EOC/IC 

• COF Housing CoordinatorARC will coordinate with ARC and local agencies to 
provide staff, resources and operate the shelter.  

• COF Fire/EMS will coordinate for basic first aid care in shelters and at other 
human services care sites as necessary. 

• Fairbanks Memorial Hospital will work with ARC and COF Fire/EMS as 
necessary to provide staff/oversight at shelters for medically fragile individuals 
housed in general use shelters. 

 

Scalable Operations pertaining to Mass Care (Scope): 
Potential hazards, natural and/or man-made, may require the evacuation and shelter of 
selected areas.  The actual emergency situation will, of course, determine the scope of 
the evacuation and the number of evacuees. 
Shelter operations can be scalable as follows:  

o Level 1- A incident that affects 1 to 30 fFamilies who require shelter less 
than 24 hrs. The American Red Cross (ARC) is the lead agency in 
Fairbanks for emergency housing. At this level they will not need to 
coordinate their operation through the ICS structure and/or the FNSB and 
State unless their services are absolutely needed. ARC may work with the 
Incident Commander (IC) at the scene and coordinate needed resource 
directly through them. This level of activation should fit within the day-to-
day SOPs of the City of Fairbanks and ARC and those SOPs should be 
accessed for operational detail. 

o Level 2- A incident local to the City of Fairbanks. COF Housing 
Coordinator Red Cross (or whichever agency is the initial responder) will 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
4 

contact the other relevant response agencies for initiation of coordinated 
response and operations will be conducted following this Annex.  

o Level 3- A large wide spread incident: all available facilities and shelter 
trained staff could be activated to operate shelters and related services. 
Shelters may or may not be operated in the City of Fairbanks but will be 
operational in the Fairbanks North Star Borough region. ARC, Public 
Health, Fairbanks Fire, and (to the extent needed) Fairbanks Memorial 
Hospital will provide assistance to the evacuees from the City of Fairbanks 
primarily and upon needed basis to citizens from other communities per 
MOUs.  
At this level, the City of Fairbanks will be coordinating operations and 
resource requests with the State of Alaska EOC, Alaska’s State American 
Red Cross headquarters and the State of Alaska (SOA) Department of 
Health and Human Services. 

• Issues originating in the shelter will be escalated through the chain of command. 
If appropriate, it will be resolved collaboratively by mass care stakeholders in the 
EOC/IC. 

• All agencies are responsible for tracking their own expenses and time during 
shelter operations, and submitting for reimbursement to the Emergency 
Manager. 

• ARC will coordinate housing and human services with the EOC/IC and other 
community organizations to reach affected residents outside the shelter, ensuring 
there are no unmet needs. Those needs can be but are not limited to  

o Housing,  
o Crisis counseling,  
o Food and water,  
o Basic house equipment, clothing,  
o Access to Federal Recovery Centers.  

 

Notification 
Internal 
The shelter notification process that involves all parties in this annex is processed 
through the Emergency Management Coordinator. If the EOC/IC is activated, the 
initiation will occur through the IC. The COF Housing Coordinator will coordinate with 
the Director of ARCDirector of ARC will be contacted and asked to identify a shelter 
location(s) and/or alternate housing solutions.  
The local Director of the ARC will contact SOA ARC/ neighboring ARC organizations as 
needed requesting assistance with a shelter opening in Fairbanks or identifying a 
shelter location in FNSB.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
5 

When a shelter location has been identified by ARC, the COF EM EOC/IC will be 
contacted for support. In the event the shelter location is at a school1 in Fairbanks, the 
FNSB School District superintendent will be contacted for access to the facility.  
 
External 
COF EM will coordinate with the COF Public Information Officer (PIO) (or individual 
assigned this position for the incident response) regarding the details of the public 
notice that a shelter is open and operating.  Public notice will include strategies to 
communicate with individuals with functional and access needs (i.e. special needs 
populations). 
Evacuees will be advised during the evacuation and shelter announcement to bring 
personal items such as one change of clothing, special medicines, baby food and 
supplies, special diet food, and sleeping bags or blankets.  
People who are not eligible to take shelter in the public shelter, (i.e. a person with 
certain felony convictions) will be directed to an alternated facility which will be 
coordinated with COF resources (e.g. Law Enforcement, DHS).  
Policies                    
ARC will lead the coordination of the facility choice to ensure that appropriate building is 
chosen to ensure ARC can provide shelter management to the ARC standards.  
In the event a COF public school facility is being used by regular school activities, the 
school district administration has the right to deny access to the facility for shelter 
operations. ARC will utilize other facilities from the shelter list at that time.  
In the event that COF public schools are designated shelters, FNSB School District 
administration must be included in the IC process. 

Coordination of Services 
ARC will coordinate with City of Fairbanks stakeholders and with SOA stakeholders to 
address human services issues for the victims outside the shelter as well. This would 
also include attempting to assist with the housing needs that the misplaced residents 
will have for short- and long-term.  
Human Services outside shelter operations is primarily coordinated by the City of 
Fairbanks with involvement (as soon as possible if needed) of the SOA Emergency 
Operations Center (EOC). ARC ensures the major coordination of items such as; food, 
water, ice and potentially other times are distributed to the affected people. City of 
Fairbanks, through the SOA EOC will, if applicable, assist with any available federal aid 
coordination to ensure it reaches the eligible people.   

 
1 Currently, there are no city-designated/city operated shelters in COF. This item 
presupposes an ad hoc arrangement based on the needs of a specific incident or 
arrangements/MOUs in place with ARC.  Formatted: Highlight



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
6 

At least daily situation reports (augmented as necessary to provide any relevant 
information requiring immediate action) should be provided to the City of Fairbanks 
IC/EOC about the status of evacuees and of operations at the shelter center(s). This will 
be provided to FNSB, North Pole, and the SOA EOC as appropriate for the level of 
activation. All supporting agencies will provide the vital information for the report to 
ensure accurate data is provided.  

Transportation to/from Shelters and/or Other Mass Care Service Sites 
Transportation to and from shelters may be a subject for consideration. Most 
businesses, schools, hospitals, nursing homes, etc., have developed internal plans for 
providing expedient shelter within their facilities. While the City of Fairbanks does not 
have any designated shelters for protection from natural or technological hazards, it 
does coordinate the activation of shelters with FNSB for the purpose of providing mass 
care & shelter for persons displaced from their homes. For more information 
regarding Transportation assets and plans in Fairbanks, please see the City of 
Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan, Annex A: Transportation. 
When the emergency/disaster situation has stabilized and it is again safe to return to a 
previously evacuated area, the authorization to allow reentry will be given by the city 
emergency operations center (EOC), the Incident Commander (IC), or as otherwise 
directed.   
Consideration must be given to coordinating organized and/or limited access for people 
leaving shelters to areas which are damaged and which may be unsafe. This task, while 
not strictly a Mass care function, should be understood by those providing mass care 
services and activities coordinated with Emergency Management and Law 
Enforcement. 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) (or IC construct, depending on the 
level of activation) will serve as the central location for interagency coordination and 
executive decision-making, including all activities associated with Mass Care. It is 
understood that ARC maintains their own facilities. They may choose to conduct 
operations out of this site, being more practical, but will nevertheless coordinate activities 
and resource requests through the City of Fairbanks EOC/IC. In this event a liaison from 
ARC will be placed in the EOC.  
As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident 
Command System Structure, with Mass Care (ESF 6) being aligned with the Operations 
Section as shown in the figure below. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
7 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Transportation Function 
 

Notifications 
Generally, the Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Mass Care function 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate given an incident 
requiring this level of response. 
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with mass care activities. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, State, Military and 
Federal officials may also become critical members of the mass care team. 
Direction and Control 
For activations at Level 2 or greater, mass care, housing, and human services activities 
will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center or from the 
Incident Command Post, that will serve as the source of all direction and control. 
Access and Functional Needs Populations 
For purposes of this annex, this population is defined as follows: 

• A person who cannot operate in an emergency on her/his own safely (example: 
an elderly person who lives on their own day-to-day, but who may have limited 
media access and who is unable to get to a shelter unaided) and/or  

• who cannot operate in daily life without an assistant and/or  

• who needs support daily from a technical device that requires electrical support.   
ARC and all response agencies will ensure that people with functional and/or access 
needs (i.e. special needs populations) are provided for in time of emergency. It is 
understood that within the City of Fairbanks, ARC can provide shelter for special needs 
residents on a limited basis with its own resources.  

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Mass Care, 
Housing, & 

Human Services

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
8 

Further resources/personnel/material must be requested as early as possible 
given the level of activation to ensure timely service to this population.  
A roster of individuals with functional and access deficits, and their family members, will 
be developed and maintained during the emergency. Public information materials will be 
modified for these populations so that they will be aware of the primary hazards and of 
mitigation and response actions to be taken.  
Transportation of individuals will be coordinated with the appropriate agency 
responsible for their welfare, with assistance from one or more of the following agencies 
(see also: Annex A: Transportation) 

• Metropolitan Area Commuter System (MACS) 

• Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) School District 

• Fairbanks Correctional Center (Jail) 

• City of Fairbanks Fire Department (EMS) 

• Fort Wainwright Army Base 

• Eielson Air Force Base 

• Alaska National Guard 
 
 
 
 
Responsibilities 
All tasked agencies will: 

• Develop applicable SOPs, guidelines and/or checklists detailing the 
accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
transportation activities 

• Provide ongoing status reports. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work in 
the event that state and federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities, and provide this information to the City’s Emergency Manager. 

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 
 

Formatted: Highlight



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
9 

The Functional Coordinator will coordinate with the appropriate primary and support 
agencies to: 

• Identify and maintain shelters/housing list/maps/assets. 

• Work with other agencies to: 
o designate shelters, alternate housing options,  
o transportation bases,  
o feeding sites,  
o housing assistance locations 

• Coordinate the use of additional mass care, housing, and human services 
resources. 

 
Each agency with responsibilities in this fFunction (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Businesses and agencies with responsibilities for Access and Functional Needs 
populations are responsible for acquiring and/or contracting resources to meet needs for 
these citizens. 
 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility (refer to levels of activation) with appropriate response resources 
capabilities.  
Unresolved assistance requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or 
the SOA EOC, and as required to other states or the federal government for assistance 
support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. The 
Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform the 
functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into status 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
10 

reports (see CONOPS – Coordination of Services section of this annex) at the EOC and 
submitted in accordance with applicable operating procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a review and analysis of the group activities 
during the event/incident/exercise. This review of processes and systems will serve to  

• address any operational or planning gaps 

• capture innovations that proved useful during response  

• improve operations in advance of the next incident  
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this review and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager and shared as deemed necessary and appropriate to 
external response stakeholders. 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
11 

Attachment 1: Mass Care Function Checklist of Actions by Phase of Response 
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Work with other involved agencies to identify and 
correct potential shortfalls in the ability to 

o House evacuees either in shelters or 
alternate housing solutions 

o Provide basic first aid, food, and human 
services assistance 

o Address the needs of functional and access 
needs populations 

o Communicate hazard warnings, instructions 
and information regarding mass care, 
housing and human services to the public. 

 Coordinate with other agencies on the development 
of mass care plans, particularly for pre-identified 
hazard areas/situations. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain awareness of the mass care related 
components of the EOP. Review and update on a 
regular basis, i.e. at least annually and following any 
response, exercise or drill involving these functions.  

 Develop mutual aid and other support agreements 
with surrounding jurisdictions, NGOs, VOADs, and 
the private sector. 

 Ensure personnel are trained in EOC operations, 
the incident Command System (ICS) and the 
National Incident Management System (NIMS). 

 Develop plans to use available systems to manage 
the immediate set-up and operation of 
shelters/feeding sites, human services centers, and 
alternate housing options. 

 Develop plans to provide resources to assist with 
evacuations or other movements of people. 

 Participate in training, drills and other activities to 
improve interagency communications. 

 Review departmental Standard Operating 
Procedures and maintain personnel call up lists. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
12 

Phase Actions 
 Participate in training and exercises. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Rapid assessment of damage to homes and 
infrastructure is necessary to gauge the need for 
mass care, housing, and human services response, 
and scale of operations required to respond 
effectively to the incident. This may be done in 
coordination with the other functional groups in the 
EOC to prevent duplication of effort.  

 Coordinate operations and resources management 
with all relevant stakeholders. 

o Assist in making decisions regarding opening 
of shelters and other care sites, restrictions, 
priority services, and demobilization planning 
(Note: Demobilization planning begins in 
tandem with the decision to begin mass care 
services – i.e. have an exit strategy). 

 Coordinate with other response agencies regarding 
acquisition and maintenance of accurate and up-to-
date intelligence on the operational capabilities and 
capacities of the mass care system. 

o Include information regarding care for access 
and functional needs populations. 

 Ensure public warning and communication 
regarding mass care services is widely and 
effectively communicated. 

o Include strategies for communicating with 
access and functional needs populations. 

 Assign transportation, material, and/or personnel 
resources to move  materials, personnel and 
supplies as requested by ARC (coordinate with:  

o Transportation,  
o Public Health and Medical Services,  
o Agriculture and Natural resources- which 

provides nutritional assistance- and  
o Volunteer and Donations Management). 

 Assist in coordination of staffing and resupply 
management for operational sites. 

 Provide field support for all mass care operations 
integrated through ICS. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
13 

Phase Actions 
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre- disaster levels. 

 Coordinate consolidation and demobilization 
activities for shelters. As necessary assist with the 
transition from shelters to alternate short-term, 
transitional, and/or long-term housing options for 
affected citizens.  

 Continue to perform tasks necessary to expedite 
restoration and recovery operations. 

 Gradually revert assignments and personnel 
requirements to normal. 

 Return borrowed resources and those obtained 
through agreement, lease, or rental when those 
resources are no longer required: document returns 
with hand receipts. 

 Evaluate response and make necessary changes in 
this Functional Annex to correct shortfalls and 
improve future response activities. 

 Participate in after action meetings and prepare 
after action reports and improvement plans as 
requested. 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
14 

Attachment 2: List of ARC Designated Shelters 
 
OBTAIN FROM SOA ARC AND/OR CITY OF FAIRBANKS ARC 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
15 

 
Attachment 3: Food Resources 
 
 
Grocery Stores, Convenience Stores, Volunteer Organizations Active In Disasters (VOADS), 
Churches 
 
On file at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex F – Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services (ESF 6)       Operations Branch 
16 

 
Abbreviations and Acronyms 
 
ARC American Red Cross 
COF City of Fairbanks 
CONOPS Concept of Operations 
ESF Emergency Support Function 
FNSB Fairbanks North Star Borough 
IC Incident Command 
NGO Non-Government Organization 
SOA State of Alaska 
SOPs Standard Operating Procedures 
VOAD Volunteer Organizations Active in Disasters 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
1 

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)  ICS Area: Logistics 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions in 
the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-divided 
into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support responsibilities as 
indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Comprehensive, 
Incident Logistics 
Planning, Management, 
& Sustainment 
Capabilities 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Emergency 
Management (Fire 
Chief) 

City of Fairbanks 
Finance 
Department 
 
 
 
City of Fairbanks 
Human Resources 

COF EM  
(907) 450-6604 or  
Dispatch  
450-6507 
 
Finance Director  
(907) 459-678876 
 
Human Resources  
(907) 459-6780 

Resource Support: 
Facility Space, Office 
Equipment & Supplies, 
Contracting Services, 
etc. 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Emergency 
Management (Fire 
Chief) 

City of Fairbanks 
Finance 
Department 
 
 
 
City of Fairbanks 
Human Resources 

COF EM  
(907) 450-6604 or  
Dispatch  
450-6507 
 
Finance Director  
(907) 459-678876 
 
Human Resources  
(907) 459-6780 

 
Purpose  
Effective response to any emergency or disaster requires the ability to find, obtain, 
allocate, and distribute resources to meet the needs of the event. This Functional Annex 
provides guidance to assist in coordinating the provision of personnel, equipment, 
supplies, facilities and services to support emergency operations. Specifically, the 
Logistics and Resource Support Annex addresses: 

• Resource Identification 

• Resource Procurement 

• Resource Coordination 

• Facilities and Logistics 

• Personnel Augmentation 

• Logistics Management 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
2 

The purpose of this annex is to provide procedural information on the deployment and 
proper coordination of resources during the response phase of an emergency/disaster 
situation.   
The City of Fairbanks has sufficient resources to support activities associated with local 
emergency or disaster operations for a short period of time including resources procured 
through mutual aid agreements with surrounding jurisdictions. A catastrophic event will 
quickly overcome our local resources making it necessary to call upon aid from Borough, 
State and/or Federal resources.  The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the single 
point of contact for Borough, State and Federal resources. 
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to require 
activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the City of 
Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex G is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible; information contained 
in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
City departments involved in resource support activities have existing emergency plans 
and procedures. Annex G is not designed to take the place of these plans, rather it is 
designed to complement and support the departmental resource management guidelines 
already in place. 
Each City department or agency shall be responsible for monitoring their expenses 
incurred due to a disaster/emergency situation, and shall develop procedures for 
identifying costs associated with such situations. Additionally, each City department or 
agency shall establish emergency procurement procedures to ensure that resources 
required during an emergency/disaster situation may be rapidly obtained. 
Local (City and mutual aid) resources must be exhausted before State or Federal 
assistance is available through a Governor’s or Presidential declaration. State 
declarations will be requested by the Mayor through the City of Fairbanks Emergency 
Management and Fairbanks North Star Borough to the Alaska Division of Homeland 
Security and Emergency Management. The Borough and State are able to provide 
physical assistance through the various agencies, but provide no funds to reimburse local 
governments during emergencies/disasters. Federal declarations activate both physical 
as well as monetary resources; however, State and local cost sharing is normally 
required. 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas as 
noted below based on the size and scope of the incident.  

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Comprehensive, Incident Logistics Planning, 
Management, & Sustainment Capabilities 

Comprehensive, Incident Logistics Planning, 
Management, & Sustainment Capabilities 

Resource Support: Facility Space, Office Equipment 
& Supplies, Contracting Services, etc. 

Resource Support: Facility Space, Office 
Equipment & Supplies, Contracting Services, etc. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
3 

 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for 
Logistics and Resource Support. As ESF coordinator, Emergency Management 
coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, the private 
sector, and the Logistics and Resource Support primary and support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
• General: The City of Fairbanks Emergency Management is responsible for 

coordinating critical resource management during an emergency or disaster. 
Individual City departments and agencies will maintain listings of critical 
resources with respect to their own operations. Those departments/agencies 
will also “flag” any resources that may require expedited procurement and/or 
some formal arrangements with vendors (i.e., memorandums of 
agreement/understanding) and provide these lists to Fairbanks Emergency 
Management upon request. 
For smaller emergencies, resource management will be handled by the 
individual City departments/agencies. For larger scale emergencies, where 
limited local resources may require centralized coordination and prioritization, 
the Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center or an Incident Command Post will 
be activated (See Emergency Management (ESF #5)).  
The City of Fairbanks will use the system established by the National Incident 
Management System’s (NIMS) National Mutual Aid and Resource Management 
Initiative to identify, request, receive, and track resources  
(Refer to http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nims/incident_mgmt.pdf) 

• Response Phase:  In the immediate aftermath of a disaster, initial damage 
assessments from first responders will give a picture of the effects of the event. 
The EOC or Incident Command Post will be activated based upon the situation. 
As the response proceeds, the Emergency Manager or Incident Commander 
will determine the resources needed to promptly stabilize the situation, protect 
the lives of citizens and responders, and establish staging areas.   
The priority for allocation of resources in the response phase will be based on 
life safety situations. Preservation of existing life will take precedence over body 
recovery. Essential resources (personnel, critical supplies, heavy equipment, 
etc.) will be relocated if it is determined that an immediate or potential threat 
exists to the area.  
Essential resources will be reallocated based upon need and the amount of 
immediately available resources. Need will be determined by the number of 
people injured and protection of critical facilities. Resources required from 
outside of the City will take longer to acquire and deploy. No local resource 
(such as a fire department) will be required to leave their area unprotected. If, in 
the opinion of the department head or local official, an area is secure and there 
is adequate manpower and equipment to protect that jurisdiction, then the 
response of local resources may occur. It is not the intent of this Plan to provide 
for assistance at the expense of any local agency or jurisdiction. Each mutual 

http://www.fema.gov/pdf/emergency/nims/incident_mgmt.pdf


City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
4 

aid jurisdiction must follow their primary directive of providing the resources 
necessary to protect the lives and property of their citizens. 

• Recovery Phase: When the initial response has been completed, the 
assistance of other local groups and all outside resources may be required. 
These requests will be directed to the EOC or the Incident Command Post. 
Non-governmental organizations such as local religious and civic groups have 
historically provided, and will continue to provide additional assistance. These 
groups will assist with unmet needs after the larger assistance is over. 

Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all activities 
associated with Logistics and Resource Support. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of 
Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Logistics 
and Resource Support (ESF 7) being aligned with the Logistics Section as shown in the 
figure below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Logistics and Resource Support 
 

Logistics and Resource Support Guidelines 

General 
The types and amounts of resources needed to support emergency operations will vary 
greatly depending on the event. Some examples of typical emergency resources include, 
but are not limited to: 

• Personnel 

• Communications Equipment 

• Potable Water 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section Finance Section Logistics Section

Logistics and 
Resource 

Support (ESF 7)



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
5 

• Vehicles for passengers, cargo, and debris removal 

• Portable toilets and other sanitation supplies 

• Pumps and sandbags 

• Fuel and fueling stations 

• Heavy equipment for public works applications (e.g., cranes) and materials 
handling (e.g., forklifts) 

• Materials and tools such plastic sheeting, shovels, picks, chain saws, 
axes/hatchets, flashlights, etc. 

• Mass care supplies such as food, bedding, blankets and cots (For smaller 
incidents only. For larger incidents requiring public shelter, the Fairbanks North 
Star Borough maintains responsibility). 

• Industrial lighting equipment (for nighttime search and rescue operations) 

• Portable generators 

• Medical supplies and pharmaceuticals 

• Technology to support emergency operations 
 
Determining what types of resources and how many of them are needed is critical to 
providing a rapid, effective and coordinated response to an emergency or disaster. 
The Emergency Manager or Incident Commander, in consultation with other City 
department heads, will perform needs assessments and determine needs for the City of 
Fairbanks. 
The assigned Logistics and Resource Support Coordinator will work to ensure that 
essential information is requested from and provided by those making resource requests 
including: 

• S ize 

• A mount 

• L ocation 

• T ype 

• T ime 
 
In general, resource management activities will be geared to support lifesaving and public 
safety as its first priority. Specific priorities will be set by the Incident Commander or 
Emergency Manager, in consultation with the appropriate department heads. The City of 
Fairbanks will use the standards and definitions established by the NIMS National Mutual 
Aid and Resource Management Initiative as the basis for identifying and categorizing 
resources. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
6 

The City of Fairbanks has mutual aid agreements in place with surrounding jurisdictions 
to augment critical resources during emergencies. Additionally, there are numerous 
private sector resources available to support emergency operations. 
Once received, resource requests will be logged, prioritized and passed on to those 
responsible for obtaining and committing resources. 

Facilities 
In a major emergency with an extensive influx of resources, supplies and personnel, the 
Logistics and Resource Support Coordinator in coordination with the EOC Team or 
Incident Commander (for smaller emergencies) may direct that facilities be designated for 
emergency use such as: 

• Mobilization Center: A designated location for receiving and processing 
resources and personnel prior to their deployment to a Staging Area or incident 
site. The Mobilization Center may also be required to provide briefings, lodging 
and feeding for arriving personnel. 

• Staging Areas: Used to assemble personnel and equipment for immediate 
deployment to an operational site in the affected area(s). Potential Staging 
Areas will be dictated by the locations and the scope of the incident  

• Warehouses and other facilities:  Store or stage supplies and equipment for 
both short and long-term emergency use. Criteria used for the selection of 
resource staging areas will include proximity to the affected area, transportation 
access, communications capability, storage space and conditions, security, etc. 

Procurement and Hiring 
When requests are of a high priority, an emergency procurement and/or hiring process 
may be necessary. Emergency procurement may involve contacting suppliers, negotiating 
terms, and making transportation and distribution arrangements. 
Depending on types and numbers of personnel needed, volunteers may be used to 
quickly fill needed positions. (See Volunteers and Donations: ESF 16). 
When making procurements, an effort should be made to ensure that suppliers also have 
the ability to transport the resources. 

Distribution 
The assigned Logistics and Resource Support Coordinator will work with the other 
members of the EOC Team or Incident Command (for smaller incidents) to determine the 
appropriate facilities and methods for the timely distribution of resources. 
High priority resources as identified by the EOC or Incident Command team will be 
distributed as quickly as possible. When dictated by the situation, distribution points may 
be established to provide supplies the public. 
The assigned Logistics and Resource Support Coordinator will determine what facilities 
will be needed to handle the flow of resources into and through the City of Fairbanks (i.e., 
warehouses, receiving areas, checkpoints, etc.). 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
7 

State and Federal Resources 
When it becomes clear that local resources will be insufficient to handle the situation, the 
issuance of a local emergency declaration is the mechanism for obtaining assistance from 
other government agencies (See Emergency Management: ESF 5). 
At any point during the development of an emergency situation, the City of Fairbanks may 
determine it cannot handle the situation without the use of outside resources. Such 
resources may be obtained through the invocation of existing, routine mutual aid 
agreements without declarations of emergency/disaster; however, significant 
augmentation of resources or activation of state and federal assistance (as provided 
under the Stafford Act) must be accompanied by a properly executed emergency 
declaration by the Mayor. 
State declarations are requested by Fairbanks Emergency Management and go through 
the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) to the Alaska Division of Homeland Security 
Emergency Management (DHSEM) is made by the Governor upon DHSEM’s 
recommendation when significant involvement of state resources or personnel is 
anticipated. 
Requests for federal assistance may be made only by the Governor and through the 
Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and/or the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). Major disasters are declared by the President upon a request by the 
Governor and with the recommendation of FEMA. Presidential declarations activate the 
full range of disaster assistance outlined in the Stafford Act. Other Federal declarations 
can be made by the Administrator of the Small Business Administration (SBA), for loan 
programs for persons affected by disasters and by the Secretary of Agriculture 
(agricultural disaster situations). Common to all requests for emergency/disaster 
declarations is the requirement that the requesting jurisdiction has exhausted its available 
resources to handle the situation. (See Long-term Community Recovery and 
Mitigation: ESF 14). 
Assistance from state agencies may be available: 

• Without a State declaration 
o State resources that would be available include personnel and resources 

near the disaster area. 
o Funds to cover the costs are not included in this type of assistance. 

• With a State Declaration 
o All state resources become available 

Assistance from the Federal government may be available: 

• Without a Federal Declaration 
o To protect life, local commanders of Department of Defense (DOD) 

organizations (Ft. Wainwright and Eielson Air Force Base) have the 
authority to respond without a federal declaration. Otherwise, Federal 
assistance is usually limited to providing technical expertise from 
agencies such as the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
8 

• With a Federal declaration 
o A variety of resources are available through different programs, including 

technical expertise. 
 
Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Logistics and Resource Support 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other City departments, and support 
and partnering agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC or Incident 
Command Post to assist with Logistics. Depending on the nature and location of the 
emergency, Borough, State, and Federal officials may also become critical members of 
the Logistics and Resource Support team. 
Direction and Control 
All Logistics and Resource Support activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 

resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or checklists 
detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• Deploy a representative to the Fairbanks EOC or Incident Command Post to 
assist with Logistics and Resource Support activities. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested by the Emergency Manager or 
Incident Commander. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work in 
the event that reimbursement from the State and Federal government becomes 
available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities. 

• Participate in Emergency Management training and exercises. 

•  Perform other emergency tasks as assigned. 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
9 

Emergency Management 
• Fairbanks Emergency Management has overall responsibility for resource 

operations during disaster situations within the City of Fairbanks. A list of 
available emergency management resources within the City is kept on file 
under separate cover in the Fire Department as well as with the Finance 
Department. 

Other City Departments  
• All City departments are required to assist the citizens of Fairbanks in their 

efforts to return to a state of normalcy following a disaster. These efforts 
include, but are not limited to, assistance in providing essential services such 
as debris clearance, providing for transportation to the Disaster Recovery 
Centers, damage assessments, transport of the injured, security for the 
affected areas and compiling costs associated with the disaster. 

Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-government) 
will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident per their 
standard operating procedures. 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and control 
facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance requests 
will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as required to 
other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws 
and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. The 
Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform the 
functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and unresolved 
mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic status reports at 
the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and justification 
for Federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
10 

The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City of 
Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
11 

Attachment 1: Logistics and Resource Support Function Checklist of Actions  
by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool 
for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Ensure emergency contracts are in place to prevent 
resource shortages in an emergency. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex as well as 
supporting operating procedures and guidelines. 

 Review all portions of the EOP to ensure proper 
coordination of resource support activities. 

 Ensure resource support personnel receive 
appropriate emergency training. 

 Establish contact with private resources that could 
provide support during an emergency. 

 Participate in Emergency Management training and 
exercises. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Obtain resources on a priority basis as determined 
by the EOC Team or Incident Commander. 

 Activate additional Logistics and Resource Support 
personnel. 

 Work with the EOC staff or Incident Commander to 
establish priorities. 

 If necessary, establish staging areas, distribution 
sites and mobilization centers from which resources 
may be distributed. 

 Activate mutual aid. 
 Maintain an inventory system to track supplies used 

in the disaster. 
 Maintain accurate records of resources utilized and 

funds expended and submit reports.  
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Return staffing to normal levels as dictated by the 
event. 

 Identify unused resources in the community. 
 Stand down any facilities no longer in use. 
 Dispose of excess supplies. 
 Participate in after-action reports and critiques. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
12 

Attachment 2: Resources by Agency/Department 
 
See Appendix 
(NOTE: Recommend keeping this as a separate document to avoid having to update the 
plan every time there is a change in equipment and supplies.) 
 
On file at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
13 

Attachment 3: Mutual Aid Agreements 

(DRAFT) FNSB Borough-Wide Emergency Management Mutual Aid Agreement 
This Agreement is made and entered into effect, by the Fairbanks North Star 

Borough, and the City of Fairbanks, the City of North Pole, the City of Delta Junction, 
the City of Nenana, the University of Alaska Fairbanks, US Army-Fort Wainwright Post, 
US Air Force-Eielson AFB, and Clear Air Force Base (referred to hereafter as “the 
adjacent entities” who have duly executed this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the Fairbanks North Star Borough and the adjacent entities 
recognize the necessity to cooperate and work together to provide mutual aid for 
Emergency Management assistance; and 

WHEREAS, each of the parties owns and maintains equipment and retains 
personnel who are trained to provide various levels of service in order to provide 
emergency management services; and 

WHEREAS, in the event of a disaster, a party may need the assistance of 
another party to this Agreement to provide supplemental equipment and/or personnel 
support; and 

WHEREAS, each of the parties may have the necessary equipment and 
personnel available to enable it to provide such services to the other party to this 
Agreement in the event of such a disaster; and 

WHEREAS, the equipment and personnel of each party are located in such a 
manner as to enable each party to render mutual assistance to the other; and  

WHEREAS, each of the parties to this Agreement has determined that it is in the 
best interests of each party to set forth guidelines for providing mutual assistance to 
each other in the case of a request for mutual aid; and  

Whereas, all parties further recognize the need to provide for a legal means to go 
to the aid of another jurisdiction, and to receive aid from another jurisdiction during 
times of disaster as defined in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BY THE PARTIES WHO HAVE DULY 
EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS FOLLOWS: 

1. PURPOSE The stated purpose of the Mutual Aid Agreement is to provide mutual 
assistance to the parties for emergency management services outside the 
normal scope of what each party regularly provides. 

2. DEFINITIONS: As used herein: 
A. “Requesting Entity” shall mean the entity requesting aid. 
B. “Responding Entity” shall mean the Entity affording or responding to a call 

for aid. 
C. “Disaster” shall mean a sudden event, such as an accident or a natural 

catastrophe, which causes great damage or loss of life and goes beyond 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
14 

the ability of a party of this Agreement to respond solely with its own 
resources. 

3. REQUEST FOR ASSISTANCE: The Emergency Management Director, 
Coordinator, or Incident Commander of the party at disaster within the 
boundaries of that party’s geographical jurisdiction (also known as the 
Requesting Party) is authorized to request assistance from another party to this 
Agreement if confronted with disaster situation at which the Requesting Party has 
need for equipment or personnel in excess of that available to the Requesting 
Party. 

4. RESPONSE TO REQUEST Upon receipt of a request the Emergency Manager, 
Incident Commander, or Chief Officer of the party receiving the request (also 
known as the Responding Party) shall immediately take the following action: 

A. Determine if the Responding Party has equipment and personnel available 
to respond to the request of the Requesting Party and determine the type 
of the equipment and number of personnel available.  

B. Determine what available equipment and what available personnel should 
be dispatched in accordance with the plans and procedures established 
by the parties.  

C. In the event the requested equipment and/or personnel are available, then 
the Emergency Manager, Incident Commander, or Chief Officer may 
dispatch such equipment and personnel to the scene of the emergency 
with proper operating instructions.  

D. In the event the requested equipment and/or personnel are not available, 
then the Emergency Manager, Incident Commander, or Chief Officer shall 
immediately advise the Requesting Party of such fact. 

5. COMMAND RESPONSIBILITY AT EMERGENCY SCENE: All parties agree to 
implement the National Incident Management System during mutual aid 
responses and to follow the area-wide accountability and area-wide 
communications plans. The Emergency Manager or Incident Commander of the 
Requesting Party at the scene of the disaster to which the response is made, 
shall be in command of the operations under which the equipment and personnel 
sent by the Responding Party shall serve; provided, however, that the 
responding equipment and personnel shall be under the immediate supervision 
of the officer in charge of the responding apparatus. If the Emergency Manager 
or Incident Commander specifically requests a senior officer of the Responding 
Party to assume command, then the Emergency Manager or Incident 
Commander shall not, by relinquishing command, be relieved of responsibility for 
the operation. If an emergency in the Responding Party’s own jurisdiction occurs 
during a response to a request, the Responding Party must be released by the 
Emergency Manager or Incident Commander prior to departing the scene. The 
Emergency Manager or Incident Commander will not unreasonably withhold 
consent to release a Responding Party in the event of an emergency. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
15 

6. LIABILITY: Each responding entity hereby waives all claims against each 
requesting entity for compensation for any property loss or damage and/or 
personal injury or death occurring as a consequence of the performance of this 
agreement. 

7. POST RESPONSE RESPONSIBILITY: Upon completion of the rendering of 
assistance, such assistance and help as is necessary will be given by the parties 
to locate and return any items of equipment to the jurisdiction/agency owning 
said equipment. All equipment and personnel used under the terms of this 
Agreement shall be returned to the Responding Party upon being released by the 
Requesting Party, or upon demand being made by the Responding Party for 
return of said equipment and personnel. All entities shall maintain records 
regarding the frequency of the use of this agreement and shall share said 
records upon request with the other parties to this agreement. 

8. COMPENSATION: Each party agrees that it will not seek from the other party 
compensation for services rendered under this Agreement. Each party hereto 
shall at all times be responsible to its own employees for the payment of wages 
and other compensation and for carrying worker’s compensation insurance upon 
said employees; and each party shall be responsible for its own equipment and 
shall bear the risk of loss therefore, irrespective of whether or not said personnel 
and equipment are being used within the area of primary responsibility of that 
party. Nothing in this section prevents a party from filing claims for costs and 
losses under 15 U.S.C. §2210 and 44 C.F.R. Part 151 In the case of a State or 
Federally declared disaster, all responding parties shall complete and maintain 
sufficient records and reports to aid in the reimbursement under the guidelines of 
the Stafford Act. 

9. INSURANCE: Each party agrees to maintain adequate insurance coverage for its 
own equipment and personnel. 

10. SHARED PURCHASING: This Agreement creates no obligation for joint or 
cooperative acquiring, holding and/or disposal of real or personal property. 

11. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE: There is not hereby created any separate or 
legal administrative entity by this Agreement. Each party hereto shall be 
responsible for and financing their separate obligations hereunder, including, if 
applicable, establishing and/or maintaining budgets therefore. Further, the 
administration of this Agreement shall be performed by each entity separately 
through their department head or Chief Officers. 

12. TERMINATION AND AMENDMENT  
A. This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless terminated. A 

party desiring to terminate this Agreement shall serve written notice upon 
the other parties of its intention to terminate this Agreement. Such notice 
shall be served not less than thirty calendar days prior to the termination 
date set forth in said written notice. Said written notice shall automatically 
terminate the party’s participation in this Agreement on the date specified 
therein unless rescinded prior in writing.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
16 

B. Review, re-negotiation or amendment of this Agreement may be initiated 
at any time upon written request of any party hereto. Amendments must 
be approved by all parties hereto, and will be attached to and become part 
of this Agreement only upon execution by all parties.  

13. AGREEMENT NOT EXCLUSIVE: This Agreement is not intended to be 
exclusive as between parties hereto. Each of the parties may, as that party 
deems necessary or expedient, enter into a separate Mutual Aid Agreement or 
Agreements with any other party or parties. Entry into such separate Agreements 
shall not change any relationship or covenant herein contained unless the parties 
hereto mutually agree in writing to such change. 

14. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which, taken together, shall 
constitute one and the same agreement. 

 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex G – Logistics and Resource Support (ESF 7)      Logistics Branch 
17 

Attachment 4: Emergency or Exigent Purchases  
This attachment is a purchasing guideline for emergency (threat to life, public health or 
safety, improved property, or some other form of dangerous situation that requires 
immediate action to alleviate threat) or exigent (need to avoid, prevent, or alleviate 
serious harm or injury, financial or otherwise) circumstances. All other purchases must 
follow the city procurement code. 

Steps  Actions  
Write a justification to 
describe the emergency or 
exigent circumstance. 
  

 Explain why sole-sourcing is necessary based on the 
specific conditions and circumstances that 
demonstrate why immediate or urgent action is 
needed.  Include the specific steps taken to 
determine why full and open competition could not 
have been used.   

 A separate justification is required for every sole-
sourced contract.  

Provide a brief description 
of the goods or services.  

 Justify the need for the specific good or service being 
contracted to address the emergency or exigency 
circumstance.  

Estimate the expected 
dollar amount of the goods 
or services.  

 A copy or price analysis is required for all 
procurement transactions above $250,000.  

Describe any known 
conflicts of interests or 
efforts to identify conflicts 
of interest. 

 Describe efforts to identify possible conflicts of 
interests.  If no efforts were made, explain why. 

Define and justify the 
period of emergency or 
exigency for the specific 
situation.  

 The period of emergency and exigent circumstances 
may vary per incident.  

Transition to a 
competitively bid contract 
as soon as the emergency 
or exigent period ends. 

 Failure to plan for transition to a competitively bid 
contract cannot be the basis for continued use of the 
emergency or exigency purchasing process. 

Ensure that all contracts 
meet the specific federal 
procurement regulation.  

 Contracts must include the required contract clauses. 
 Contracts must include the federal bonding 

requirements if the contract is for construction or 
facility improvement. 

 Contracts must be awarded to a responsible 
contractor. 

 Contracts must not be a cost-plus-percentage-of-cost 
contract type. 

 Contracts with time-and-materials must comply with 
the applicable rules.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
1 

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)    
ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 

 
City of Fairbanks (COF) Emergency Manager:  
907- 450-6604 or Dispatch: 907-450-6507 
 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Public Health State Of Alaska 

Department of 
Health and Social 
Services (DHSS) 
 

COF Fire P:  1-800-478-1777 
S: Through Dispatch:  
(907) 459-6870450-6507 

Medical (i.e. definitive 
care including pre-
hospital and hospital 
care) 

COF Fire for Pre-
hospital Care: 
EMS only 
 
Fairbanks 
Memorial 
Hospital for 
Hospital Care 
 

 EMS through Dispatch:  
(907)-459-6870450-6507  
 
FMH:  
(907) 452-8181 (main number) 

Behavioral Health 
Services 
 

SOA DHSS  P: (907) 465-4828 

Mass Fatality 
Management 

State of Alaska 
Medical Examiner 
 

 P: (907) 334-2200 

 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager, Incident Commander or the designee is the 
functional coordinator for all functions in the EOP. However, due to capacity and 
capability limitations, each function is sub-divided into individual mission areas with 
agencies having primary and support responsibilities as indicated in the table above.  
NOTE: Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8) has the lead in Alternate Care 
Site/Medical Surge shelters if established, with coordination as necessary with Mass 
Care (Annex F).  
For care of medically fragile populations in a general shelter, Mass Care (ESF 6) will 
expect coordination with Public Health and Medical Services although Mass Care has 
the lead in this effort.  
Purpose  
The purpose of this functional annex is to describe policies and procedures for 
coordination of the delivery of both primary and supplemental assistance for public 
health, medical and mortuary services in order to reduce the loss of life and severity of 
injuries in a mass casualty incident. This annex addresses 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
2 

• Local Health Department notification, coordination and response  

• Emergency Medical Services (EMS) activities  

• Coordination among health care providers  

• Mass fatalities management  

• Behavioral health (mental health) activities 

Coordination includes mobilizing, managing and/or supporting before, during and after 
emergency or disaster conditions. 

Scope  
Public Health and Medical Services is designed to provide a flexible organizational 
structure capable of meeting the requirements of many emergency scenarios that have 
the potential to require activation of the City of Fairbanks EOC/IC and implementation of 
the City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP). This is a functional annex to 
the City of Fairbanks EOP and to the extent possible; information contained in other 
sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this Annex. 
 
Most of the agencies involved in public health and medical services activities have 
existing emergency plans and procedures. This annex is not designed to take the place 
of these plans, rather it is designed to complement and support existing plans and 
procedures. 
The City of Fairbanks (COF) has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission 
areas. For all other Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8) needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area and 
federal agencies, and will operate in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough 
(FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Public Health Provide local management of public 

health emergencies to include:  
• Disease surveillance, investigation 

and response,  

• Provide coordination for mass 
prophylaxis.  

Public Health is provided through the 
State of Alaska Department of Health and 
Social Services, Division of Public 
Health. (SOA DHSS) 
 

Medical Services • Pre-hospital emergency triage and 
care (EMS) including transport to 
definitive care.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
3 

• Definitive (hospital) care. 
Behavioral Health Behavioral care for victims of disaster 

with: 
• Pre-existing behavioral health 

needs  

• Victims with behavioral health 
needs precipitated by the incident, 
and  

• Responder care, behavioral care is 
managed through the SOA DHSS 

Mass Fatality Management • Appropriate identification and 
processing of decedent remains.  
 

• Coordination with Law 
Enforcement for criminal 
investigation if terrorist act is 
suspected. 

 
Mass Fatality Management is provided 
through the SOA Medical Examiner’s 
office (which is part of the Division of 
Public Health of the State Department of 
Health and Social Services). 

  
 
Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

General 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or designated Incident 
Command (IC) will serve as the central location for interagency coordination and 
executive decision making. Smaller incidents may be coordinated from the Incident 
Command Post without the need to activate the EOC.  
Policy and coordination functions will be accomplished from the EOC, while tactical and 
operational decisions will be made in the field (and at the hospital) within the Incident 
Command System (ICS)/National Incident Management System (NIMS) structure. 
Within the ICS structure the Public Health Lead/Medical Lead or designee coordinates 
local Public Health and Medical Services preparedness, response, and recovery 
actions. These actions do not alter or impede the existing authorities of any department 
or agency supporting this mission.  
The identified primary and support agencies are responsible for maintaining 
administrative control over their respective response resources after receiving 
coordinating instructions from the Public Health Lead. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
4 

Should a disaster substantially overwhelm local health and medical resources, COF will 
request support and assistance from neighboring jurisdictions, the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough (FNSB), Ft. Wainwright, and/or medical facilities or regional jurisdictions per 
mutual aid agreements and local and state law, in coordination with Fairbanks North 
Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska.  
COF will coordinate requests for assistance at the state level through the FNSB EOC 
for extra-jurisdictional support as necessary.  
NOTE: As part of the plan maintenance process, any MOU/MOAs relevant to Public 
Health and Medical Service support should be reviewed and updated on a regular, i.e. 
at least annual, basis.  
In all types of disasters, COF should be prepared to support and assist the response 
efforts of neighboring jurisdictions and/or the FNSB. Upon request a liaison from FNSB 
will be provided for COF EOC/IC.  

Public Communications 
 
The COF EOC/IC will release general medical and public health response information to 
the public, after consultation with the Public Health Coordinator, FMH, State of Alaska 
Health Officer and the lead Public Affairs Officer. 
In any instance where the Public Health/Medical Services Response integrates with 
other functional areas, coordination with the lead agencies in those functional areas is 
necessary before releasing any public information. In these events joint language would 
be developed. 
The Alaska State Health Department determines the appropriateness of all requests for 
release of public health and medical information and is responsible for consulting with 
and organizing local public health and medical subject-matter experts, as needed. 

Organization 
Essential emergency public health services, such as: 

• Emergency Medical Services (EMS) 

• Food sanitation and potable water inspections,  

• Communicable disease control,  

• Radiological exposure and control,  

• Mass immunizations and antibiotic dispensing,  

• Health/Behavioral Health services support in shelters,  

• Community education (public notification and warning regarding public health 
and medical services) and,  

• Morgue operations  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
5 

Will be coordinated through the COF EOC/IC, recognizing that many of these tasks will 
be the responsibility of the FNSB or the SOA.  Early, effective coordination with FNSB 
and State of Alaska emergency management will be essential for response in COF. 
If necessary, COF will request emergency augmentation of situational or routine public 
health and medical services from neighboring, regional, or state public health resources.  
During and post-disaster, all attempts will be made to sustain the routine daily scope of 
operations of the City of Fairbanks public health and medical services.   
All departments/agencies should maintain records of expenditures for emergency or 
disaster operations in order to determine the cities financial commitments and to be 
used in a request for an emergency declaration, and later for reimbursement of 
claimable expenses. Resources and Support (ESF 7) can assist Public Health & 
Medical Services with emergency funding, allocations, and coordination for expedient 
purchases. Avoiding shortages of medical personnel, equipment, supplies and 
treatment facilities should be considered a priority.  

Public Health 
Public Health in Alaska is provided to cities and jurisdictions through the State 
Department of Pubic Health from the state. The health officer in Fairbanks is a state 
official, not a city one. If not already determined, the COF should have a conversation 
with the State public health official(s) that work in the city and with the FMH 
Administration to determine where oversight and control of disaster public health 
operations should be assigned. These operations include: 

• In collaboration with City of Fairbanks and the State Department of Health and 
Social Services (DHSS), will make health related protective action decisions 
when existing codes and regulations are not pertinent to the situation.  

• Assisting with coordination of the investigation and facilitation for obtaining the 
appropriate tests to determine the extent of any threat and contamination from 
chemicals, and/or some pathological hazards.  
NOTE: Radiological testing will be conducted by a Certified Radiological Monitor 
in coordination with state/local/military HAZMAT assets. (See Annex ESF #10 – 
Oil and Hazardous Materials)  

• Investigate disease reports, establish control measures, and notify appropriate 
authorities to ensure preventive measures are carried out.  

• Provide accurate information to the public and other authorities.  

• Maintain records & cumulative data related to communicable disease.  

• Ensure appropriate vaccine supply, ensure source of drugs and antidotes in 
collaboration with hospitals/pharmacies, Alaska DHHS and the Centers for 
Disease Control and Prevention (CDC).  

• Coordinate distribution and administration of these drugs.  

• Maintain medical records & cumulative data related to mass immunizations 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
6 

In the event of a Public Health Emergency requiring mass prophylaxis the State 
Biological Incident Specific Annex will be activated to guide response activities. 

Medical Services 
 
Pre-Hospital Care: 
The first arriving Medical units will establish Triage and identify an Incident Commander 
or Branch Director for EMS. Treatment, Staging and Transport areas will then be 
established.  
The Incident Commander or Branch Director will coordinate on-scene medical resource 
requests and allocation and will manage requests for augmentation from neighboring 
jurisdictions per existing MOUs/Protocols. 
Requests for state and/or federal EMS augmentation will be made through the COF 
EOC (e.g. FEMA Ambulance cache or State Alternate Care Site assets).  
Victims will be triaged according to EMS (standard operating procedures) SOPs. 
Long-term strategies to support disaster operations and to maintain on-going local EMS 
operations given an on-going EMS mission due to a large-scale incident will be 
managed by the EMS Department where the emergency occurs. It may be necessary to 
prioritize victims and ration resources at some point. 
Casualty information will be routed through the on-scene Incident Commander, and to 
the EOC. The EOC will provide the information to the Public Information Officer in 
accordance with External Communications procedures on disseminating casualty 
information. Information and statistics will be compiled from radio logs, facsimiles, 
databases, run sheets, ER data, and direct communications with EMS staff. 
 
Medical Services (Definitive Care): The Fairbanks Memorial Hospital will establish 
their Hospital Incident Command System in the event of an incident requiring mass 
casualty/public health response. The Hospital will provide a liaison officer who will 
coordinate resource requests and mass casualty care with COF EOCs.  
Fairbanks Memorial Hospital (FMH) will follow its internal and external disaster SOPs 
concerning medical surge. FMH will notify COF emergency management when they 
anticipate activating their medical surge plans.  
SEE ALSO: Fairbanks Memorial Hospital/Denali Center Emergency Operations 
Plan, Annex L: Mass Casualty Response Plan 
During a large-scale event, each response agency may also set up an Incident 
Command Center intrinsic to their internal operations. Direct communications will be 
maintained with the COF EOC/IC. Coordination of efforts should occur through the COF 
EOC/IC. 
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
7 

Responder Care  
Appropriate and efficient rest/work cycles must be established and monitored. The 
rehabilitation of rescuers will follow established guidelines. Injured rescuers will be 
evaluated.  
Sanitation and hygiene is a priority. Inspections are important to ensure that rescuers 
food and water supplies remain free of contamination. 
Health Department employees and EMS personnel may be asked to perform duties 
under dangerous circumstances, and consideration must always be given to employee 
safety. Staff’s exposure to toxic agents or infection will be limited as much as possible.  
 
Behavioral Health and Mass Fatality Management 
Behavioral Health response and Mass Fatality management responsibilities belong to 
the State of Alaska. In any mass casualty event, the SOA EOC must be notified 
immediately to begin coordination for the efficient and effective provision of these 
services. It will be the responsibility of all local response agencies to be able to brief the 
SOA EOC on relevant information and statistics such as: 

• Suspected terrorist incident as relates to fatalities: In the event of an actual or 
suspected terrorist incident, victims are part of a crime scene and thus part of a 
criminal investigation. They may need to be managed differently to facilitate 
investigation while still maintaining the respect and care they are due. 

• Projected fatality numbers 

• Current morgue status and projected need for state/federal assets (mobile 
morgues, Disaster Mortuary Facilities (DMORTs), etc.) 

o FMH 
o Local Funeral Homes 
o Ft. Wainwright 
o Refrigerated Units 

• Identified/projected behavioral health needs in shelters and/or care sites (see 
Annex F: Mass Care, for more information regarding shelters). 

o These include patients with existing behavioral health issues who require 
maintenance. 

o Those people for whom a behavioral health issue is a result of the 
disaster.  

o Responder-specific Behavioral Health needs. 

Resources 
The City of Fairbanks Fire and Rescue department supplies the resources to respond to 
emergency transportation (i.e. ambulances). COF Fire and Rescue will support staffing 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
8 

needs in the EOC/IC during its activation necessary to coordinate and execute the 
Public Health and Medical Services missions. FMH should consider a liaison in the COF 
EOC/IC as well. 
In the event that the emergency response is beyond the resources of the COF Agencies 
and Departments, the SOA EOC will be contacted and asked for supporting 
coordination.  
 
EOC Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) (or designated IC construct, 
depending on level of activation) will serve as the central location for interagency coordination 
and executive decision-making, including all activities associated with Public Health and 
Medical Services. It is understood that FMH will establish their own Hospital Incident 
Command System (HICS) through which they will conduct their disaster operations. FMH 
will make resource requests to State and Federal entities through the City of Fairbanks 
EOC/IC.  
As indicated in the City of Fairbanks base EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized 
along the Incident Command System Structure, with Mass Care (ESF 6) being aligned 
with the Operations Section as shown in the figure below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Public Health & Medical Services Function 
 

Notifications 
Generally, the Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Mass Care function 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate given an incident 
requiring this level of response. 
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with mass care activities. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Public Safety 
Branch

Finance Section Logistics Section

Public Health &
Medical Services



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
9 

Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, Borough, State, Military and 
Federal officials may also become critical members of the mass care team. 
Direction and Control 
For activations at Level 2 or greater, Public Health and Medical Services activities will be 
coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident 
Command Post that will serve as the source of all direction and control.  
Access and Functional Needs Populations 
For purposes of this annex, this population is defined as follows: 

• A person who cannot operate in an emergency on her/his own safely (example: 
and elderly person who lives on their own day-to-day, but who may have limited 
media access and who is unable to get to a shelter unaided) and/or  

• Who cannot operate in daily life without an assistant and/or  

• Who needs support daily from a technical device that requires electrical support.  
A rResponse agencies will ensure that people with functional and/or access needs (i.e. 
special needs populations) are provided for in time of emergency.  
Further resources/personnel/material must be requested as early as possible 
given the level of activation to ensure timely service to this population.  
A roster of individuals with functional and access deficits requiring definitive care, and 
their family members, should be developed and maintained during the emergency at the 
gaining facility. Public information materials will be modified for these populations so 
that they will be aware of the primary hazards and of mitigation and response actions to 
be taken during the incident.  
Responsibilities 
All tasked agencies will: 

• Develop applicable SOPs, guidelines and/or checklists detailing the 
accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
transportation activities 

• Provide ongoing status reports. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work in 
the event that state and federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities, and provide this information to the City’s Emergency Management 
Coordinator. 

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
10 

Hospitals 
• Implement internal and external hospital disaster plans.  
• The Health and Medical Services Coordinator in the EOC will check conditions of 

local and regional hospitals and number and type of available beds through FMH.  
• Establish and maintain field and inter-hospital medical communications per 

ICS/HICS.  
• Provide a representative to the COF EOC.  
• Provide medical guidance as needed to EMS.  
• Coordinate with EMS, other hospitals and any medical response personnel at the 

scene to ensure that casualties are transported to the appropriate medical 
facility.  

• Distribute patients to hospitals both inside and outside the area based on severity 
and types of injuries, time and mode of transport, capability to treat, bed capacity 
and special designations such as trauma and burn centers. 

• If necessary, coordinate with local emergency responders to isolate and 
decontaminate incoming patients to avoid the spread of chemical or bacterial 
agents to other patients and staff.  

• Coordinate with other hospitals and EMS on the evacuation of patients from 
affected hospitals, and specify where patients are to be taken.  

• Depending on the situation, deploy medical personnel, supplies, and equipment 
to the disaster site(s) or retain them at the hospital for incoming patients.  

• Establish and staff a reception area and support center at or near each hospital 
for the relatives and friends of disaster victims who may converge there in search 
of their loved ones.  

• Provide patient identification information to the American Red Cross.  
Police Department  

• Provide security at or around health and medical facilities or at mass casualty 
sites.  

• Provide security assistance/oversight to medical facilities and to health and 
medical field personnel upon request.  

• Maintain emergency health services at correctional facilities, if appropriate.  

• Provide communications support for health and medical activities.  

• If necessary, provide traffic flow and parking assistance around health and 
medical facilities. 

• Assist in the Family Reunification operation.  
Public Works 

• Assist with the movement of people and resources to support health and medical 
services operations.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
11 

• Assist with staging and if necessary, heavy equipment to support health and 
medical operations.  

• Provide support and technical assistance in preventing or containing ground/soil 
pollution. 

Volunteer Agencies  
• As requested and coordinated through the EOC, provide food and water for 

emergency medical workers, volunteers and patients, if requested.  

• Maintain a Disaster Welfare Information (DWI) system in coordination with 
hospitals, EMS, aid stations, and field triage units to collect, receive, and report 
information about the status of victims. Provide DWI to the Public Health and 
Medical Services Coordinator for appropriate dissemination.  

•  Assist in the notification of the next of kin of the injured and deceased.  

• Assist with the reunification of the injured with their families.  

• Provide first aid and other related medical support (with capabilities) at temporary 
treatment centers/alternate care sites.  

• Provide supplementary medical and nursing aid and other health services, when 
requested and within capabilities.  

• Provide assistance for the special needs of the disabled, elderly and children 
separated from their parents at hospitals or other definitive care sites (this activity 
may be coordinated with Mass Care and Social Services –ESF 6). 

 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility (refer to levels of activation) with appropriate response resources 
capabilities.  
Unresolved assistance requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or 
the SOA EOC, and as required to other states or the federal government for assistance 
support. 
 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. The 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
12 

Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform the 
functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into status 
reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a review and analysis of the group activities 
during the event/incident/exercise. This review of processes and systems will serve to  

• Address any operational or planning gaps  

• Capture innovations that proved useful during response  

• Improve operations in advance of the next incident 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this review and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager and shared as deemed necessary and appropriate to 
external response stakeholders. 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
  
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
13 

Attachment 1: Mass Care Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Perform ongoing disease surveillance and tracking 
activities. 

 Maintain situational awareness regarding man-
made and natural hazards and risks in and near the 
City of Fairbanks. 

 Coordinate with other agencies on the development 
of Public Health and Medical Services plans, 
particularly for pre-identified hazard 
areas/situations. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Develop agreements with regional health and 
medical agencies to augment City resources. 

 Develop and/or review procedures for crisis 
augmentation of health and medical personnel, as 
well as the identification of health care facilities that 
could be expanded into emergency treatment 
centers (e.g. skilled nursing facilities, urgent care 
clinics, etc.) 

 Review departmental standard operating 
procedures, needs for materials, supplies, and 
necessary forms. 

 Review protective action guides and self-support 
capabilities such as emergency electric power 
generators and communications capabilities. 

 Ensure relevant personnel are trained in EOC 
operations, the incident Command System (ICS) 
and the National Incident Management System 
(NIMS). 

 Participate in training, drills and other activities to 
improve interagency communications. 

 Review and maintain personnel call up lists. 
 Participate in training and exercises to refine and 

enhance operational readiness. 
Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Coordinate the deployment of health care providers 
to provide mass inoculations if deemed necessary. 

 Issue protective action guidance as necessary. 
 Coordinate requests for enhanced fatality 

management assets/personnel. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
14 

Phase Actions 
 Coordinate with COF and State and Federal law 

enforcement for fatality management if a terrorist 
act is suspected. 

 Coordinate operations and resources management 
with all relevant stakeholders. 

o Assist in making decisions regarding opening 
of alternate care sites, restrictions, priority 
services, and demobilization planning (Note: 
Demobilization planning begins in tandem 
with the decision to begin mass care services 
– i.e. have an exit strategy). 

 Coordinate with other response agencies regarding 
acquisition and maintenance of accurate and up-to-
date intelligence on the current operational 
capabilities and capacities of the Public Health and 
Medical Services system. 

o Include information regarding care for access 
and functional needs populations. 

 Ensure public warning and communication 
regarding Public Health and Medical Services is 
widely and effectively communicated. 

o Include strategies for communicating with 
access and functional needs populations. 

 Assign transportation, material, and/or personnel 
resources to move  materials, personnel and 
supplies as requested by the Public Health 
Officer/Medical Officer/Functional Coordinator 
coordinate with:  

o Transportation,  
o Public Health and Medical Services,  
o Agriculture and Natural resources- which 

provides nutritional assistance- and  
o Volunteer and Donations Management). 

 Assist in coordination of staffing and resupply 
management for operational sites. 

 Provide field support for all mass care operations 
integrated through ICS. 

Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre- disaster levels. 

 Conduct ongoing sampling and monitoring to 
ensure continued levels of sanitation. 

 Continue to perform tasks necessary to expedite 
recovery and clean-up operations. 

 Coordinate consolidation and demobilization 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
15 

Phase Actions 
activities for any activated alternate care site.  

 Continue to perform tasks necessary to expedite 
restoration and recovery operations. 

 Gradually revert assignments and personnel 
requirements to normal. 

 Return borrowed resources and those obtained 
through agreement, lease, or rental when those 
resources are no longer required: document returns 
with hand receipts. 

 Evaluate response and make necessary changes in 
this Functional Annex to correct shortfalls and 
improve future response activities. 

 Participate in after action meetings and prepare 
after action reports and improvement plans as 
requested. 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
16 

Attachment 2: ARC Designated List of Shelters 
On file at the City of Fairbanks Fire Department  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex H – Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8)      Operations Branch 
17 

Attachment 3: Food Resources 
Grocery Stores 
 Sam’s ClubCostco 
 WalMart 
 Safeway East & West 
 Fred Meyer East & West 
 Quality Foods 
Convenient Stores 
VOADS 
Churches 

Formatted: Line spacing:  Multiple 1.08 li



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex I –Search and Rescue (ESF 9)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination  
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support 
Agency 

POC/Liaison 

Life-Saving 
Assistance 
 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Department 
and 
City of Fairbanks 
Police Department 

Area Fire 
Departments 
 
Area Police 
Departments 
 
 

FFD & FPD  
thru Dispatch   
(907) 450-6507 

Search & Rescue 
Operations 

City of Fairbanks 
Fire Department 
and 
City of Fairbanks 
Police Department 

Alaska State 
Troopers 
Wilderness 
Search and 
Rescue 
(AST WSAR) 
 
Alaska Mountain 
Rescue Group 

FFD & FPD thru Dispatch   
(907) 450-6507 
 
AST WSAR  
(907) 451-5100  
 
 
AMRG 
(907) 566-2674 

 
Purpose  
This Functional Annex provides guidance for the organization of City resources to 
conduct lifesaving search and rescue operations. Specifically, the Search and Rescue 
Annex discusses: 

• Specialized search and rescue resources 

• Agency roles and responsibilities 

• State and Federal search and rescue resources 

• Local coordination and liaison activities 
The goal of search and rescue operations is to save the lives of people who are unable 
to ensure their own survival without assistance. Search and rescue activities include, 
but are not limited to: 

• Locating, extricating and providing immediate medical assistance to victims 
trapped in collapsed or damaged structures 

• Locating and assisting missing or trapped persons, vehicles, boats, and 
downed aircraft 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
2 

Day to day rescue capability within the City of Fairbanks will be augmented during 
natural/technological disasters to the extent necessary to eliminate or minimize the 
problem at hand. 
Operations may include the mobilization of medical personnel, building trades, 
engineering services, heavy equipment operation, aerial reconnaissance, and military 
support. 
In the case of a mass casualty incident, the primary directive for search and rescue will 
be to protect the responder, extract the living and finally, to recover the dead. 
The Fire Departments and other supporting agencies have existing emergency plans 
and procedures. This annex is not designed to take the place of these plans, rather it is 
designed to complement and support the departmental staffing and procedures already 
in place.  
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex I is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Search and Rescue Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with assigned 
emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The Search and Rescue Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members of 
the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Search and Rescue (ESF 9) needs, the City of Fairbanks 
will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area and federal fire 
departments, and the Alaska State Troopers Wilderness Search and Rescue Team in 
coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Life-Saving Assistance 
 

Provide Emergency Response From 
Paramedics/Ambulances and Police 

Search & Rescue Operations Provide Search and Rescue Operations 
 
Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for Search and 
Rescue. As ESF coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates meetings, plans, 
exercises, training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the Search and 
Rescue primary and support agencies. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
3 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
As noted above, Fairbanks Emergency Management is the Coordinator for Search and 
Rescue. Augmenting Fairbanks’ capabilities are trained personnel in surrounding fire 
departments and the specialized Wilderness Search and Rescue Team of the Alaska 
State Troopers. In 2014, the Arc Angel Corporation in Anchorage will provide contract 
USAR personnel and equipment that are available to assist local, State, and Federal 
Search and Rescue teams. Alaska Mountain Rescue Group has capabilities that 
include SAR missions involving wilderness search, technical rope rescue (on steep 
rock, ice, snow, glacier), avalanche response, medical evacuation, and aircraft 
crashes. 
For a catastrophic incident such as an earthquake or explosion, specially trained and 
equipped Urban Search and Rescue (USAR) teams are maintained by the Department 
of Homeland Security and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). USAR 
teams may be deployed to assist local jurisdictions with complex search and rescue 
operations. The closest USAR Teams to Fairbanks is located in Puget Sound, 
Washington (WA-TF1).  
This Functional Annex was developed to compliment the National Response Plan 
(NRP) dated December 2005. Where appropriate, the Search and Rescue Annex also 
incorporates the elements of the National Incident Management System (NIMS) to help 
ensure a coordinated response. 
All emergency response personnel are trained in the Incident Command System (ICS) 
and the NIMS to help ensure coordination during emergency situations and if 
necessary, the integration of State and Federal resources. 
State and Federal search and rescue resources will be requested by the EOC through 
the procedures described in the Emergency Management Annex (ESF 5). 
As described in existing mutual aid agreements, outside fire and EMS resources will 
remain under the direct control of the sponsoring agency but will be assigned by the 
Incident Commander and/or the EOC to respond as necessary. 
In the event of a downed aircraft, the Federal Aviation Administration is responsible for 
locating the downed aircraft. The City of Fairbanks will coordinate ground rescue and/or 
recovery operations of victims. 
The following specialized capabilities exist with local and/or state agencies for Search & 
Rescue: 

• High Angle 

• Confined Space- City of Fiarbanks, Ft Wainwright Army Base 

• Swift Water 

• Trench- City of Fairbanks, City of North Pole, Ft Wainwright Army Base 

• Cave 

• Structural Collapse- City of Fairbanks, For Wainwright Army Base 

• Snow and Avalanche 

Commented [GU1]: FFD has the equipment but lacks training. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
4 

Accurate records must be kept to provide information to various agencies and 
individuals at the completion of search & rescue activities. 
The Fairbanks Fire Department will document where the dead were found, or injured 
persons were found, treated, and transported (if applicable) for additional medical care.  
The Fairbanks Police Department will account for and secure evidence and personal 
belongings. 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or Incident Command Post will 
serve as the central location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, 
including all activities associated with Search and Rescue. As indicated in the base EOP, 
the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, 
with Search and Rescue (ESF 4) being aligned with the Operations Section as shown in 
the figure below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Search and Rescue Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Search and Rescue 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with firefighting. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, area fire department, State, and 
Federal officials may also become critical members of the Search and Rescue team. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Search and 
Rescue
(ESF 9)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
5 

Direction and Control 
All Search and Rescue activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency 
Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the source of 
all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 

resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 
checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission area. 

• Deploy a representative to the City of Fairbanks EOC or Incident Command 
Post to assist with Search and Rescue activities. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested by the Search and Rescue 
Coordinator. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work 
in the event that reimbursement from the State and Federal government 
becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities 

• Participate in Emergency Management training and exercises. 

Rescue Teams 
• All fire departments in the Fairbanks area are the first line of response for 

most rescue situations including vehicular extrications, collapsed buildings 
and trench collapse. The Fairbanks Fire and Police Departments are the 
primary response to Search and Rescue operations in the City of Fairbanks to 
provide heavy rescue, manpower and equipment.  

• The Fairbanks fire department provides the initial size up of the situation as 
well as the initial triage. The Fire Officer on scene will assume the role of 
Incident Commander, direct the response of additional manpower and 
equipment as needed and direct the shut off of utilities such as gas or power 
at the scene. 

• Cases involving missing persons or fugitives are the responsibility of the 
Fairbanks Police Department who may call upon the Fire Department for 
assistance of search efforts. The closest search and rescue dogs teams 
available are through the Alaska State Troopers. 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
6 

Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the Logistics 
and Resource Support Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

The primary agreements for this function are: 

• Mutual Aid Agreement for Fire Protection Services 

• Emergency Medical Services Mutual Aid Agreement Between the Fairbanks 
North Star Borough and Its EMS Contractors, and adjacent entities providing 
like services 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will determine the specific impact of the 
situation and inform the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds, and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
7 

Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Management Coordinator. 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
8 

Attachment 1: Search and Rescue Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand alone resource to guide activities for this function. 
During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool for 
tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: 
Activities designed 
to prevent or lessen 
the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Review the hazards most likely to affect the City of 
Fairbanks and identify potential vulnerabilities in the Search 
and Rescue function. 

 Develop plans to overcome these deficiencies (i.e., new 
equipment, training, mutual aid procedures). 

Preparedness: 
Activities designed 
to improve 
readiness 
capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex as well as supporting 
operating procedures and guidelines. 

 Ensure personnel receive appropriate emergency operations 
training. 

 Ensure mutual aid agreements are in place with surrounding 
jurisdictions. 

 Develop and maintain mutual aid agreements with private 
area resources that could be useful during Search and 
Rescue operations. 

 Participate in training and exercises. 
Response:  
Activities designed 
to save lives, 
protect property 
and contain the 
effects of an event. 

 Respond as required on a priority basis. 
 Activate mutual aid if needed. 
 Coordinate activities with other responding agencies. 
 Coordinate with Search and Rescue elements responding 

from outside the jurisdiction. 
 Alert or activate off-duty personnel as required by the 

emergency. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated by the 

situation. 

Recovery: 
Activities designed 
to ensure continued 
public safety and 
return the 
community to pre- 
disaster levels. 

 Replenish supplies and repair damaged equipment. 
 Continue all activities in coordination with the EOC or 

Incident Command based on the requirements of the 
incident. 

 Participate in after-action briefings and develop after-action 
reports. 

 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex and 
supporting plans and procedures. 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex I – Search and Rescue (ESF 9)       Operations Branch 
9 

Attachment 2: List of Search and Rescue Resources 
 
See Firefighting Annex (ESF 4) 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
1 

 

Annex J: Oil and Hazardous Materials (ESF 10) ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator:  
City of Fairbanks (COF) Emergency Management:  
907- 450-6604 or Dispatch: 907-450-6507 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 
For Oil and Hazardous Materials the support agency is the Fairbanks North Star 
Borough HazMat Response Team. COF has a technical level response capability; 
FNSB has the technical-level response capabilities and capacities.  

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Oil & Hazardous 
Materials Response 
(Chemical, Biological, 
Radiological) 

COF Fire Dept. FNSB HazMat 
Response Team 

P: 907- 450-6604  
or Dispatch: 907-450-6507 
 
S: FNSB HazMat Team  
(907) 452-4355  
or through dispatch 
 

Environmental Short- 
& Long-Term Cleanup 

SOA DEC COF P:  907-465-5066 
 

 
Purpose  
This Functional Annex describes the actions required to coordinate disaster mitigation, 
preparedness, response and recovery functions related to an oil and/or hazardous 
material spill or release. This annex addresses:  

• Response to oil and hazardous materials incidents at both fixed sites and on 
transportation routes  

 
• Specialized local, regional, state and federal mutual aid resources  

 
• Hazardous materials planning and reporting requirements  

 
• Short and long-term environmental cleanup. 

  
Scope  
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
2 

 

require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex J is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Emergency Management Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The agencies with Annex J responsibilities have existing emergency plans and 
procedures. This annex is not designed to take the place of these plans; rather it is 
designed to ensure that specific hazardous materials planning requirements are met.  
The lead agency for HazMat Response in Fairbanks is the FNSB HazMat Response 
Team. The City of Fairbanks may also require mutual aid with area industry and federal 
HazMat response teams in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and 
the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Oil & Hazardous Materials Response Technical Response:  

 
Identify Potential or Actual Hazardous 
Materials Spills or Releases 
 
Coordinate Response With FNSB Hazmat 
Response Team 
 
Coordinate Resource Requests and 
Requests for Assistance From Industry, 
State and Federal Hazmat Response 
Assets. 

 
Environmental Short- & Long-Term Cleanup 

 
Coordinate With SOA Department of 
Environmental Conservation and the 
Environmental Protection Agency and 
Other Federal Response Assets to Identify 
and Execute Cleanup Missions. 
 
Provide Logistics Support to Agencies 
Operating in Fairbanks to Accomplish 
Hazmat Response and Recovery 
Activities. 
 

 
Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

General 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making. Smaller incidents 
may be coordinated from the Incident Command Post without the need to activate the 
EOC.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
3 

 

Policy and coordination functions will be accomplished from the EOC, while tactical and 
operational decisions will be made in the field within the Incident Command 
(ICS)/National Incident Management System (NIMS) structure. 
The agencies with responsibilities detailed in this annex have comprehensive existing 
emergency plans and procedures. This annex is not designed to take the place of these 
plans; rather it is designed to ensure that specific hazardous materials planning 
requirements are met. 
When appropriate, those managing this function in the COF EOC will reference and 
support the departmental staffing and procedures already in place. 

Action Checklist 
The COF EOC will be responsible for coordinating additional assistance and resources 
for on-scene responders to any suspected or actual hazardous material incident. An 
Action Check-list is included as Attachment 1 of this Annex to guide those responsible 
for the functions detailed in this annex.  
 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with Firefighting. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks 
EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Firefighting (ESF 
5) being aligned with Command as shown in the figure below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Oil & Hazardous Material Function under the Public Safety Branch of the 
Operations Section. 

 

Command 
(EM 

Coordinator)

Planning 
Section

Operations 
Section

Public Safety 
Branch

Oil & 
Hazardous 
Materials

Finance 
Section

Logistics 
Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
4 

 

The EOC will be organized and staffed to support the ICS/NIMS operational structure 
described above. The organization and staffing of the EOC will be designed to provide a 
direction and control structure with the flexibility to adapt to the magnitude of any 
emergency situation. 
 
Notifications 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will notify the appropriate Functional 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their Functions as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist. Depending on the nature 
and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and Federal officials may also become 
critical members of the Emergency Management team.  
See Attachment B: Hazardous Materials Action Checklist, for more information 
regarding notifications 
Direction and Control 
All Emergency Management activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control.  
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned functions/mission 
areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
Emergency Management activities. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned. 
 
Each and every agency, department, office and division of City of Fairbanks 
government is charged with development of and assistance in their respective Function. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
5 

 

Each of these entities as well as private industry and other public and private agencies 
that have responsibilities for the public should maintain and periodically test, review and 
update their Functional Annex. 

 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will determine the specific impact of the 
situation and inform the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds, and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for Federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Management Coordinator. 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
6 

 

 

Attachment 1: Emergency Management Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in the hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities. 

 Develop emergency preparedness programs for 
hazardous materials incidents. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this ESF Annex and its attachments. 
 Develop plans and procedures for hazardous 

materials incidents.   
 Coordinate with local industrial plants to document 

their chemical storage. 
 Provide or coordinate training for fire and law 

enforcement personnel so that they are prepared to 
recognize a hazardous materials incident and to 
promptly isolate and secure the accident scene. 

 Ensure personnel are appropriately trained and 
equipped to deal with hazardous materials 
incidents. 

 Develop and maintain standard operating 
procedures and checklists for hazardous materials 
incidents. 

 Ensure notification and call-up lists are current. 
 Participate in Emergency Management training and 

exercises. 
Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Establish Contact with IC at the scene 
 Consider additional notifications (incident 

dependent) to: 
o Fairbanks Hazmat Team Coordinator:      

(907)459-1481                                 
Response Coordinator (907)384-9494 

o Alaska Regional Response Team: 
http://alaskarrt.org  

o Neighboring jurisdictions 
o Schools and Industry in the area of the 

incident 
o ESF-6, ESF-8, and ESF-1 for evacuation, 

shelter, and medical care. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    
 

Annex J – Oil & Hazardous Materials (ESF 10)      Operations 
7 

 

Phase Actions 
o Ft. Wainwright Army Base 
o 103rd Civil Support Team (CST) Alaska 

National Guard through the SOA Department 
for Military and Veterans Affairs. 

 Coordinate with FNSB on these notifications. 
 Assess the need for emergency proclamation to 

support response efforts. 
 Deploy appropriately trained personnel to the 

incident. 
 Assess the situation.  Detect the presence of and 

identify hazardous material(s).  Refer to the 
Hazardous Materials Emergency Response 
Guidebook. 

 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 
by the situation. 

o Depending on the situation, consider 
coordination with Mass Care, Public 
Health/Medical Services, and Transportation 
functions to facilitate shelter, medical care, 
and evacuation. 

 If hazardous materials are involved, isolate and 
secure the accident scene. 

 Establish adequate zones for decontamination. 
 Deploy a representative to the FNSB EOC if 

requested. 
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Continue to coordinate the activities of all 
responding agencies. 

 Support community recovery activities. 
 Schedule after-action briefings and develop after-

action reports. 
 Develop and implement mitigation strategies. 
 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 

and supporting plans and procedures. 
 
 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support – 
(ESF 11)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Nutritional Assistance State of Alaska 

(SOA) 
Department of 
Environmental 
Conservation 
(DEC) 

 DEC:  
907-451-2120 

Animal & Plant 
Disease/Pest 
Response 

SOA DEC  DEC:  
907-451-5170 

Food Safety & Security SOA DEC Utility Services of 
Alaska (parent 
company of 
Golden Heart 
Utilities and 
College Utilities 
Corp. for water –
related services). 

Primary: DEC:  
907-451-2108 
 
Support: Utility Svc. of AK: 
Utility Services of Alaska 
Phone:  (907) 479-3118  
Fax:  (907) 474-0619   
 
24hr emergency line:  
907-479-3118 

Natural, cultural, & 
historic properties 
protection & 
restoration. 

SOA Department 
of Natural 
Resources (DNR) 

 DNR:  
907-451-2660 

Safety & wellbeing of 
household pets. 

Fairbanks North 
Star Borough 
(FNSB) 
Department of 
Animal Control 

 FNSB Animal Control:  
907-451-1451 

 
Purpose  
This functional annex to the City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 
identifies and organizes the resources available to the City of Fairbanks (COF) to 
address animal care in the event of either a natural or manmade disaster or in the case 
of a Foreign Animal Disease (FAD) outbreak. As such, it includes coordinating animal 
evacuation, sheltering, and health care.  
This ESF also identifies the responsibilities of organizations that are charged with 
oversight of food and water supplies in the case of a disaster or emergency situation 
affecting human beings.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

Specifically, ESF-11 addresses:  

• Resources available for sheltering domestic animals  

• Identification of expedient care for lost and missing animals  

• Nutritional services (determining nutrition assistance needs, obtaining food 
supplies and arranging delivery)  

• Food supply safety and security (inspection and verification of food safety)  

• Natural resource protection and restoration (protection of natural and cultural 
resources and historic properties) 

Scope  
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex K is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
This Emergency Management Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities for Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutritional 
Support in the EOP. 
The Functional Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members of the EOC 
Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Annex E: Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other needs, the City of Fairbanks will require mutual aid and 
requests for assistance (RFA) with area and federal fire departments, and in 
coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska. 
 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Nutritional Assistance Support Mass Care agencies with 

procurement of bulk food and water 
resources and with logistics support for 
bringing these resources to feeding 
and/or distribution sites. 

Animal and Plant Disease/Pest Response Provide intelligence to SOA DEC 
Food/Water Safety and Security Local office of SOA DHSS and local 

utilities coordinate with SOA to provide 
surveillance, testing, and public 
warning/advisories regarding food and 
water safety. 

Natural, cultural, & historic properties protection & 
restoration. 

Coordinate with local and state historical 
societies and with SOA DNR,  
 
Provide appropriate documentation of 
expenditure and any damage in 
accordance with state and federal rules 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

for reimbursements on repairs and 
restoration of Historic Registry sites. 

Safety & wellbeing of household pets. Coordinate with FNSB Animal Control for 
temporary shelter strategies;  
 
Identify local resources and personnel 
who may be able to assist with pet 
sheltering facilities and material, and who 
may be able to provide care to sick or 
injured animals.  
 
Coordinate with Mass Care regarding co-
locating pet and general populations 
shelters.  
 
Coordinate with Mass Care regarding 
sheltering people with functional or 
access needs who have service animals. 

 
The Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for this ESF. As ESF 
coordinator, the Fire Chief (or designee) coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, 
training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the Emergency Management 
primary and support agencies. 
Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

General 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making. Smaller incidents 
may be coordinated from the Incident Command Post without the need to activate the 
EOC.  
Policy and coordination functions will be accomplished from the EOC, while tactical and 
operational decisions will be made in the field or at the offices of the relevant lead 
agencies within the Incident Command (ICS)/National Incident Management System 
(NIMS) structure. In the event that operational activities for this function are conducted 
at lead agency sites, those agencies will provide a liaison to the COF EOC to support 
effective coordination of efforts and resource requests. 
The Functional Coordinator will rapidly assess the need for resources from outside the 
COF to support operations and will request assistance as needed. Depending on the 
event, State and Federal agencies may become critical members of the EOC Team. 

Organization 
Animal Health Care 
The borough has a local capability for providing expedient health services to injured 
response animals and pets that includes at least seven local veterinary hospitals & 
clinics. 
Animal control services from the FNSB have a very limited capability to transport injured 
animals to veterinary relief facilities. Assistance with animal transportation may be 
available from surrounding jurisdictions through established mutual support 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

agreements. The Alaska State Veterinary Medical Association 
(http://www.akvma.org/) may also be able to provide listings of available transportation 
resources. In addition, local veterinarians and the Humane Society can coordinate with 
the American Red Cross to pick up any animals arriving at Red Cross shelters and 
transport them to kennels or other temporary holding facilities. 
Specialized facilities (i.e., animal shelters, veterinary hospitals & clinics, boarding 
facilities, etc.) are responsible for making their own arrangements for emergency energy 
sources to provide proper environmental conditions, food & water to highly vulnerable 
animal populations.  
Pet ownership corresponds, for the most part, with general population density. An 
approximate number of companion animals in Fairbanks can be estimated by utilizing a 
system developed by the Humane Society of the United States. Very roughly, the 
number of companion animals in Fairbanks can be estimated as: 

Dogs: 17,925 

Cats: 19,469 

Birds: 3,977 

Horses: 1,641 
Families are encouraged to prepare all of their family members for disaster situations. 
Local veterinarians can assist in educating pet owners of the need to prepare by 
distributing brochures and fliers on disaster preparedness for pets. Pet owners can 
assist locating lost or missing pets by providing a description or picture of the lost 
animal. FEMA’s Ready.Gov site includes information and brochures to help families 
plan for the care of their pets in a disaster (http://www.ready.gov/caring-animals) 
To the extent possible, the COF will coordinate efforts to meet any additional or 
unforeseen circumstances. Critical supplies will be available either locally or regionally. 
Should additional critical supplies be needed, the Alaska Veterinary Medical 
Associations may be able to provide listings of resources available and assistance with 
their procurement and delivery. 
FNSB Animal Control will be responsible for the documentation of injuries and deaths of 
animals for insurance, Small Business Administration (SBA), & statistical purposes and 
will report to this data to the EOC. This mission will be requested based on the type, 
magnitude and location of the disaster. 
Animal Euthanasia 
In general, physical methods of euthanasia will be in accordance with established FNSB 
Animal Control guidelines. Where large numbers of livestock or pets are involved, these 
procedures may have to be modified, but will adhere, to the extent possible, to 
guidelines for humane euthanasia of animals.  
Local law enforcement will assist local veterinarians if the decision is made to employ 
euthanasia for critically injured animals. Law enforcement officials may have to make 
these decisions in the early part of the disaster before animal medical care specialists 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

are available. The primary job of law enforcement is the protection of emergency 
responders and disaster victims. As such, decisions may have to be made that would 
require putting down animals that may create a danger to responders or victims. 
Stray Pets and Livestock 
Unclaimed animals or situations where the owners are unavailable require special 
consideration. To the extent possible, local Animal Control officers will retain this 
responsibility within their own jurisdictions and modify their established SOPs according 
to the specific dictates of the incident.  
Should the problem exceed local capability, assistance may be available from 
surrounding jurisdictions through established mutual support agreements. If additional 
resources are required, the Alaska Veterinary Medical Association and the Humane 
Society may also be able to assist with locating & obtaining these services. 
Sheltering of Animals 
Sheltering of animals includes provision for both temporary and long-term shelter.  
Temporary shelter 
Pre-designation of potential locations for temporary shelters for animals should be 
identified by FNSB animal control. The American Red Cross may also have designated 
pet shelters as part of their Mass Care operational plans. These shelters should be 
suitable for serving no more than a period of ten days. Availability of these temporary 
sites will be dependent on the extent of the disaster, the cooperation of local officials, 
and the determination of the need. In the event temporary shelters are established, the 
Humane Society/FNSB and local veterinarians may be able to provide additional cages.  
Neither COF nor FNSB Animal Control can or will assume the responsibility for long 
term sheltering of animals affected by disasters. In the event these local temporary 
shelter locations become unsuitable due to the circumstances of the disaster, FNSB 
may be able to accept pets on a temporary basis.  
Long Term Shelters 
Pet owners who no longer have a home to take their pets to or whose temporary living 
quarters will not accept animals should be prepared to make arrangements to board 
their animals with other facilities such as a local veterinarian, or friends and family 
members.  
Food and Water Supply Emergencies 
Although volunteer agencies providing mass care services normally have the ability to 
provide food and water to both individuals affected by the event and those in emergency 
shelters, a major disruption to supplies of water or food may create a need to provide 
both acquisition and logistical support to the volunteer agencies. Public and private 
schools, hospitals and other institutions may have facilities available to conduct mass 
feedings if necessary. Federal agencies may also provide assistance in the bulk 
distribution of disaster food supplies and/or food stamps during large-scale disasters. 
The Functional Coordinator will work closely with The SOA DEC and local volunteer 
agencies to determine the emergency food and water needs of the affected population 
(i.e., the number of people in need of food and water and their locations). 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

The Functional Coordinator will ensure adequate logistical support is provided to the 
volunteer agencies to obtain and distribute food and water supplies to the affected 
population. The volunteer agencies will consider both stationary and mobile feeding 
operations based on the needs of the situation. If required by the event, COF will 
coordinate with the volunteer agencies to determine suitable food preparation facilities 
to use for mass feeding. 
In most events, COF will rely on the capabilities of the many volunteer agencies with 
emergency feeding capabilities (e.g., ARC, Salvation Army Canteens, Southern Baptist 
Mobile Kitchens and others). 
If the situation warrants, the lead agency for Nutritional Assistance (SOA DEC) will work 
closely with Alaska and Federal agencies to ensure the coordination of bulk food 
distribution and the issuance of disaster food stamps. In addition, the SOA DEC will: 

• Work with the EOC staff to arrange for transportation for food supplies. 

• Ensure procedures are in place to inspect the food supply and ensure food safety 
with support from the SOA DHSS and the U.S. Department of Agriculture 
(USDA). 

o The SOA DHSS in coordination with Alaska state agencies and the USDA 
will inspect food supplies intended for both human and animal 
consumption that may have been contaminated.  

o Inspections of the water supply will be conducted by officials with the 
Public Works and Utilities Departments as identified in Annex L: Energy. 

• Ensure surveillance for food-borne disease with support from the SOA DHSS 
and the USDA. 

• Coordinate disposal of contaminated food products. 

• Food related advisories will be issued by the SOA DHSS as coordinated through 
the EOC. Water advisories will be issued by the appropriate Water Utility officials 
in concert with the Public Health and Medical Services (ESF 8) lead agencies 
and Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutritional Support lead agencies. All 
advisories will be coordinated through the EOC or, if established, a Joint 
Information Center (JIC).  

• Golden Heart Utilities and College Utilities Corporation provide the water and 
wastewater management services including water treatment, water distribution, 
wastewater treatment and wastewater collection.  

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

Natural Resources Protection and Restoration 
Depending on the event, there may be cultural or historic preservation and restoration 
issues to address, as well as natural resources issues such as potential contamination 
of the water and/or soil, as well as plants and animal life.  
If the emergency causes damage to historical sites, the City of Fairbanks will work with 
the state and federal government to help ensure appropriate measures are taken to 
preserve and protect them.  
Structures registered in the national or state historical registries, or those structures 
eligible for inclusion in those registries, are subject to special considerations. The 
Tanana-Yukon Historical Society (http://www.fairbanks-tyhs.org/) may have 
information regarding historic sites and registries for the City of Fairbanks. The U.S. 
National Park Service in Alaska (www.nps.gov/state/AK/) also maintains a list of the 
national registry of historic places.  

Resources 
The City of Fairbanks utilities’ daily operational resources will be used during the initial 
finding of any agricultural and/or natural resource problem. In the event the incident 
overwhelms City resources, requests will be made to FNSB and the State of Alaska to 
continue response and recovery. SOA resources are vital to all the City of Fairbanks 
departments and their ability to respond to Agriculture, Natural Resources and 
Nutritional Support needs during a disaster.  

Notification 
In the event the incident initiates in the City of Fairbanks, the departments that directly 
have involvement will initiate the communication and notification to other City 
departments, to the local SOA DHSS office, to SOA DEC and/or SOA DNR as 
appropriate for the given incident. Should the EOC be activated and this functional area 
is staffed, all communications will go through the EOC.  
EOC staff assigned to this mission and the Public Information Officer will coordinate to 
ensure the public receives the information needed to protect themselves, their families, 
and their pets. SOA’s liaisons from the appropriate lead agencies will be contacted for 
Subject Matter Expertise (SME) and collaboration.   
 
EOC Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with this annex. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of 
Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with 
Agriculture, Natural Resources and Nutritional Support falling under the Operations 
Section, Infrastructure Branch. 

http://www.fairbanks-tyhs.org/


City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing the Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutrition Support 
 
The EOC will be organized and staffed to support the ICS/NIMS operational structure 
described above. The organization and staffing of the EOC will be designed to provide a 
direction and control structure with the flexibility to adapt to the magnitude of any 
emergency situation. 
 
EOC Notifications 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will notify the appropriate Functional 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their Functions as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist. Depending on the nature 
and location of the emergency, Borough, State, and Federal officials may also become 
critical members of the Emergency Management team. 
Direction and Control 
All Emergency Management activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned functions/mission 
areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 
Emergency Management activities. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned. 
 
Each and every agency, department, office and division of City of Fairbanks 
government is charged with development of and assistance in their respective Function. 
Each of these entities as well as private industry and other public and private agencies 
that have responsibilities for the public should maintain and periodically test, review and 
update their Functional Annex. 

Persons with Access and Functional Needs 
Addressing individuals with access and functional Special needs will be accomplished 
by each individual agency charged with their care. All agencies rely upon the expertise 
of those entities that deal with populations with access and functional needs assistance 
on a day-to-day basis not only to provide comprehensive and accessible means of 
service, but to work closely with all public safety agencies to ensure complete and 
adequate care before, during and after disaster situation. Among these services are 
included: 

• Communication (pre- and post-disaster) 

• Evacuation 

• Transportation 

• Sheltering of pets 

• Co-sheltering of people with service animals (In coordination with Mass Care) 

• Mitigation assistance 

• Unmet needs 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will determine the specific impact of the 
situation and inform the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines.  
Care should be taken to determine what specific accounting and documentation practices 
are necessary to address repair and assistance for registry-listed historic sites. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs.  

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Management Coordinator. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

 
 

Attachment 1: Emergency Management Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in the hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities. 

 Develop emergency preparedness programs and 
materials and present them to the public. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex and its attachments. 
Develop SOPs and Checklists to support the 
activities described in this annex. 

 Identify pet boarding facilities and private 
organizations that may provide emergency shelters 
for animals. 

 Identify sources to augment emergency food and 
water supplies 

 Identify local agribusiness operators with equipment 
and personnel to assist with any large animal 
movement or quarantine activities. 

 Develop mutual aid agreements with government 
agencies, professional associations and private 
agencies and organizations with personnel and 
equipment that could support the activities of this 
annex. 

 Develop and/or review procedures for crisis 
augmentation of personnel. 

 Ensure City personnel and partner agencies and 
organizations are provided with opportunities to take 
emergency operations and ICS training. 

 Ensure notification and call-up lists are current. 
 Develop emergency exercises to support 

Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutritional 
Support activities. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Support the disaster response and recovery with all 
available resources. 

 Provide assistance to established pet shelters. 
 Restrict movement, detain or move animals, 

equipment, products and/or personnel as necessary 
to control and eradicate animal or plant disease. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) May 20, 2024 

Annex K: Agriculture, Natural Resources & Nutrition Support (ESF 11)          Operations Branch 

Phase Actions 
 Manage and direct evacuation of animals from risk 

areas and provide technical assistance to prevent 
animal injury and the spread of disease. 

 Provide and/or receive appropriate mutual aid. 
 Secure supplies, equipment, personnel and 

technical assistance from support agencies, 
organizations and other resources to carry out the 
response plans associated with animal health or 
any act of agro-terrorism. 

 Coordinate the activities of all responding agencies. 
 Begin planning for demobilization of operations as 

soon as possible after response begins. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 

by the situation. 
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre- disaster levels. 

 Continue to coordinate the activities of all 
responding agencies to support disaster operations 
as needed through the recovery process. 

 Restore equipment and restock supplies to normal 
state of readiness 

 Support community recovery activities. 
 Schedule after-action briefings and develop after-

action reports. 
 Develop and implement mitigation strategies based 

on after-action review. 
 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 

and supporting plans and procedures. 
 
 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex L –Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Energy Infrastructure 
Assessment, Repair & 
Restoration 

Golden Valley 
Electric 
Association 
(GVEA) 

 
City of Fairbanks 
Public Works 
Department 

GVEA   
(907) 452 1151 / 4832     
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Potable Water and 
Sewer Infrastructure 
Assessment, Repair & 
Restoration 

Utility Services of 
Alaska, Inc. 
(USA) 

 
City of Fairbanks 
Public Works 
Department 

USA  
(907) 479-3118 
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Energy Industry 
Utilities Coordination 

Golden Valley 
Electric 
Association 
(GVEA) 

 
City of Fairbanks 
Public Works 
Department 

GVEA   
(907) 452 1151 / 4832     
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

Energy Forecast Golden Valley 
Electric 
Association 
(GVEA) 

 
City of Fairbanks 
Public Works 
Department 

GVEA   
(907) 452 1151 / 4832     
 
COF Public Works  
(907) 459-6770 

 
Purpose  
The Energy and Utilities Annex (ESF 12) provides guidance to help ensure the 
continued operation of essential utility services in the City of Fairbanks. Specifically, the 
Energy and Utilities Annex addresses: 

• Energy system assessment, repair and restoration 

• Assessment and restoration of water services (drinking water, sewer and 
sanitation systems) 

• Coordination with public and private utilities 

• Energy forecasting 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
2 

Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
For the purpose of this Annex, utilities are defined as electric and water services. 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex L is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Energy and Utilities Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with assigned 
emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The private utilities companies and government agencies assigned responsibilities in 
this Annex have existing emergency plans and procedures. Annex L is not designed to 
take the place of these plans, rather it is designed to complement and support the 
emergency staffing and procedures already in place. 
The Energy and Utilities Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members of 
the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Energy and Utilities (ESF 12) needs, the City of Fairbanks 
will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) from State and Federal 
agencies in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of 
Alaska.  

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Energy Infrastructure Assessment, Repair & 
Restoration 

Provide Assistance With Equipment and 
Engineers 

Potable Water and Sewer Infrastructure Assessment, 
Repair & Restoration 

Provide Assistance With Equipment and 
Engineers 

Energy Industry Utilities Coordination Incident Management 
Energy Forecast Incident Planning 
 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for 
Energy and Utilities. As ESF coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates 
meetings, plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the 
Public Safety primary and support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
Entities providing utility services to the City of Fairbanks are the primary agencies for 
providing Energy and Utilities technical assistance, resources and support during 
response activities. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
3 

Maintaining energy and utilities systems following an emergency is critical to protecting 
lives and property and maintaining continuity of government, emergency services, 
transportation, the local economy and other critical services and infrastructures. 
The Energy and Utilities Coordinator will work with the energy and utility providers, and 
the EOC Team to rapidly assess damage and/or disruption to energy and utilities 
services and recommend actions to restore and/or protect systems. 
The City of Fairbanks role is to assist in the response of the utility providers through 
escort, traffic control, debris removal, and constant coordination to provide information 
to elected officials and the public as to the restoration timeline. 
The City of Fairbanks will assist in the protection of utility capabilities through mitigation 
efforts such as code enforcement, repair and maintenance of storm water systems, 
trimming of trees along the City’s right of ways and communication with the utility 
providers. 
Utility providers determine the priority for restoration of electrical services. Where 
possible, priority will be given to hospitals and critical government services. 
The following entities provide utility services in the City of Fairbanks: 

• Electric: Golden Valley Electric Association (GVEA) 

• Water and Sewer: Utility Services of Alaska, Inc. (USA)Int 

• Natural Gas: Interior Gas Utility 

• Propane: Various Vendors 

• Gas: Various Vendors 

• Diesel: Various Vendors (under separate cover) 
Since the City of Fairbanks has no regulatory responsibilities over private utility 
providers, close coordination will be required to help ensure emergency response and 
recovery decisions regarding system restoration are based on shared information. 
Energy and utilities field personnel should work within the Incident Command System 
(ICS) structure. Although they will remain under the direct control of their sponsoring 
organization, they will be assigned by the Incident Commander and/or the EOC Team to 
respond as necessary. 
State and Federal Public Safety resources will be requested by the EOC through the 
procedures described in the Emergency Management Annex (ESF 5). 
Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or Incident Command Post 
will serve as the central location for interagency coordination and executive decision-
making, including all activities associated with Public Safety. As indicated in the base 
EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System 
Structure, with Energy and Utilities (ESF 12) being aligned with the Operations Section 
as shown in the figure on the following page. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
4 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Energy and Utilities Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will notify the appropriate Energy and Utilities 
coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives 
report to the EOC to coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with Energy and Utilities. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, State, and Federal officials may 
also become critical members of the Energy and Utilities team. 
Direction and Control 
All Energy and Utilities activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency 
Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the source of 
all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC or Incident Command 
Post to assist with Energy and Utilities activities. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested by the Energy and Utilities 
Coordinator. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

Command 
(EM Coordinator)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Energy and 
Utilities (ESF 12)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
5 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work 
in the event that State and Federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities.   

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 

Private Energy and Utilities Companies 
• Gather, assess and share information on system damage.  

• Provide a representative to the EOC or Incident Command Post, if requested. 

• Provide estimates on the impact of outages within affected areas. 

• Provide information on projected restoration. 

City of Fairbanks Public Works Department 
• Work with utilities to ensure the provision of electricity, gas/propane, safe 

drinking water, and a working sewer system.  

• Working with the Alaska Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), 
provide assistance and information to the public on actions to take to assure 
safety of potable water (i.e. mandatory boil order). 

Other 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the Logistics 
and Resource Support Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

Any agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or otherwise 
use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
6 

The Emergency Management Coordinator will determine the specific impact of the 
situation and inform the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds, and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Management Coordinator. 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
7 

Attachment 1: Energy and Utilities Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool 
for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: 
Activities designed 
to prevent or lessen 
the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Based on known hazards, identify and correct vulnerabilities 
in the energy and utilities function. 

 Implement a public awareness campaign regarding energy 
and utilities safety in emergencies. 

Preparedness: 
Activities designed 
to improve 
readiness 
capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex as well as supporting 
operating procedures and guidelines. 

 Ensure personnel receive emergency operations training. 
 Develop guides and checklists to support emergency Energy 

and Utilities operations. 
 Ensure emergency call-up and resource lists are current. 
 Ensure the availability of necessary equipment to support 

energy and utilities activities. 
 Participate in emergency exercises. 

Response:  
Activities designed 
to save lives, 
protect property 
and contain the 
effects of an event. 

 Deploy trained individuals to the EOC or Incident Command 
Post. 

 Alert or activate off-duty, contract, and auxiliary personnel as 
required by the emergency. 

 Coordinate activities with other responding agencies. 
 Conduct specific response actions as dictated by the 

situation. 

Recovery: 
Activities designed 
to ensure continued 
public safety and 
return the 
community to pre- 
disaster levels. 

 Continue all activities in coordination with the EOC or 
Incident Command Post based on the requirements of the 
incident. 

 Support restoration activities. 
 Replenish supplies and repair damaged equipment. 
 Participate in after-action briefings and develop after action 

reports. 
 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex and 

supporting plans and procedures. 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex L – Energy and Utilities (ESF 12)       Operations Branch 
8 

Attachment 2: Utilities Maps 
To be provided by Public Works or Utility Providers 
Will be available via computer and back up copy will be provided at EOC. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
1 

Annex M –Public Safety (ESF 13)   ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Facility & Resource 
Security 

City of Fairbanks 
Police 
Department 
(COFPD) 

Area Police 
Departments 
 
Alaska State 
Troopers (AST) 
 
 
Federal Bureau of 
Investigation 
(FBI) 

FPD thru Dispatch   
(907) 459-6800 
 
AST  
(907) 451-5100 
 
 
FBI  
(907) 452-3250 

Security Planning & 
Technical Resource 
Assistance 

City of Fairbanks 
Police 
Department 
(COFPD) 

Area Police 
Departments 
 
Alaska State 
Troopers (AST) 
 
 
Federal Bureau of 
Investigation 
(FBI) 

FPD thru Dispatch   
(907) 459-6800 
 
AST  
(907) 451-5100 
 
 
FBI  
(907) 452-3250 

Public Safety & 
Security Support 

City of Fairbanks 
Police 
Department 
(COFPD) 

Area Police 
Departments 
 
Alaska State 
Troopers (AST) 
 
Federal Bureau of 
Investigation 
(FBI) 

FPD thru Dispatch   
(907) 459-6800 
 
AST (907) 451-5100 
 
 
FBI (907) 452-3250 

Support to Access, 
Traffic & Crowd 
Control 

City of Fairbanks 
Police 
Department 
(COFPD) 

Area Police 
Departments 
 
Alaska State 
Troopers (AST) 
 
 
Federal Bureau of 
Investigation 
(FBI) 

FPD thru Dispatch   
(907) 459-6800 
 
AST  
(907) 451-5100 
 
 
FBI  
(907) 452-3250 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
2 

Purpose  
This Functional Annex provides guidance for the organization of law enforcement 
resources in the City of Fairbanks and its partner organizations to respond to 
emergency situations exceeding normal law enforcement capabilities. Specifically, the 
Public Safety Annex (ESF 13) addresses: 

• Emergency law enforcement and security activities. 

• Operational and personnel security. 

• Augmentation of local law enforcement resources. 

• Law enforcement command and control structure. 

• Coordination with State and Federal law enforcement resources. 

• Liaison between response operations and criminal investigation activities. 
This Functional Annex assigns responsibilities and provides coordination between all of 
the law enforcement agencies with the potential of operating during times of 
emergencies and disasters in the City of Fairbanks. This coordination is to ensure the 
safety of all citizens, maintain law and order, protect public and private property and 
provide protection for essential industries and facilities. 
Emergency law enforcement will be an expansion of normal operations and 
responsibilities. It is not the intent of this plan, however to provide assistance for the City 
of Fairbanks at the expense of the other local jurisdictions. Each agency has the 
authority and responsibility to determine whether activation outside of normal 
jurisdictional lines would present a threat to local needs.  
If additional support is required of law enforcement agencies inside the City, that 
support may include traffic control, evacuation movement, search and rescue 
operations, and security for vital facilities and supplies. In the event of a large-scale or 
catastrophic disaster, law enforcement resources the Alaska State Troopers and the 
local FBI will be requested. It is also assumes that in the event of a State or federally 
declared disaster, the Alaska National Guard may be able to provide additional law 
enforcement resources. 
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex M is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Public Safety Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with assigned 
emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
3 

The Public Safety Coordinator and the support agencies are critical members of the 
EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure described in Emergency 
Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Public Safety (ESF 13) needs, the City of Fairbanks will 
require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area departments through 
mutual aid agreements, and, State and Federal agencies in coordination with Fairbanks 
North Star Borough (FNSB) and the State of Alaska.  

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Facility & Resource Security Provide Policing Services to Secure 

Facilities and Resources 
Security Planning & Technical Resource Assistance Provide Policing Services to Secure 

Facilities and Resources 
Public Safety & Security Support Provide Policing Services to Secure 

Facilities and Resources 
Support to Access, Traffic & Crowd Control Provide Policing Services to Secure 

Facilities and Resources 
 
Provide Policing Services for Traffic and 
Crowd Control 

 
Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for Public Safety. 
As ESF coordinator, Emergency Management coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, 
training, and other activities with, the private sector, and the Public Safety primary and 
support agencies. 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The Fairbanks Police Department is responsible for directing law enforcement activities 
during a multijurisdictional response in the City. Alaska State Troopers and the FBI 
maintain a daily presence in the City and will support local law enforcement, as 
required. When the EOC or Incident Command Post is activated, Public Safety (ESF 
13) will provide support to Emergency Management or the Incident Commander. 
Public safety and security requirements during emergencies will vary greatly on the 
event, but may include: 

• Providing traffic and crowd control. 

• Controlling access to operational scenes and evacuated areas. 

• Preventing and investigating crimes. 

• Providing security for critical facilities and supplies. 
All emergency response personnel are trained in the Incident Command System (ICS) 
and the NIMS to help ensure coordination during emergency situations and if 
necessary, the integration of State and Federal resources. 
State and Federal Public Safety resources will be requested by the EOC through the 
procedures described in the Emergency Management Annex (ESF 5). 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
4 

Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or Incident Command Post will 
serve as the central location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, 
including all activities associated with Public Safety. As indicated in the base EOP, the 
City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with 
Public Safety (ESF 13) being aligned with the Operations Section as shown in the figure 
below. 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing Public Safety Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Public Safety coordinators/liaisons of 
EOC activations and request the appropriate representatives report to the EOC to 
coordinate their mission areas as appropriate.  
As additional EOC staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering 
agency personnel may be asked to report to the EOC to assist with Public Safety. 
Depending on the nature and location of the emergency, area police departments, State, 
and Federal officials may also become critical members of the Public Safety team. 
Direction and Control 
All Public Safety activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks Emergency 
Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the source of 
all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section

Public Safety
(ESF 13)

Finance Section Logistics Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
5 

• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC or Incident Command 
Post to assist with Public Safety activities 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested by the Public Safety and 
Security Coordinator. 

• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 
resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 

• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 
activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work from daily work 
in the event that State and Federal reimbursement becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergency responsibilities as assigned. 

Search Coordination 
• Law enforcement personnel are responsible for the coordination of search 

efforts related to lost or missing persons, fugitives, and bomb threat. 

Staging and Reception Areas 
Fairbanks Police Department personnel will provide security around the disaster site 
during emergency operations at the request of the Emergency Manager or Incident 
Commander. They can be assisted in these efforts by the Fairbanks Fire Department. 

Curfew 
If conditions warrant, a curfew may be established by declaration of local, State, or 
Federal disaster. The Fairbanks Police Department and its Public Safety partners will be 
directed to enforce the curfew until further notice. 

Protection of Responders 
The Fairbanks Police Department and its Public Safety partners is responsible for 
providing security to first responders entering a scene where civil unrest would create 
the need for medical or fire response. 

Traffic Control 
The Fairbanks Police Department and its Public Safety partners are responsible to 
provide perimeter security, traffic and crowd control. The Fairbanks Police Department 
is responsible for coordinating the movement of disabled vehicles during evacuations. 
Public works can supply traffic control devices and jersey barriers. 

Other 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
6 

Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the Logistics 
and Resource Support Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

The primary agreement for this function is the XXX. 
All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform 
the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 

Commented [CF1]: Which agency? 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
7 

Attachment 1: Public Safety Function Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand alone resource to guide activities for this function. 
During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool for 
tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: 
Activities designed 
to prevent or lessen 
the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in hazard identification process and identify and 
correct vulnerabilities in the public safety and security 
function. 

 Develop safety programs, to include disaster situations, and 
present them to the public. 

Preparedness: 
Activities designed 
to improve 
readiness 
capabilities. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex as well as supporting 
Operating Procedures and Guidelines. 

 Ensure law enforcement personnel receive appropriate 
emergency operations training. 

 Ensure mutual aid agreements with surrounding jurisdictions 
are current. 

 Develop and maintain mutual aid agreements with private 
area resources that could be used to augment local law 
enforcement capabilities. 

 Develop and maintain standard operating guides and 
checklists to support emergency law enforcement 
operations. 

 Ensure emergency personnel call-up and resource lists are 
current and available to the Emergency Management 
Department. 

 Ensure the availability of necessary equipment to support 
law enforcement activities. 

 Participate in Emergency Management training and 
exercises. 

Response:  
Activities designed 
to save lives, 
protect property 
and contain the 
effects of an event. 

 Respond as required on a priority basis. 
 Activate mutual aid if needed. 
 Coordinate activities with other responding agencies. 
 Coordinate outside law enforcement. 
 Alert or activate off-duty and auxiliary, or reserve personnel 

as required by the emergency. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated by the 

situation. 

Recovery: 
Activities designed 

 Review plans and procedures with key personnel and make 
revisions and changes. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)      May 20, 2024    

Annex M – Public Safety (ESF 13)       Operations Branch 
8 

Phase Actions 
to ensure continued 
public safety and 
return the 
community to pre- 
disaster levels. 

 Replenish supplies and repair damaged equipment. 
 Continue all activities in coordination with the EOC or 

Incident Command Post based on the requirements of the 
incident. 

 Participate in after-action briefings and develop after-action 
reports. 

 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex and 
supporting plans and procedures. 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
1 

Annex N – Long-Term Recovery (ESF 14)    
ICS Area: Operations 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator:  
City of Fairbanks (COF) Emergency Manager:  
907- 450-6604 or Dispatch: 907-450-6507 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Social & Economic 
Community Impact 
Assessment 

Finance Director FNSB and SOA P: (907) 459-6706 

Long-Term Recovery 
Assistance for the 
State, Local 
Government, & Private 
Sectors 

City EM  FNSB and SOA 
Public Works 
Department 

P: 907-450-6604 or Dispatch  
S: Public Works: 907-459-6770 

Analysis & Review of 
Mitigation Program 
Implementation 

City EM  SOA Dept. of 
Homeland 
Security and 
Emergency 
Management and 
City of Fairbanks 
Engineering 
Department 

P: 907-450-6604 or Dispatch 
 
S: 907-428-7000 
http://ready.alaska.gov/Recovery 
 
COF Engineering: 907-459-6759 

 
Purpose  
The purpose of Long-Term Recovery (ESF14) is to coordinate the City’s recovery 
process during a large-scale disaster. A prompt recovery process for facility, services, 
infrastructure, economic welfare, and health is vital to the City of Fairbanks and its 
residents. Key areas of focus include: 

• Economic assessment, protection and restoration  

• Community recovery operations 

• Mitigation analysis and program implementation  

• Coordination with the private sector. 

• Coordination with State and Federal agencies providing assistance 
 

http://ready.alaska.gov/Recovery


City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
2 

Scope  
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex N is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible; information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Emergency Management Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
Long-term Recovery operates in different ways depending on the phase of the 
emergency:  

• Each department supporting Long-term Recovery will allocate their staff and 
equipment independently during the response phase.  

• The recovery phase is divided into short- and long-term recovery.  
o The short-term is the recovery phase that coordinates damage 

assessments, debris removal, utility restoration and re-entry for its 
residents.  

o Long-term recovery coordinates the rebuilding of the City of 
Fairbanks’s infrastructure, utilization of Federal and State of Alaska 
mitigation programs, and restoration of critical services provided to 
citizens.  

The scope for Long-term Recovery will vary depending on the magnitude and type of 
emergency that occurred, as those factors will affect the needs of short and long-term 
recovery efforts defined above. ESF-14 does support response activities on a small 
scale. However, the majority of ESF-14 responsibilities fall within the recovery/long-term 
recovery phases. This ESF will coordinate the overall recovery and mitigation efforts for 
the City.  
This annex provides guidance to other City departments and functional areas during the 
response phase regarding implications the response operation can have in respect to 
the recovery and long-term recovery for the community and its residents.  During the 
recovery phase, Long-term Recovery will consolidate the overall damage reports 
conducted in the City of Fairbanks and assess the long-term recovery needs in all 
areas.  
The Fairbanks Department of Finance, in coordination with Borough, State, and Federal 
agencies working in Long-term Recovery will assist the City’s residents with the process 
needed to recover their property. In a catastrophic event where a large amount of 
neighborhoods are completely destroyed, the Fairbanks Department of Finance, with 
assistance from the City Engineering Department will utilize pre-disaster maps and to 
demark existing property lines, easements, and roads.  
The City of Fairbanks Department of Finance will assist with tracking of the usage and 
process of City owned property, resources and personnel. The finance department 
should follow the response and recovery work and, as needed, coordination efforts and 
processes are put in place to ensure accurate financial records are completed.   



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
3 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Social & Economic Community Impact Assessment COF Department of Finance Works in 

Coordination With FNSB And SOA, and 
FEMA to Complete Impact Assessment 

Long-Term Recovery Assistance for the State, Local 
Government, & Private Sectors 

COF in Coordination With the SOA 
Division of Homeland Security and 
Emergency Management (DHS/EM) 
Establishes Mechanisms to Access State 
and Federal Assistance Programs 

Analysis & Review of Mitigation Program 
Implementation 

COF in Coordination With the COF 
Department Of Finance, SOA DHS/EM 
(And COF Public Works if Needed) to 
Conduct and Report on Mitigation Efforts. 

 
The Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the ESF coordinator. The Emergency Manager 
(or designee) coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, 
the private sector, and the Emergency Management primary and support agencies. The 
COF EM designee will work with the Finance Department Lead to coordinate Long-term 
Recovery activities.  
Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

The recovery phase is a defined previously divided up into two components; short- 
and long-term. Long-term Recovery primarily focuses on long-term recovery and the 
mitigation efforts that follow.  

• Long-Term Recovery  
o Re-entry and detailed damage assessments are conducted during the 

long-term recovery phase. 
o Collection and final reporting of damage assessments. 
o Drafting of Community Restoration Plan, including prioritization of 

restoration projects.  This is based upon damage assessments and 
community needs reports. 

• Economic Recovery and other Assistance 
o Restore internal financial processes within the City of Fairbanks. This 

includes ensuring payable and non-payable accounts are processed as 
needed. COF Department of Finance also tracks the overall process for 
any applications provided to the Federal and State of Alaska government 
for reimbursements. 

o In the event the disaster receives a Presidential Disaster Declaration, the 
City of Fairbanks and its residents can become eligible for Disaster Relief 
Assistance 404 and 406: 

• 404 Public Assistance (PA) provides reimbursement for recovery 
work in progress or completed in relations to damage produced by 
the disaster to City owned property.  

• 406 Hazardous Mitigation Grant Project(s) (HMGP) provides 
reimbursement for mitigation work the City wishes to be completed 
for restoration beyond the Federal standard. HMGP is also 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
4 

available for individuals (residents of Fairbanks), with the caveat 
that the City determines which project(s) they want to propose to 
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). 

o Individual Assistance (IA) is primarily provided by FEMA and is made 
available to residents in the event the disaster is presidentially declared 
and meets certain thresholds. IA will be available in the Disaster Recovery 
Center (DRC). 

o A DRC will be established during the recovery phase. The location is 
determined based upon the location of people and the damage to the 
infrastructure. The DRC is coordinated between local, State of Alaska, and 
Federal government agencies, depending on the different relief programs 
available. The Center provides a “one-stop-shop” for the victims that are in 
need of assistance in all facets of their recovery.  

• For the City government’s recovery, State of Alaska and Federal agencies will 
set up a Joint Field Office (JFO). The JFO is a resource for the City of 
Fairbanks for subject matter support as well as a contact point for the City’s 
applications to any of the reimbursement programs.  

Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with recovery. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks 
EOC is organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Long-term 
Recovery aligned with the Operations Section, as a unit within the Recovery Branch.  
NOTE: COF may choose to align this function under the Finance section as man-power 
needs dictate since many of the tasks in this function are assigned to the COF 
Department of Finance. 

 
EOC ICS Structure Showing the Long-Term Recovery as a unit within the Recovery Branch of the 

Operations Section. 
 
The EOC will be organized and staffed to support the ICS/NIMS operational structure 
described above. The organization and staffing of the EOC will be designed to provide a 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning 
Section

Operations 
Section

Recovery 
Branch

Long-term  
Recovery

Finance 
Section

Logistics 
Section



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
5 

direction and control structure with the flexibility to adapt to the magnitude of any 
emergency situation. 
Notifications 
COF Department of Finance personnel tasked with responsibilities in this annex will be 
notified by the City Manager, Emergency Manager or designee, or IC in the event that 
their resources are needed.  
Each department with responsibilities in this annex will internally coordinate the usage 
of personnel and equipment. In the event the Emergency Operation Center (EOC) is 
activated and other City departments are in need of Long-Term Recovery resources, 
coordination will be made in the EOC.  
Direction and Control 
All Emergency Management activities will be coordinated through the Fairbanks 
Emergency Operations Center or from the Incident Command Post that will serve as the 
source of all direction and control. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned functions/mission 
areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 
• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 

Emergency Management activities. 
• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 

resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 
• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 

activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned. 
Each and every agency, department, office and division of City of Fairbanks 
government is charged with development of and assistance in their respective Function. 
Each of these entities as well as private industry and other public and private agencies 
that have responsibilities for the public should maintain and periodically test, review and 
update their Functional Annex. 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
6 

requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the Federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform 
the functional group members. 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
7 

Attachment 1: Long Term Recovery Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Identify recovery projects that are potential 
mitigation grant targets.  

 Prepare and submit disaster mitigation applications 
to the appropriate State of Alaska and/or Federal 
agencies for reimbursement of disaster related 
expenditures. 

 Develop a Disaster Mitigation Plan. 
Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Define damage assessment forms based upon state 
information, identify the potential damage 
assessment teams and train staff to complete the 
forms and become proficient in the variables of the 
damage assessment process.  

 Work with volunteer organizations locally for any 
potential coordination during the recovery phase. 

 Educate the public on what they can do to recover 
faster with their family when a disaster strikes.  

 Coordinate with all City departments to ensure all 
departments’ plans incorporate long term recovery 
goals. 

Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Staff the Long-term Recovery Unit upon request 
from the City Manager, Emergency Management 
Coordinator or designee, or the IC. 

 Coordinate with responding agencies’ actions and 
how they can assist with laying the ground work for 
long term recovery. 

 Coordinate response effort to develop foundation for 
recovery effort. 

 If Presidentially declared, apply for disaster 
assistance  

 Coordinate damage assessment  
 Contact State of Alaska and Federal entities 
 Implement Disaster Recovery Center (DRC) 
 Coordinate with PIO 

 
 Initiate strategies for long term internal City 

coordinated recovery efforts.  
 Coordinate with State of Alaska and Federal 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex N – Long Term Recovery (ESF 14)      Operations 
8 

Phase Actions 
liaisons to prepare the area for re-entry and 
establishment of a DRC. 

 Assist other City departments upon request. 
 Initiate damage assessment to report the status to 

the state and provide documentation for a disaster 
declaration.  

o Submit initial damage report to the State of 
Alaska EOC within 24 hours, via phone. 

o Submit an official damage report to the. 
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre- disaster levels. 

 Initiate damage assessment; define the team, areas 
to be assessed, and forms to be utilized. Collate the 
data into a unified report.  

 Incorporate the damage assessment result into the 
Community Restoration Plan, including engineering 
and future development input. 

 Support the establishment of the DRC and staff as 
appropriate. 

 Work with City of Fairbanks Public Information 
Officer (PIO) and\or Joint Information Center (JIC), if 
established, to ensure all residents are aware of the 
DRC and the assistance that is available.  

 Define potential temporary housing areas, and upon 
request coordinate with residents to define and 
delineate property lines and easements.  

 Identify the available relief programs from State of 
Alaska and Federal agencies, as well as Non-
Government Organization (NGOs) such as the 
American Red Cross. Inform all City departments of 
the options available and coordinate the application 
process. 

 Prepare and submit disaster assistance applications 
to the appropriate State of Alaska and/or Federal 
agencies for reimbursement, and if required 
matching funds for disaster related expenditures.  

 
 

 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
1 

Annex O – Public Information and External Communications (ESF 15) 
ICS Area: Command  
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Emergency Public 
Information & 
Protective Action 
Guidance 

City of Fairbanks 
PIO & Emergency 
Management  

State of Alaska 
Division of 
Homeland 
Security and 
Emergency 
Management 

COF PIO  
(907) 459-6793   
COF EM  
(907) 450-6604   
 
AK SEOC  
(907) 438-7100 

Media & Community 
Relations 

City of Fairbanks 
PIO & Emergency 
Management  

State of Alaska 
Division of 
Homeland 
Security and 
Emergency 
Management 

COF PIO  
(907) 459-6793   
COF EM  
(907) 450-6604   
 
AK SEOC  
(907) 438-7100 

Government Officials & 
Internal Affairs 

City of Fairbanks 
PIO & Emergency 
Management  

State of Alaska 
Division of 
Homeland 
Security and 
Emergency 
Management 

COF PIO  
(907) 459-6793   
COF EM  
(907) 450-6604   
 
AK SEOC  
(907) 438-7100 

Tribal Affairs City of Fairbanks 
PIO & Emergency 
Management  

State of Alaska 
Division of 
Homeland 
Security and 
Emergency 
Management 

COF PIO  
(907) 459-6793   
COF EM  
(907) 450-6604   
 
AK SEOC  
(907) 438-7100 

 
Purpose  
This Public Information and External Communications (ESF 15) Annex describes how 
the City of Fairbanks will provide disaster-related information to the media and the 
public. It is designed to improve the ability of all participating agencies and 
organizations to: 

• Quickly relay critical and potentially life-saving information to those at risk. 
• Provide timely, consistent information on the status of emergency operations. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
2 

• Coordinate the release of public information from all responding agencies. 
• Assure the public that government is responding effectively to the emergency. 
• Make credible and consistent information available to answer citizen inquiries. 
• Provide ongoing and useful information regarding recovery activities. 
• Ensure a system is in place to provide information and guidance to City and if 

appropriate, Borough, State and, Federal, elected and appointed officials. 
Scope and Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require activation of the Emergency Operations Center (EOC) and implementation of the 
City of Fairbanks EOP. 
Annex O is a functional annex to the EOP and to the extent possible, information 
contained in other sections of the EOP will not be repeated in this document. 
The Public Information and External Communications Annex applies to all agencies and 
organizations with assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
Many agencies have designated Public Information Officers (PIOs) and existing 
departmental emergency public information plans and procedures. This annex is not 
designed to take the place of these plans, rather it is designed to complement and 
support the departmental staffing and procedures already in place.  
The Public Information and External Communications Coordinator and the support 
agencies are critical members of the EOC Team and will work within the EOC structure 
described in Emergency Management (ESF 5). 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Public Information and External Communications (ESF 15) 
needs, the City of Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) 
from State and Federal agencies in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough 
(FNSB) and the State of Alaska.  

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Emergency Public Information & Protective Action 
Guidance 

Emergency Public Information & 
Protective Action Guidance 

Media & Community Relations Media & Community Relations 
Government Officials & Internal Affairs Elected Officials & Internal Affairs 
Tribal Affairs Tribal Affairs 
 
Fairbanks Emergency Management is designated as the coordinator for Public 
Information and External Communications. As ESF coordinator, Emergency 
Management coordinates meetings, plans, exercises, training, and other activities with, 
the private sector, and the Public Information and External Communications primary 
and support agencies. 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
3 

Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
Public Information and External Communications (ESF 15) is a shared responsibility of 
the City of Fairbanks Public Information Officer (PIO) and the City of Fairbanks 
Emergency Management Coordinator (Fire Chief).  
The local media is a logical extension of the disaster operation and recognized as the 
best means to quickly get information to the majority of the public. The City of Fairbanks 
counts on the local media to provide emergency instructions and potentially life-saving 
information to the public following a disaster. A partnership role will be maintained with 
the media by making every attempt to provide timely and accurate information 
throughout the disaster situation. In most cases, contact with the media will be 
maintained using landline and cellular telephones, facsimile, and email. 
While Coordination of Public Information and External Communications is managed 
from the EOC or Incident Command Post, a larger disaster with multiple agencies, 
jurisdictions, and levels of government, as well as private sector and community 
partners may be needed.  In these instances, a separate Joint Information Center (JIC) 
supporting the EOC or Incident Command Post may be necessary. 
Public Information and External Communications field personnel will work within the 
Incident Command System (ICS) structure. Although they will remain under the direct 
control of their sponsoring organization, they will be assigned by the Incident 
Commander and/or the EOC Team to respond as necessary. 
State and Federal Public Information and External Communications resources will be 
requested by the EOC through the procedures described in the Emergency 
Management Annex (ESF 5). 
Organization 
As described above, The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) or 
Incident Command Post will serve as the central location for interagency coordination 
and executive decision-making, including all activities associated with Public Information 
and External Communications, but may operate from a JIC depending on the size and 
scope of the incident. As indicated in the base EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC is 
organized along the Incident Command System Structure, with Public Information and 
External Communications (ESF 15) being aligned with the Command Staff as shown in 
the figure on the following page. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
4 

 
 

EOC ICS Structure Showing External Affairs Function 
 

Notifications 
The Emergency Manager will notify the appropriate Public Information and External 
Communications coordinators/liaisons of EOC activations and request the appropriate 
representatives report to the EOC or Incident Command Post to coordinate their mission 
areas as appropriate.  
As additional staffing needs become apparent, other support and partnering agency 
personnel may be asked to report to the EOC or Incident Command Post to assist with 
Public Information and External Communications. Depending on the nature and location 
of the emergency, State, and Federal officials may also become critical members of the 
Energy and Utilities team. As noted above, depending on the size and scope of the 
incident a JIC may be stood up to coordinate Public Information and External 
Communications activities. 
Direction and Control 
All Public Information and External Communications activities will be coordinated 
through the Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center, Incident Command Post, or Joint 
Information Center that will serve as the source of all direction and control for these 
Public Information and External Communications. 
Joint Information Center (JIC) 
The Joint Information Center (JIC) is a physical location where PIOs from organizations 
with primary disaster involvement come together to coordinate and disseminate 
information. 
The purpose of JIC is to: 

• Gather and coordinate information and serve as the “hub” for the release of 
timely, accurate, consistent and useful disaster related information. 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning Section Operations 
Section Finance Section Logistics Section

Public 
Information

(ESF 15)



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
5 

• Allow all involved organizations to speak from “one voice, one message” 
providing consistent messages to the public. 

• Enable the EOC Team to concentrate on emergency decision-making and 
refer all media and public inquires to the JIC. 

• Ensure the ability exists to answer direct inquiries from the public 
• Monitor media coverage to verify the accuracy of information being 

disseminated. 
• Be proactive in responding to the disaster related information needs of all 

audiences. 
• Develop and implement a comprehensive public information strategy to gain 

and maintain public trust and confidence. 
In most cases, the JIC will be located in close proximity to the City of Fairbanks EOC. 
However, it may be located anywhere to support emergency activities. Wherever it is 
located, it is imperative that the JIC maintain contact with decision makers and/or the 
EOC or Incident Command Post via telephone, cellular phone, radio, the internet, fax 
and/or face-to-face communications. 
Once a JIC is activated, all emergency public information activities, including media 
inquiries, should be coordinated through the JIC. The JIC will become the central 
coordination point for all emergency public information and external communications 
activities. To the extent possible, the JIC will be staffed with Public Information Officers 
(PIOs) from all agencies and organizations involved in the event. 
The JIC is designed to be flexible to accommodate the unique requirements of any 
emergency or disaster situation and its structure and staffing will be customized for 
each response. For example, a major event would require JIC activation and full 
staffing, while a smaller event might only require one or two people performing all of the 
necessary tasks. 
Regardless of the incident, the function of the JIC remains essentially the same, while 
the number of departments and agencies involved, as well as the location and the 
quantity of information to be disseminated will vary greatly. At a minimum, the following 
functions must be performed regardless of these variables: 

• Establish and maintain contact with local radio, television and print media. 
• Develop and disseminate written information such as news releases, fact 

sheets and other reports as needed. 
• Schedule news conferences or interviews with department heads and other 

officials; brief them if appropriate. 
• Provide interview opportunities that meet the unique needs of each medium 

(television, radio, print). 
• .Establish and maintain a communications link or a Joint Information System 

(JIS) with field PIOs and all remote sites performing public information 
activities. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
6 

• Monitor the information being released by the media to ensure appropriate 
information is being released and take steps to correct any inaccurate 
information. 

• Exchange information with elected officials, voluntary organizations, industry 
representatives, Borough, State and Federal PIOs and all other involved 
agencies as the situation dictates. 

• Provide ongoing information to, and coordination with, City, Borough, State, 
and Federal elected officials 

PIOs working in the JIC retain the autonomy to represent the public information needs 
of their respective agencies, while working closely with the EOC Team, Incident 
Command Post, and/or JIC to ensure consistent information is being disseminated in a 
timely manner by all departments. 
The PIOs working in the JIC will have two primary functions: (1) carry out the public 
information activities of their respective departments and agencies and (2) provide 
support to and assist with the overall JIC mission. 
Designated departmental PIOs may be asked to staff various JIC functions regardless 
of the level of involvement of their respective departments. This will ensure an adequate 
number of PIOs are available to support emergency public information activities. 

Dissemination Process 
Many methods are used to disseminate information to the public during an emergency 
or disaster. Warning systems, in general, are described in the Communications Annex 
(ESF 2). Considerations for special populations or individuals with access and functional 
needs are outlined below. 

• General Public Radio, television, electronic reader boards, print media, 
social media,yand information brochures are all established methods for 
providing information to the public. Use of a particular medium(s) will be 
situation dependent, based upon the urgency of the information and the 
intended audience. Local cable providers have assigned specific channels to 
local governments for informational purposes. Local radio stations are 
available for use and newspaper coverage is provided on a daily basis. 

• Special Populations  
o Hearing impaired 

 The Emergency Alerting System (EAS) produces trailers on TV 
screens to provide weather watch and warning messages and 
other emergency information. 

o Visually impaired 
 The Emergency Alerting System (EAS) provides audio alerting 

via radio and television stations. Some emergency planning and 
disaster information brochures are available in Braille from the 
American Red Cross, FEMA and other organizations. 

o Non-English speaking 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
7 

 Many televisions have the capability to provide closed-
captioning in Spanish. 

Specialized Information Protocols 
• Restricted Areas & Reentry: Information on restricted areas, as well as the 

process for reentry into an area after it has been declared safe, will be 
obtained from the appropriate executive official and disseminated immediately 
to the media and the public. 

• Emergency Assistance: Information on any federal, state or local disaster 
assistance that might be available will be obtained from the agency offering 
the assistance. In some cases, this information may be given directly to the 
media and the public. In others cases, a telephone number will be provided 
for obtaining additional information 

• Casualties: Information on the number of fatalities, injured and missing will 
be obtained from the Fairbanks Fire and Police Departments and 
disseminated immediately to the media and the public. The identity of victims 
will be released only after confirmation of proper next-of-kin notification. 

Pre-Scripted Information 
The City of Fairbanks PIO will collect and maintain a file of fact sheets, instructions and 
procedures, and other readily available pre-scripted information on a wide range of 
topics to support the rapid dissemination of public information. 
This pre-scripted information will usually be generic in nature and non-specific to the 
event, but may still prove valuable to both the media and the public in the early stages 
of an emergency or disaster. Examples of such pre-scripted information include: 

• Chemical Fact Sheets -- for known chemical hazards. 
• Public Health Guidance -- for disease prevention after flooding. 
• Red Cross Press Releases. 
• Earthquake procedures. 

Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned mission areas. 
• Provide ongoing status reports as requested by the Public Information and 

External Communications Coordinator. 
• Provide a representative to the EOC or Incident Command Post, when 

requested. 
• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 

resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement 
• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 

activities taking care to clearly segregate disaster related work in the event 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
8 

that reimbursement becomes available from the State and Federal 
government. 

• Maintain up-to-date, 24-hour rosters for notifying personnel and provide this 
information to Emergency Management (Fire Chief). 

• Perform other emergency tasks as assigned. 

Public Information Officer 
• Mitigation: The PIO is responsible for publicizing City policies regarding all 

mitigation activities such as the implementation of building codes, awareness 
campaigns or flood mitigation procedures.  

• Preparedness: The PIO will assist in the education of public on subjects such 
as training opportunities, updates to existing plans and information on new 
plans and procedures.  

• Response: The PIO will notify the media of disaster declaration and be 
prepared to answer questions related to the declaration. 

• Recovery: The PIO is responsible for disseminating information on disaster 
recovery efforts, programs and the locations of disaster assistance centers. 
The PIO will also disseminate information for contacting agencies that assist 
with unmet needs. 

Other 
Each agency with responsibilities in this Function (whether government or non-
government) will provide assistance in moving personnel and equipment to the incident 
per their standard operating procedures. 
Additional resource needs such as fuel and other equipment is covered in the Logistics 
and Resource Support Annex (ESF 7). 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for emergency assistance will be resolved at the lowest level direction and 
control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. Unresolved assistance 
requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or the State EOC, and as 
required to other states or the federal government for assistance support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

Any agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or other use 
of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of laws and 
procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Management Coordinator will determine the specific impact of the 
situation and inform the functional group members. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
9 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds, and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
10 

Attachment 1: Public Information and External Communications Function Checklist 
of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and tool 
for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: 
Activities designed 
to prevent or lessen 
the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Develop a campaign to promote the importance of 
maintaining adequate insurance. 

 Provide information and increase awareness about safe 
rooms and other shelter methods. 

 Promote preparedness information that will lessen the 
impact of disasters, such as having a disaster 
preparedness kit and family disaster plan. 

 Establish contacts and develop working relationships with 
the media. 

Preparedness: 
Activities designed 
to improve 
readiness 
capabilities. 

 Identify all viable methods to reach the public including but 
not limited to radio, television, print media flyers, posters, 
brochures, informational booths and the Internet. 

 Develop pre-scripted media releases and public advisories 
dealing with each hazard with the potential to affect the City 
of Fairbanks. 

 Ensure adequate space and equipment is available for a 
JIC in a location in close proximity to the EOC. 

 Ensure all relevant departments have trained staff to 
support the JIC. 

 Make accommodations for 24-hour staffing. 
 Ensure all local media outlets are pre-identified and 

contacts established. Brief them regularly on emergency 
public information procedures. 

 Ensure emergency responders are familiar with public 
information procedures and know how and when to refer 
the media to the appropriate field, EOC, or JIC personnel 
for information. 

 Develop and maintain this Annex as well as supporting 
Operating Procedures. 

 Identify access and functional needs populations and be 
prepared to meet their emergency public information needs. 

 Encourage media involvement in the exercise design 
process and planning. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024    

Annex O – External Affairs (ESF 15)       Command Staff 
11 

Phase Actions 
Response:  
Activities designed 
to save lives, 
protect property 
and contain the 
effects of an event. 

 Inform the public of health and/or safety concerns and ways 
to reduce or eliminate the associated dangers. 

 Provide evacuation instructions and shelter locations. 
 In coordination with the EOC or Incident Commander, 

release emergency information as dictated by the situation. 
 Implement a proactive public information strategy to ensure 

the media’s needs are being met. 
 If the situation dictates, activate and staff the JIC. 
 After coordination with the City of Fairbanks Emergency 

Management Coordinator (Fire Chief), release information 
regarding the emergency or disaster to other departments 
and agencies, the media and the public. 

 Resolve any conflicting information and dispel rumors. 
Recovery: 
Activities designed 
to ensure continued 
public safety and 
return the 
community to pre- 
disaster levels. 

 Continue all emergency public information activities based 
on the circumstances and the organizations involved in the 
recovery efforts. 

 Distribute information on what to do when returning to your 
damaged home and how and where to apply for different 
types of disaster assistance. 

 Provide information regarding available disaster recovery 
programs and resources to the media and the public. 

 Compile a written record of events, including any printed 
materials, news releases, tapes and clippings. 

 Prepare reports and provide input for an after action report. 
 Assess effectiveness of information and education 

programs. 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
1 

Annex P – Volunteer & Donations Management (ESF 16)  
ICS Area: Logistics 
About This Annex 
At the federal level “ESF 16 – Volunteer and Donations Management” does not exist. 
These activities are found imbedded in ESF 7 – Logistics Management and Resource 
Support. There are a number of organizational structures that may work well for 
Fairbanks. These include, but are not limited to:  

• Volunteer and Donations Management as a subsection of Logistics Management 
and Resource Support. It would always be run as a Unit under the External 
Activities Support Branch.  

• Volunteer and Donations Management as a separate Branch under the Logistics 
section.  

o Further separation can be made keeping Volunteer Reception and 
Volunteer Management activities separately managed from Donations 
Managed. 

• Scaling the mission:  
o For smaller or more local incidents Volunteer and Donations activities 

remains a unit under the External Activities Support Branch. 
o For larger local incidents or incidents with an impact upon several 

jurisdictions or the whole region Volunteer and Donations Management is 
a separate Branch under the Logistics Section. 

Fairbanks should discuss how Volunteer and Donations Management will be 
coordinated in the EOC during disaster response. The data presented in this annex will 
serve the jurisdiction regardless of how it elects to coordinate the mission areas within 
the ICS structure. 
Functional Coordination 
Functional Coordinator: City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager: (907) 450-6604 or 
Dispatch: (907) 450-6507 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Manager is the functional coordinator for all functions 
in the EOP. However, due to capacity and capability limitations, each function is sub-
divided into individual mission areas with agencies having primary and support 
responsibilities as indicated in the table below. 

Mission Area Primary Agency  Support Agency POC/Liaison 
Coordinate 
Spontaneous 
(unaffiliated) 
Volunteers. 

COF Human 
Resources 
Department 
and/or COF 
Volunteer 
Coordinator 
assigned to the 
EOC 

American Red 
Cross (ARC) 
 
 

P: 907-450-6604 or Dispatch: 
907-450-6507 
S: 907-456-5937 

Coordinate Affiliated COF Human ARC, local P: 907-450-6604 or Dispatch: 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
2 

Volunteer Groups e.g. 
Volunteer 
Organizations Active 
in Disasters (VOADs), 
Red Cross, Salvation 
Army, Community 
Emergency Response 
Teams (CERTs) 

Resources 
Department 
and/or Volunteer 
Coordinator 
assigned to the 
EOC 

VOADs 
 
United Way 

907-450-6507 
S: 907-456-5937 
 
United Way: (907) 452-7211 

Managed Financial 
and Material 
Donations 

COF Finance 
Department of 
Finance and City 
Clerk's Office 
(Monetary 
Donations) 
City Clerk’s Office 
 
 

Salvation Army 
Local VOADs 

P: 907-450-6604 or Dispatch: 
907-450-6507 
S: Salvation Army:  
     Fairbanks Corps 
     (907) 452-3103 

 
 

 
Purpose  
This annex will outline methods to provide for the coordination, supervision, and 
operations of volunteers and donations through all phases of emergency response. The 
purpose of this annex is: 
 

• To provide guidance for the coordination of volunteers responding to an 
emergency or disaster.  

• To establish a consistent framework for coordinating with volunteer 
organizations supporting the response and recovery.  

• To provide guidance for the coordination of goods donated in response to an 
emergency in an efficient and timely manner.  

• To outline a volunteer and donations management program for the City of 
Fairbanks (COF) that can be implemented for large-scale, high-visibility 
disasters, or for smaller scale emergencies that may also generate a flow of 
unsolicited volunteer services and donated goods.  
 

Scope 
This functional annex is designed to provide a flexible organizational structure capable of 
meeting the varied requirements of many emergency scenarios with the potential to 
require the coordinated use of volunteers and the management of material and financial 
donations. Specific focus will be given to unaffiliated volunteers and unsolicited 
donations. 
The Volunteer and Donations Management Annex is a functional annex to the EOP and 
to the extent possible, information contained in other sections of the EOP will not be 
repeated in this document. 
This Annex applies to all relevant departments and agencies of the City of Fairbanks, 
along with the private sector, volunteer organizations, citizens, and tribal entities.  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
3 

This Annex’s contents also apply to coordination with support agencies that respond 
within the City of Fairbanks to an emergency or disaster and that may have 
responsibility involving the recruitment, processing, assignment, and/or management of 
volunteers. 
It is not intended that this document supersede the internal operations plans and/or 
SOPs of each relevant agency. 
This annex describes the overall coordination of City of Fairbanks affiliated volunteer 
organizations, affiliated volunteers, unaffiliated volunteers, and donated goods. The 
COF and affiliated organizations will respond in coordination with one another, to the 
best of their abilities, to emergencies or disasters occurring in the city or outside of the 
city as per existing Memoranda of Understanding.  
Planning for every possible volunteer and/or donation contingency is beyond the scope 
of this Support Annex, but it will outline objectives that will provide for the greatest 
possible management and utilization of these resources. 
The Volunteer and Donations Annex applies to all agencies and organizations with 
assigned emergency responsibilities in the EOP. 
The City of Fairbanks has limited capabilities to respond to the identified mission areas 
as noted below. For all other Volunteer and Donations management needs, the City of 
Fairbanks will require mutual aid and requests for assistance (RFA) with area and 
federal fire departments, and in coordination with Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB) 
and the State of Alaska. 

Mission Area City of Fairbanks Capacity/Capability  
Coordination of Spontaneous Volunteers Notify Local VOADs Regarding Activation 

of Volunteer Response Missions. 
Establish Volunteer Reception Site in 
Cooperation With Local VOADs and 
Assign Unaffiliated Volunteers to Local 
VOADs. 
Develop And Deliver Public Messaging 
Regarding Disaster Volunteers. 

Coordination of Affiliated Volunteer Groups Develop and Maintain MOUs With 
Relevant VOADs.  
Coordinate Identification of Response 
Missions Requiring Volunteers With 
Appropriate VOAD groups with expertise 
in these areas. 
Identify Volunteers With Skill Sets 
Specific to Certain Response Missions, 
e.g. Medical Personnel, Heavy Equipment 
Operators 
Establish Liaisons With VOADs Through 
The EOC. 
Regularly Obtain Documentation Related 
to Volunteer Hours Worked and Mission 
Status. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
4 

Coordination of Donated Material Goods Develop And Maintain MOUs With 
Relevant VOADs 
Notify Local VOADs regarding  Activation 
of Material Donations Management 
Missions 
Coordinate and Support Any Agency 
Assigned With Lead Operational Mission 
For Material Donations Management 
Develop and Deliver Public Messaging 
Regarding Material Donations 
Management. 

Coordination Of Monetary Donations Develop And Maintain MOUs With 
Relevant VOADs. 
Establish Mechanism For Monetary 
Donations Management. 
Coordinate With Any VOAD Requesting 
Monetary Donations To Support Their 
Response Mission in the City of 
Fairbanks. 
Develop And Deliver Public Messaging 
Regarding Monetary Donations in Support 
of Emergency Response.  

 
Concept of Operations (CONOPS) 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making. Smaller incidents 
may be coordinated from the Incident Command Post or through any agency that 
routinely deals with managing volunteers or donations without the need to activate the 
EOC.  
Policy and coordination functions will be accomplished from the EOC, while tactical and 
operational decisions will be made in the field within the Incident Command 
(ICS)/National Incident Management System (NIMS) structure. 

General 
Volunteer and Donations Management operations in the EOC may include the following:  
 

• Volunteer Coordinator. This may be a COF Human Resources 
Representative, or a pre-identified staff member from an agency that routinely 
deals with volunteers such as American Red Cross, Salvation Army, The 
United Way, and other local Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster 
(VOAD). 

• Material Donations Coordinator.  This may be a local State of Alaska (SOA) 
Social Services Representative or a pre-identified staff member from an 
agency that routinely deals with material donations such as Salvation Army, 
or other local VOAD. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
5 

• Financial Donations Coordinator. This may be a representative from the 
City of Fairbanks Finance Department or a pre-identified staff member from 
an organization that routinely manages monetary donations. 
NOTE: Relationships with financial institutions and/or VOAD agencies to 
manage the receipt and tracking of monetary donations must be in place and 
formalized in advance of a disaster. This relationship should be vetted by the 
City’s legal counsel to ensure transparency and avoid any appearance of 
impropriety.  

• Phone Bank  
• Coordinated Media Relations Effort. This effort should be coordinated 

through the designated Public Information Officer. More information can be 
found in Annex O: Public Information and External Communications of 
this EOP.  

• Effective Liaison with other emergency support functions, state and federal 
government officials.  

• Facility Management Plan. These plans may be identified in the SOPs of 
agencies that routinely manage material donations receipt and/or operate 
donations reception warehouses. Also, facilities identified in other City of 
Fairbanks or State of Alaska Emergency Response Plans may also be 
suitable for this operation.  

Volunteers 
Volunteer Reception 
Volunteer Reception refers to the initial notification, intake and processing of volunteers. 
It also refers to any physical location designated to receive and process volunteers. 

• The various VOADs in Fairbanks will manage the notification, intake and 
processing of their registered volunteers in accordance with their internal 
SOPs upon notification by the EOC that assistance is needed for response.  

o These agencies may include, but are not limited to:  
 The American Red Cross of Alaska: 

http://www.redcross.org/ak/anchorage/programs-services  
 Alaska Division of the Salvation Army: 

http://www1.usw.salvationarmy.org/usw/www_usw_alaska2.nsf 
 Alaska Volunteer Organizations Active in Disaster: 

http://www.akvoad.org/ 

• VOADs with an assigned role in disaster response for the City of Fairbanks 
will provide documentation of volunteer processing and assignments to the 
COF EOC on a regular basis throughout response.  

• VOADs with assigned roles in disaster response for the City of Fairbanks will 
conduct appropriate vetting and background checks of their volunteers per 
their SOPs. All volunteers will be vetted prior to assignment to any response 
function. 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
6 

Unaffiliated Volunteers 
Unaffiliated Volunteers refer to spontaneous volunteers who will self-present, either 
on-scene or to the EOC to offer their assistance in response. A disorganized influx of 
unaffiliated volunteers can create a secondary disaster if unskilled people attempt to 
provide assistance in potentially hazardous environments, or if individuals with 
backgrounds that would preclude them working with certain populations present 
without appropriate vetting. Strategies for dealing with unaffiliated volunteers 
include: 

• Public information messaging. This should, early in response, include 
messaging regarding volunteers.  

o Instructions to the public NOT to self-deploy. 
o Instructions regarding volunteering with VOADs. 
o If volunteers with specific skill sets are needed, e.g. medical personnel, 

heavy equipment operators, chain saw operators, or logistics 
management personnel, instructions should include  
 Where these people can call for assignment,  
 What credentials, gear, and personal items to bring with them 
 Estimated duration of assignment and expected 

accommodations. 
 Location of any designated Volunteer Reception Center. 

• Assignment to organized VOADs. To the extent possible, unaffiliated 
volunteers should be rapidly triaged for skills, capabilities, and limitations and 
referred to appropriate VOADs.  

• Volunteer Reception Center. The City of Fairbanks may establish a 
Volunteer Reception Center to manage any unaffiliated volunteers.  

o Select a location suitable for the task. A suggested floor plan is 
included in this Annex as Attachment 2. 

o Sample Forms for use in a Volunteer Reception Center are included in 
this Annex as Attachment 3. 

o Designate staff to run this operation. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
7 

Volunteer Management 
Volunteer Management refers to the tracking of volunteers and their hours assigned to 
specific missions. Goals include ensuring volunteer safety and care (e.g. not allowing 
them to work unreasonable hours or days on end without respite) and coordination with 
all agencies to capture hours worked by all volunteers. This becomes important when 
applying for reimbursement through State and Federal programs.  
The City of Fairbanks, in partnership with voluntary organizations, are responsible for 
developing plans that address the management of unaffiliated volunteers during 
disaster response and recovery. To the extent possible, The City of Fairbanks should 
allow VOADs that routinely manage volunteers and volunteer missions to assume the 
bulk of this task. 

Donations Management 
Monetary Donations 
The City of Fairbanks City Clerk should coordinate management of unsolicited monetary 
donations.  
While Donations Management typically falls under the Logistics Section in the EOC, it 
may be feasible for the COF EOC to assign this task to the Finance Section, via the City 
Clerk, given potential manpower restrictions.   
The COF Department of Finance Department and the Clerk’s Office are responsible for 
developing financial donations management plans and managing the funds according to 
City, State, and Federal laws.  
There are potential pitfalls associated with monetary donations, including transparency, 
and long-term commitment to track funds and expenditures. The City of Alaska 
Fairbanks may choose to employ public messaging to route monetary donations to 
organizations that will be operational in Fairbanks in the event of a disaster: 

• Develop messaging that specifies which organizations are active in the 
disaster response and request that monetary donations be made directly to 
these organizations. 

• Include information with specific detail as to how people can donate to each 
organization.  

Material Donations 
Management of unsolicited donated goods involves a cooperative effort by local and 
voluntary and community -based organizations, the business sector and the media. The 
influx of unsolicited material donations can present significant challenges.  

• Well-meaning people may donate goods inappropriate to the specific incident 
or in excess of need.  

• Some people will see this as an opportunity to clean out the closets or 
garage, donating unusable items. 

• Space to warehouse, sort, and distribute donated items may be very limited. 
Resources to track and transport these items may also be in very short supply 
during a disaster. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
8 

To the extent possible, the COF should establish relationships and MOUs with local 
agencies that routinely manage material donations and assign them the lead 
responsibility for material donations management in accordance with their internal 
SOPs. COF should support these organizations with logistics, transportation, and 
volunteer labor assets as needed. This coordination will be managed through the EOC.  
Public messaging should be developed to inform the public of the following: 

• Donation preference for monetary donations to specific organizations active in 
the disaster response or gift cards, such as to grocery stores or hardware 
stores as needed. 

• What, if any, material items are needed. 
• What items are NOT accepted 
• Whether shelf-stable food will be accepted.  

o If so, COF should consider partnering with a local food bank to 
manage the receipt and distribution of food. This can be coordinated 
with the lead of the Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutritional 
Support function and with the lead of the Mass Care function as 
necessary. 

• Where material donations will be accepted, during what hours and on which 
days. 

• The cut-off date for material donations. 
• Whether receipts for donations will be provided for tax purposes. Messaging 

should include verbiage stating that receipts for donations will not be issued 
retroactively.  

Organization 
The City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center (EOC) will serve as the central 
location for interagency coordination and executive decision-making, including all 
activities associated with Volunteer and Donations Management. As indicated in the base 
EOP, the City of Fairbanks EOC is organized along the Incident Command System 
Structure, with Volunteer and donations management aligned as shown in the figure on 
the following page.  

 

Command 
(Emergency Manager)

Planning 
Section

Operations 
Section Finance Section Logistics 

Section

Volunteer & 
Donations 

Management



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
9 

Notifications 
The COF EOC is responsible for notifying any partner VOADs of activation of the EOC 
and potential needs in the Volunteer and Donations Management functional area.  
The COF EOC is responsible for activating call-down and notification systems to call in 
any city-affiliated volunteers. 
Upon notification of activation, VOADs with a volunteer or donations management 
response mission in the incident will manage the call-down and notification of their 
affiliated volunteers according to their internal SOPs. They will notify the EOC with 
information regarding the status of their call-down and how many volunteers they expect 
to be able to field.  
Direction and Control 
All Volunteer and Donations Management activities will be coordinated through the 
Fairbanks Emergency Operations Center, or Incident Command Post.  
Organizations tasked with Volunteer and Donations Management operational 
responsibilities will utilize their internal plans and SOPs to manage their response, 
coordinating with the COF EOC for support.  
VOADs will make recommendations for requests for state or federal assistance through 
the EOC. They will inform the EOC of any assistance being provided to them from their 
State or Federal level parent organizations.  
VOADs will provide the EOC with requested volunteer tracking information on a regular 
basis as established by the Volunteer and Donations Management lead in the EOC. 
Responsibilities 

All Tasked Agencies 
• Work with each other to pre-identify potential sites and facilities to manage 

donated goods/resources being channeled into the disaster area; and; 
• Develop public messaging regarding volunteers, material donations, and 

monetary donations. 
• Identify the necessary support requirements to ensure the prompt 

establishment and operation of these facilities and sites. 
• Develop applicable standard operating procedures, guidelines and/or 

checklists detailing the accomplishment of their assigned functions/mission 
areas. 

• Provide ongoing status reports as requested. 
• When requested, deploy a representative to the EOC to assist with 

Emergency Management activities. 
• Maintain updated resource inventories of supplies, equipment, and personnel 

resources, including possible sources of augmentation or replacement. 
• Document all costs and expenses associated with response and recovery 

activities taking care to clearly separate disaster related work in the event that 
reimbursement from State and Federal government becomes available. 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
10 

• Maintain up-to-date rosters for notifying personnel and 24-hour EOC staffing 
capabilities. 

• Perform other emergencies responsibilities as assigned. 
Each and every agency, department, office and division of City of Fairbanks 
government is charged with development of and assistance in their respective Function. 
Each of these entities as well as private industry and other public and private agencies 
that have responsibilities for the public should maintain and periodically test, review and 
update their Functional Annex. 

City of Fairbanks Emergency Management 
• Be the primary coordinating agency for this ANNEX in matters pertaining to 

resources and services;  
• Identify and be prepared to set up and staff a City Receiving Point, staging 

areas, and distribution points, if required;  
• Develop procedures to manage donated goods and services to include 

receiving, sorting, prioritizing, sorting, and distributing them during an 
emergency situation.   

• Coordinate with volunteer organizations in the City to support this Annex and 
assist with staffing the Receiving Point and Points of Distribution.  

• Coordinate with the Emergency Management Coordinator for Amateur Radio 
support to the Receiving Point, staging areas, and Points of Distributions, as 
a primary or backup method of communication; 

• Arrange for training and exercising of personnel and equipment; and  
• Keep accurate records of donated, stored, and distributed goods; or 

expenditures in support of this Annex for possible reimbursement or auditing 
requirements. 

American Red Cross (or assigned local VOAD) 
• In coordination with COF Volunteer and Donations Management lead in the 

EOC, Be the primary coordinating agency for matters pertaining to volunteers; 
• Develop procedures for identifying requirements for volunteers to support City 

organizations during emergency operations and a process to register, 
account for, manage, and assign volunteers to appropriate positions. 

• Be prepared to register and assign volunteers to support City of Fairbanks 
organizations during emergency operations, as required;  

• Maintain a comprehensive list of volunteers that are available to assist in 
support of this annex;  

• Coordinate emergency operations with the EOC, when activated. 

Salvation Army (or assigned local VOAD) 
• Establish and operate a site or sites for the management of material 

donations; 
o Reception/sorting/warehousing 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
11 

o Distribution 
• Keep accurate records of donated, stored, and distributed goods; or 

expenditures in support of volunteers for possible reimbursement or auditing 
requirements;  

• Coordinate emergency operations with the EOC, when activated. 
Administration 

Support 
Requests for assistance with Volunteer and Donations Management will be resolved at the 
lowest level direction and control facility with appropriate response resources capabilities. 
Unresolved assistance requests will normally flow upward from the City to the FNSB or 
the State EOC, and as required to other states or the federal government for assistance 
support. 

Agreements and Understandings 
 

All other agreements and understandings entered into for the purchase, lease, or 
otherwise use of equipment and services, will be in accordance with the provision of 
laws and procedures. 
The Proclamation of a Local Emergency by the City or a State Disaster issued by the 
Governor may suspend selected rules and regulations that affect support operations. 
The Emergency Manager will determine the specific impact of the situation and inform 
the functional group members. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
12 

Status Reports 
Primary agencies will maintain status of all outstanding assistance requests and 
unresolved mission-related issues. This information will be summarized into periodic 
status reports at the EOC and submitted in accordance with applicable operating 
procedures. 

Expenditures and Recordkeeping 
Each functional agency is responsible for establishing administrative controls necessary to 
manage the expenditure of funds and to provide reasonable accountability and 
justification for federal reimbursement in accordance with the established guidelines. 
The first source of funds for expenditures by agencies in response to an emergency, 
imminent disaster, or recovery from a catastrophic incident, is to be from the local 
jurisdiction in which the disaster occurs. 

After Action Reporting 
Following the conclusion of any significant emergency event/incident or exercise, the 
primary agency representative will conduct a critique of the group activities during the 
event/incident/exercise. 
Support agencies will provide written and/or oral inputs for this critique and the primary 
agency representative will consolidate all inputs into a final report and submit it to the City 
of Fairbanks Emergency Manager. 
  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
13 

 

Attachment 1: Emergency Management Checklist of Actions by Phase  
This attachment is intended to be a stand-alone resource to guide activities for this 
function. During an operation it may be posted or distributed to serve as a job aid and 
tool for tracking progress. 

Phase Actions 
Mitigation: Activities 
designed to prevent or 
lessen the effects of a 
hazard. 

 Participate in the hazard identification process and 
identify and correct vulnerabilities. 

 Develop emergency preparedness programs and 
present them to the public. 

Preparedness: Activities 
designed to improve 
readiness capabilities. 

 Identify agencies external to COF that may be the 
best choice to take the lead in volunteer and/or 
donations management operations during a 
disaster. 

 Pre-identify sites for volunteer reception and 
donations management activities. 

 Develop SOPs/field guides for operation of 
volunteer reception sites and donation management 
sites. If these plans exist with VOAD or other 
agencies, make the plans available to COF 
Emergency management. 

 Maintain this Functional Annex and its attachments. 
 Ensure City personnel and partner agencies and 

organizations are provided with opportunities to take 
emergency operations and ICS training. 

 Develop and maintain standard operating 
procedures and checklists to support Emergency 
Management activities. 

 Ensure notification and call-up lists are current. 
 Develop emergency exercises/drills to support 

Volunteer and Donations Management activities. 
Response:  Activities 
designed to save lives, 
protect property and 
contain the effects of an 
event. 

 Activate the EOC and notify City and Volunteer and 
Donations Management partner agencies, Borough, 
and State officials as needed. 

 Request mutual aid as needed. Partner VOADs 
requesting assistance from their State or National 
parent organizations should apprise the EOC of 
this. 

 Request assistance from Alaska Emergency 
Management through Fairbanks North Star 
Borough, if dictated by the situation. 

 Coordinate the activities of all responding agencies. 
 Conduct other specific response actions as dictated 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
14 

Phase Actions 
by the situation. 

 Begin planning for demobilization. 
Recovery: Activities 
designed to ensure 
continued public safety 
and return the community 
to pre-disaster levels. 

 Continue to coordinate the activities of all 
responding agencies as they collate data on 
response and return to steady-state operations. 

 Establish mechanism for removal of unwanted 
donated items. These may be donated to other 
organizations or disposed of. 

 Support community recovery activities.  
 Formally thank volunteers, volunteer agencies, and 

donors for their support. 
 Schedule after-action briefings and develop after-

action reports. 
 Develop and implement mitigation strategies based 

on after-action review of volunteer and donations 
operations. 

 Make necessary changes in this Functional Annex 
and supporting plans and procedures. 

 
 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
15 

Attachment 2: Volunteer Reception Center Example Floor Plan 
 

 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
16 

Attachment 3: Sample Volunteer Reception Center Forms 

Signage 
This is a general list of signage that may be needed. City of Fairbanks personnel 
assigned to this mission area should review and select which signs are appropriate to City 
of Fairbanks. 
You will need one sign, unless otherwise specified, for each of the station or directional 
signs shown in the left column. All signs should be laminated and large enough to be read 
from across a large room.  
 

SIGNS NEEDED WHERE TO POST 

Disaster Volunteer Reception Center (2) On street visible from either direction 

Station #1 Registration/Interview Registration / Interview area 

Enter Volunteer Entrance to VRC 

Station #2 Safety Briefing Briefing area visible from Volunteer Entry 

Station #3 Volunteer Assignment, plus signage for 
each agency represented in the Operations Section 
(Volunteer Affiliation. 

Data Coordination visible from Station #2 

  *Station #4  Background Check Background Check area visible from Station #3 

*Station #5 Volunteer I.D. Safety Training visible from Station #4 

Station #6 Maps  
Station #7 Job Training Job Training visible from Station #5 

Exit Exit visible from Stations #5 and #6 

Staff Only  (1+ as needed) Staff rest area, areas off limits to spontaneous 
l t  Phone Bank Agency Coordination area 

Supplies (Staff Only) Door of a secure storage area 

Public Information Officer Public Information Officer’s Table 

Transportation to Worksite At exit to transportation staging area 

Large arrows that can be used for either direction as needed. These are not needed between VRC 
stations but may be needed in conjunction with the Transportation sign or others. 

  



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
17 

 

 
 
 
 



City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)  May 20, 2024     

Volunteer and Donations Management   Logistics Branch 
18 

Emergency Operations Volunteer Registration Form   
(Side two) 

 
Release of Liability and Consent to Background Check / Release of 

Confidential Information Statement 
 
I understand that I am agreeing to participate in a potentially hazardous, dangerous and/or physically strenuous activity. 
 
I, for myself and my heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, hereby release, indemnify and hold harmless the City 
of Fairbanks, Alaska or other agency(ies) or entity(ies) to which I am or may be assigned, the organizers, sponsors and 
supervisors of all event preparedness, response and recovery activities from all liability for any and all risk of damage or 
bodily injury or death that may occur to me (including any injury caused by negligence), in connection with any 
volunteer effort in which I participate.  I likewise hold harmless from liability any person transporting me to or from any 
volunteer activity.  In addition, event officials have permission to utilize any photographs or videos taken of me for 
publicity or training purposes.  I will abide by all safety instructions and information provided to me during my volunteer 
efforts. 
 
Further, I expressly agree that this release, waiver, and indemnity agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive 
as permitted by the City of Fairbanks, the State of Alaska and the United States of America, and that if any portion 
thereof is held invalid, it is agreed that the balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal force and effect. 
 
I have no known physical or mental condition that would impair my capability to participate fully, as intended or 
expected of me.   
 
I understand that I may be operating in hazardous conditions or perform physically strenuous work  and will follow all 
safety guidelines. I will notify my supervisor immediately if I cannot perform theses tasks. 
 
I consent to a background check and authorize release of any relevant confidential information to the appropriate 
authorities. 
 
I have carefully read the foregoing release and indemnification, consent to background check, and release of 
confidential information statements and understand the contents thereof and sign this release as my own free act.  By 
signing below, I certify that all information I have provided as part of this Volunteer Application process is true and 
accurate to the best of my knowledge. 
 
Print name: _____________________________________________ SSN: ___-____-_______ 
 
DOB: ______________Gender: ______________Race: ______________DL#:______________State:__________ 
 
Have you ever been convicted of a misdemeanor? Yes  No   If Yes, explain.      
 
Have you ever been convicted of a felony? Yes  No   If Yes, explain.       
 
Signature________________________________________________    Date______________ 
 
Guardian, if under 18______________________________________     Date______________ 
 
Volunteer’s credentials were recorded as presented.  Verification of credentials and any background check 
required are the responsibility of the receiving agency.  This volunteer was referred to the following agency: 
 
Date   Need #              Agency _________Contact Name                   Contact’s phone #______________ 
 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 



Introduced by: Mayor David Pruhs and 
Council Members Sprinkle and Ringstad 

 Introduced: June 24, 2024 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6283 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE BY 
ENACTING SECTION 10-207 TO REQUIRE THAT VACANT BUILDINGS 

BE SECURED AND REGISTERED AND ESTABLISHING FINES FOR 
VIOLATIONS OF THESE REQUIREMENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, vacant buildings pose threats to public safety by attracting criminal 
activities and creating an increased fire risk; and  
 

WHEREAS, vacant buildings often contribute to a blight on the community that 
lowers the value of nearby properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, many of the vacant building property owners do not live in Fairbanks 

and are difficult to locate and contact, which delays securing, cleaning, or abatement of 
the property; and 

 
WHEREAS, several communities have found that a vacant property registry is a 

useful tool that encourages owners to secure and maintain their properties. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Fairbanks General Code Chapter 10, Article VII Code for the 
Abatement of Dangerous Buildings is hereby amended to add new Section 10-207 
Vacant buildings, as follows: 
 
Sec. 10-207. - Vacant buildings. 
 
(a) Vacant building definition: A vacant building is a structure designed for 

residential or commercial use that has not been lawfully used for residential or 
commercial purposes for 180 days.  

 
The vacant building designation does not apply to: 

1. Vacation properties; 
2. Structures used on a seasonal basis; 
3. Buildings that have been continuously offered in good faith for sale for less 

than 365 days; 
4. Buildings with an active building permit from the City of Fairbanks if the 

permitted work is completed within 365 days of the initial permit date.  
 
(b) Duty to secure: Vacant buildings must be sufficiently secured to prevent ingress 

and egress. Vacant buildings must have prominently visible “No Trespassing” 



Ordinance No. 6283 
Page 2 

signs at each secured exterior door. Vacant building owners are responsible 
for routine inspections to ensure the building remains secure and to prevent 
unauthorized access.  

 
(c) Duty to Register: A vacant building must be registered with the City of 

Fairbanks Building Department within 30 days of meeting the vacant building 
threshold established in Sec. 10-207 (a). The vacant building registry will be 
maintained by the Building Department. Information on the registry is 
confidential and not intended for public release. Registering the building does 
not remove the owner(s)’ duty to secure. The building owner(s) may apply to 
the Building Department for removal from the registry when the building is no 
longer vacant. 

 
At a minimum, the registration will consist of the following information: 

1. Vacant building address; 
2. Owner(s)’ full name; 
3. Owner(s)’ contact information; and 
4. Period of time the building is expected to remain vacant. 

 
The owner of the vacant building shall pay an annual registration fee as follows: 

1. $100 for the first year; 
2. $250 for the second year; and 
3. $500 for every subsequent year. 

 
(d) Remedies: Property owners are responsible for registering and securing vacant 

buildings. Owners failing to register vacant buildings will be charged $10 per 
day. Owners failing to adequately secure vacant buildings within ten business 
days of registration or notice of violation for not securing a vacant building will 
accrue civil penalties in the amount of $300 per business day. After 30 days 
the City may secure the vacant building at the owners’ expense. The City 
Council may place a lien on a property for any unpaid civil penalties and/or 
expenses resulting from securing the vacant building. 

 
(e) The building owner(s) may appeal any decision regarding this section of code 

with the mayor or mayor’s designee. The property owner may further appeal 
any decision regarding this section of code with the City Council. 

 
(f) The mayor or mayor’s designee may waive any fees or fines associated with 

this section of code. 
 

 SECTION 2.  The effective date of this ordinance is five days after adoption. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 



Ordinance No. 6283 
Page 3 

 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
 



Introduced by: Mayor David Pruhs and 
Council Members Sprinkle and Ringstad 

 Introduced: June 24, 2024 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6284 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE BY 
ENACTING SECTION 10-208 TO PREVENT AND ADDRESS BLIGHT  

 
WHEREAS, blighted properties pose a health, safety, and welfare risk to the 

community; and 
 
WHEREAS, blighted properties pose a health risk by, among other things, 

harboring unsanitary conditions through the accumulation of excess litter and trash, failing 
to provide adequate ventilation or water for inhabitants, or by the improper disposal of 
human waste; and   

 
WHEREAS, blighted properties pose threats to public safety by attracting criminal 

activities and creating an increased fire risk; and  
 
WHEREAS, blighted properties contribute to the overall decline of neighborhoods, 

lowering the value of nearby properties and creating unsafe environments; and 
 

WHEREAS, many of the blighted property owners are unable or unwilling to 
address the public safety concerns with their property; and 

 
WHEREAS, several communities have found that establishing notification 

standards, remediation schedules, and civil penalties for noncompliance encourages 
owners to better care for their properties.  

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  Fairbanks General Code Chapter 10, Article VII Code for the 
Abatement of Dangerous Buildings is hereby amended to add new Section 10-208 
Blighted properties, as follows: 
 
Sec. 10-208. - Blighted Properties. 
 
(a) Blighted Property definition: Any individual commercial, industrial, or residential 

structure or parcel of land that endangers the public's health, safety, or welfare 
because the property is dilapidated, or deteriorated. 

 
Properties with two or more of the following conditions may be considered a 
blighted property: 
1. A property upon which is located a dangerous building as defined in the 

City of Fairbanks Code for the Abatement of Dangerous Buildings.  



Ordinance No. 6284 
Page 2 

2. The property is determined to be a fire hazard by the Fire Chief, Assistant 
Fire Chief, Fire Marshal, or Deputy Fire Marshal for violations set forth in 
Chapter 30 of the Code of Ordinances. 

3. Property that meets the chronic nuisance property definition outlined in 
FGC Sec. 46-211. 

4. The presence of people staying in temporary shelter not intended for 
permanent human habitation for more than ten days. 

5. Properties containing unregistered, inoperable, unrepaired, uncovered 
vehicles for more than 90 days. 

6. Properties with accumulated litter as defined in FGC Secs. 46-161 and 46-
162. 

7. Presence of unsecured drug paraphernalia as defined in FGC Sec. 46-361. 
8. Properties with polluted conditions as defined in FGC Sec. 34-106. 
9. Conditions of the property or activities on the property have materially 

contributed to a decline in property values of proximate properties. 
 

(b) Blighted Property Determination: The Mayor or mayor’s designee has the 
authority to determine if a property has met the blighted property threshold 
outlined in this ordinance.  

 
(c) Notification: Upon determination that a property is blighted, the City of 

Fairbanks will notify the owner of the property by posting a notice of the violation 
in a conspicuous location on the blighted property and providing the notice to 
the owner by hand delivery, mail, or electronically. The notification will specify 
violations that constitute the blight and clearly express remediation deadlines. 

 
(d) Schedule: Owners have ten business days from the notice of violation to 

remediate the violations. If the remediation will take longer than ten business 
days, the owner must present a remediation plan to the City. The Mayor or 
mayor’s designee will determine if the plan will address the violations in a 
reasonable timeframe. 

 
(e) Remedies: Property owners are responsible for correcting all conditions that 

have led to the blighted property designation. Owners failing to adequately 
address blighted property violations within ten business days of the notice of 
violation or by an approved alternate timeline will accrue civil penalties in the 
amount of $300 per business day. After 30 days the City may address the 
violations at the property owner’s expense. The City Council may place a lien 
on a property for any unpaid civil penalties and/or expenses resulting from 
remedying the violations. 

 
(f) The civil remedy provided in this section is intended to address health, safety, 

and welfare concerns resulting from blighted properties. Any remedy included 
in this section is independent and separate from any other legal remedy 
available including injunctive relief and criminal action. 

 



Ordinance No. 6284 
Page 3 

(g) The property owner(s) may appeal any decision regarding this section of code 
with the Mayor or mayor’s designee. The property owner may further appeal 
any decision regarding this section of code with the City Council.  

 
(h) The Mayor or mayor’s designee may waive any fees or penalties associated 

with this section of code. 
 

 SECTION 2.  The effective date of this ordinance is five days after adoption. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
 



Introduced by: Mayor David Pruhs and 
Council Members Sprinkle and Ringstad 

 Introduced: June 24, 2024 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6285 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE SECTION 
74-36 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION OR 
DEFERRAL AND ENACTING SECTION 74-37 TAX INCENTIVE FOR 

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT, REDEVELOPMENT, OR RENOVATION 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Fairbanks has economic development authorities; and 
 
WHEREAS, residential and commercial development drives local economic 

revitalization; and 
 
WHEREAS, state law authorizes a tax exemption or deferral for certain economic 

development property; and 
 
WHEREAS, temporary relief from property taxes can be an effective incentive for 

new construction; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Fairbanks area has experienced a housing shortage, impacting 
the ability of residents to find affordable, efficient housing in the community; and 

 
WHEREAS, vacant, abandoned, and/or undeveloped lots are of little economic 

value, often negatively affect proximate property values, and can be a source of blight; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, new, quality residential and commercial construction significantly 

contributes to the economy, often positively affects proximate property values, and 
usually improves local aesthetics; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Fairbanks City Council to encourage residential 

and commercial development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fairbanks City Council has the authority to freeze the City property 

taxes to encourage development. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  FGC Sec. 74-36, Economic development property tax exemption or 
deferral, is hereby amended as follows [new text in bold/underline font; deleted 
text in strikethrough font]: 
 

  



Ordinance No. 6285 
Page 2 

Sec. 74-36. - Economic development property tax exemption or deferral. 
 

(a) The council may grant a partial or total exemption and/or deferral for economic 
development property only if the granting of such exemption and/or deferral will 
provide economic benefit to the city, and 

 
(1) The exemption and/or deferral will provide measurable public benefits 

commensurate with the level of incentive granted; 
 

(2) The property owner is in compliance with all state and local tax obligations; 
 

(3) The location of the trade, industry, or business is compatible with zoning 
requirements land use and development plans of the borough; and 

 
(4) The exemption and/or deferral is necessary to allow adequate time for 

improvements to be completed and revenue to be generated by the 
property. 

 
(b) Economic development property means real property that: 

 
(1) Has not previously been taxed as real or personal property by the city; 

however, improvements on properties may be partially or wholly tax 
exempted or deferred under this section. 

 
(2) Is used in trade or city business in a way that: 

a. creates employment in the city directly related to the use of the 
property that does not supplant jobs in another similar industry; or 

b. generates sales outside of the city of goods or services produced in 
the city; or 

c. materially reduces the importation of goods or services from outside 
the city. 

 
(3) Enables a significant capital investment in physical infrastructure 

that: 
a. expands the tax base of the City; and 
b. will generate property tax after the exemption/deferment expires. 

 
(34) Has not been used in the same trade or business in another city for at 

least six months before the application for deferral or exemption is filed; 
this limitation does not apply if the property was used in the same trade or 
business in an area that has been annexed to the city within six months 
before the application for deferral or exemption is filed; this subsection 
does not apply to inventories. 

 
(c) An ordinance by the Fairbanks City Council must precede any action to 



Ordinance No. 6285 
Page 3 

authorize a tax exemption or deferral under this section. 
 

SECTION 2.  FGC Chapter 74, Article II, Property Tax, is amended to add new 
Section 74-37, Tax incentive for property development, redevelopment, or 
renovation, as follows: 

 
Sec. 74-37. - Tax incentive for property development, redevelopment, or 
renovation. 

 
(a) As permitted by state law, a property tax exemption may be approved for the 

development, redevelopment, or renovation of a property within city limits that 
results in an increased property tax assessment. The assessed value 
attributable to the new development, redevelopment, or renovation of a 
property may be granted a reimbursement of taxes for a maximum of five years 
based on the total construction costs confirmed on the permit(s) from the 
Building Department as follows: 

 
(1) Construction costs totaling $1,000,000 or more may receive a five-year 

exemption. 
 

(2) Construction costs totaling between $50,000 to $999,999 may receive a 
two-year exemption. 

 
(3) Construction costs totaling less than $50,000 are not eligible for a tax 

exemption under this program. 
 

(b) The property owner must apply for the tax reimbursement through the Building 
Department during the permitting process. Property owners with projects 
requiring multiple permits will add construction costs from each permit to 
determine total construction costs.  

 
(c) The Mayor or mayor’s designee may approve or deny the application. Following 

the final inspection, the property owner and Building Department will confirm 
the total construction costs for the application. The Building Official will 
recommend approval or denial of the application based on total construction 
costs and resulting property improvements to the Mayor or mayor’s designee. 
Approval of the application cannot occur prior to the final inspection from the 
Building Department.  Property owners may appeal any decision made by the 
Mayor or mayor’s designee to the City Council. 

 
  



Ordinance No. 6285 
Page 4 

 
SECTION 3.  The effective date of this ordinance is five days after adoption. 

 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       David Pruhs, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ____________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, MMC, City Clerk  Thomas A. Chard II, City Attorney 
  



Ordinance No. 6285 
Page 5 

 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 6285

Abbreviated Title: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTION

Department(s):

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No x

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes No x

  (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

TOTAL

-$                  

TOTAL

-$                  

 
Initial mb Date  6/19/2024

TOTAL

Based on the current mill levy of 5.914, a decrease in assessed value of $1,000,000 will reduce property taxes by 
$5,914.00.

Reviewed by Finance Department:

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:

PROJECTS:

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

If yes, type of positions?



CLAY STREET CEMETERY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES - MAY 1, 2024 

HELD VIA ZOOM WEBINAR AND 
IN FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

The Clay Street Cemetery Commission convened at 5:00 p.m. on the above date to conduct a 
Regular Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, and via 
teleconference, with Chair Aldean Kilbourn presiding and the following Commission members 
in attendance: 

Members Present: George Dalton, Seat A 
Aldean Kilbourn, Seat C 
Janet Richardson, Seat D 
Julie Jones, Seat E 

Absent: 

Also Present: 

Karen Erickson, Seat F 
Amy Stratman, Seat G 

Dawn Milligan, Seat B 

Jeff Jacobson, Public Works Director 
Colt Chase, Deputy City Clerk 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of April 3, 2024 

J. Richardson, seconded by K. Erickson, moved to APPROVE the April 3, 2024 minutes. 

Chair Kilbourn took a voice vote on the motion to APPROVE the April 
3, 2024 minutes, and all members voted in favor. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

J. Richardson, seconded by K. Erickson, moved to APPROVE the agenda. 

Chair Kilbourn took a voice vote on the motion to APPROVE the 
agenda, and all members voted in favor. 

CITIZEN'S COMMENTS - None 

COMMUNICATIONS TO COMMISSION - None 

·EVENTS & PUBLIC RELATIONS 

a) Annual Clean-Up Day Scheduled for Saturday May 18, 2024, 9 a.m. - 12 p.m. 

J. Jacobson shared that Public Works is scheduled to do its initial pre-season clean-up work on 
May 9, with May 16 set aside for any additional tasks. 

Chair Kilbourn confirmed the event details and reviewed plans for advertising it to the public. 



FINANCIAL UPDATES 

Chair Kilbourn referenced the financial report and noted no changes since the April meeting. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Quiring Monuments Orders 

J. Jones reported that Quiring Monuments notified her that their most recent container shipment 
from China did not include the granite that was expected for the Commission's order. Discussion 
ensued regarding the frustrations of order fulfillment and concerns about the newly placed order. 
J. Jones shared details about the process of ordering and her interactions with Quiring 
Monument' s representative. She indicated that she will continue to seek updates from them. 

Chair Kilbourn confirmed that, whenever the markers arrive, the Commission will have 
additional labor support from the Air National Guard unit that volunteered in 2023. 

J. Richardson suggested that Quiring be reminded that, compared to their customers in other 
states, Fairbanks has a much shorter window for cemetery work each year due to the climate. She 
expressed disappointment that this order, placed in October, was still in limbo. 

b) Update on Communication with Garrett Speeter re: GPR of Selected Areas 

Chair Kilbourn shared that she had not yet received a reply from G. Speeter despite multiple 
attempts to contact him. She stated that they would like to get the work performed soon, but she 
had no other update due to the lack of response. 

NEW BUSINESS 

a) Application for Placement - P. Cathey 

Chair Kilbourn reported that she was put in touch with P. Cathey who had requested to, upon 
her passing, have her ashes buried next to her parents who are interred at the Clay Street 
Cemetery. She stated that P. Cathey had confirmed that she would make all necessary 
arrangements, including payment for any expenses, with the Blanchard Family Funeral Home. 
Discussion occurred regarding P. Cathey's father and his work as a photographer who traveled 
all over Alaska and lived in Fairbanks for over 30 years. 

Chair Kilbourn, seconded by J. Jones, moved to APPROVE the Application for Placement of 
Patricia Fay Dann Cathey. 

Chair Kilbourn took a voice vote on the motion to APPROVE 
Application for Placement of Patricia Fay Dann Cathey, and all members 
voted in favor. 

 

Clay Street Cemetery Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May 1, 2024 
Page 2 of3 



OPEN AGENDA 

K. Erickson asked if anyone had an update on the Masons section. J. Richardson shared details 
about her efforts on the matter. She indicated she has had positive interactions with a particular 
Mason in Washington but that no additional information was available presently. 

NEXT MEETING DATE 

Chair Kilbourn confirmed that the next meeting is scheduled for June 5, 2024, at 5 :00 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Kilbourn declared the meeting ADJOURNED at 5:16 p.m. 

[Clerk Note: D. Milligan was in communication with Deputy Clerk Chase during the meeting 
regarding connection issues with the provided Zoom link. C. Chase spoke with D. Milligan after 
the meeting to convey a summary of the meeting and all actions taken.] 

~~~ c~ 
Aldean Kilbourn, Chair 

Transcribed by: CC 

Clay Street Cemetery Commission 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

Colt Chase, Deputy City Clerk 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT May I, 2024 
Page 3 of3 



  
CITY OF FAIRBANKS FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
800 Cushman Street Telephone (907)459-6713 
Fairbanks, AK  99701 Fax (907)459-6722 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 12, 2024 
 
TO:   Council Members 
 
THROUGH: Mayor David Pruhs 
 
FROM:  CFO Margarita Bell 
 
SUBJECT:  Fire Department Position Change 
 
I am seeking authorization to reduce one Captain position to add one 
Assistant Fire Chief position for training.   
 
The Council converted one firefighter position to a captain position for 
training in 2022.  The staff filling the role returned full-time to suppression. 
 
The Fire Chief recommends additional duties for this position that the HR 
Director classifies as an Assistant Fire Chief.   
 
This request will result in an annual salary savings of $6,600; therefore, the 
budget will not require an amendment.  
 



  
CITY OF FAIRBANKS FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
800 Cushman Street Telephone (907)459-6713 
Fairbanks, AK  99701 Fax (907)459-6722 

 
 
 
 
DATE:  June 20, 2024 
 
TO:   Council Members 
 
THROUGH: Mayor David Pruhs 
 
FROM:  CFO Margarita Bell 
 
SUBJECT:  Building Department Position Change 
 
I am seeking authorization to remove one Plans Examiner position and to 
add one Code Compliance Inspector.   
 
This request will allow the department to hire a Code Compliance Inspector 
that can provide electrical inspections; this function is performed by the 
current Building Official who will be retiring this year.   
 
This request will result in annual salary savings of $11,700; therefore, the 
budget will not require an amendment.  
 


	AGENDA - June 24, 2024
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Alcohol License Renewals
	Determination of Costs and Method of Recovery - 719 Front Street Abatement

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 5116

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 5126
	Resolution No. 5127
	City of Fairbanks Emergency Operations Plan (EOP)
	Table of Contents
	Purpose and Scope
	Situation and Assumptions
	Concept of Operations
	Organization and Assignment of Responsibilities
	Direction, Control, and Coordination
	Plan Development and Maintenance
	Actions, Legal Authorities, and References
	Emergency Support Functions (ESFs)
	Annex A - Transportation
	Annex B - Communications
	Annex C - Public Works and Engineering
	Annex D - Firefighting
	Annex E - Emergency Management
	Annex F - Mass Care, Housing, and Human Services
	Annex G - Logistics and Resource Support
	Annex H - Public Health and Medical Services
	Annex I - Search and Rescue
	Annex J - Oil and Hazardous Materials
	Annex K - Agriculture, Natural Resources, and Nutrition Support
	Annex L - Energy and Utilities
	Annex M - Public Safety
	Annex N - Long-Term Recovery
	Annex O - Public Information and External Communications
	Annex P - Volunteer and Donations Management


	Ordinance No. 6283
	Ordinance No. 6284
	Ordinance No. 6285

	WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS TO THE CITY COUNCIL
	Clay Street Cemetery Commission Meeting Minutes - 05/01/24
	Memo Authorizing Fire Department Position Change
	Memo Authorizing Building Department Position Change




